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a&’ Corporate Profile
REHT

The Hung Hing Printing Group, listed on the

Hong Kong Stock Exchange, is a major global
player in book and package printing, consumer
product packaging production, corrugated box
manufacturing, paper trading, and design inno-
vation in these domains.
EEABERXZM EHEEERIEEGRAR > 2
%Bk%l]% HYENRIRES » RERERERER  HEmEE
BARFEEE « BRE S RREtEIFRENR @D EmE L
TE*E*EE’\J%‘% °

Having produced tailor-made printing solutions for clients around
the world for more than 70 years, Hung Hing has a heritage of
excellence built on a foundation of craftsmanship and innovation.

Headquartered at the Tai Po Industrial Estate in Hong Kong, China, we
have seven manufacturing facilities, including one in Hong Kong, five
in mainland China (Shenzhen, Zhongshan, Heshan and Foshan in the
Guangdong province and Wuxi, in Jiangsu) and one in Hanoi, Vietnam.
The Group’s total production floor space spans over 600,000 square
meters, with a workforce of around 5,800 in Hong Kong, mainland
China and Vietnam.

To grow the business, Hung Hing focuses on building strong
partnership, and driving business innovation, and creating sustainable
printed products and solutions for clients covering leading local and
multinational corporations worldwide. Through its design hub Beluga
and investments in new development opportunities, the Group is also
pioneering new capabilities including digital+print products to help drive
innovation. In addition, building on its years of experience in producing
children’s books, Hung Hing expands its portfolio around children’s
education. It includes the Yum Me Play experience platform that
provides a variety of workshops and learning experiences, STEM Plus
that delivers STEM and Al educational programmes, and Active Minds
that distributes children’s books.

Hung Hing’s financial objective is to deliver consistent returns
and long-term growth to shareholders from a leading position in its
industry. The strategy to achieve this involves resilience and long-term
commitment in fixed and human assets, and an unwavering focus on
quality, efficiency and customer service.

BEMII70ZER > LFERIETIEMAIRE
Mo RERERRUESTENERGE  £F
AEARAGGE -

EREIENPESAEABIEN > EEEN7@EHR
BRAEBE  BREBUI » DRI EREHE
P~ A~ BULAIEEL o STERE SR » MUK
ROAA o EENEEEEBEB0BEFTS K » i
4« PEAMMEREER S T495,800% ©

ERRERFT > SERAEBBNNES > W
NESEBHBRER  AEMEEIRNESEL
EBIENENERERREREE - B K
PIRBIE IR B & 5 &M B > i
ARMNAIFR P 0Beluga » BEFIRMHRT

BRRMER  SF—RFTEBE+HERLESR k&
ﬁtZ% ) RERESERHNNGESENLER
HETHREXNSEMNER > ANEAREM
FHYum Me Playfigia N2 B F & ~ 2 STEM
BAIEEHFHENSTEM Plus ~ RO HRE
BZrIActive MindsZ o

FEMMBEER  RARRGRBEN RIANME
o Allt > EEEBEERBENRE > REHA
HERBIREEEERE » FHRRSEEREX
REER > BRBEFRBESRS -
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&’ Corporate Information

ATEH
Executive Directors

Yum Chak Ming, Matthew, Executive Chairman
Yum Christopher Carson

Non-Executive Directors

Hirofumi Hori Aki Tsuge
Hitoshi Shibasaki

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Lo Chi Hong
Luk Koon Hoo

Tan Chuen Yan, Paul

Company Secretary

Shek Kwok Man

Legal Advisor

Fangda Partners

Registered Office

Hung Hing Printing Centre, 17—19 Dai Hei Street,

Tai Po Industrial Estate, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2664 8682 Fax: (852) 2664 2070
E-mail: info@hunghingprinting.com

Principal Bankers

The Hongkong and Shanghai MUFG Bank, Ltd.
Banking Corporation Limited = BNP Paribas
Hang Seng Bank Limited

Auditor

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with the

Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Ordinance

Share Registrar

Tricor Tengis Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
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a Facilities
EEM

Hong Kong, China 1950
hEE#

* Relocated to Tai Po Industrial Estate in 1989.
HR1989FBEFH AL EEM o

» Corporate headquarters.
REHRER

» 2 production lines for conventional books printing,
suitable for printing of sensitive materials.
AFEEGANREREENR - BARBERSHEHER -

» 270 full time staff/workers.
ZEEBT270A ©

Zhongshan ALl 1993

* Printing and manufacturing of folding cartons,
litho lam and corrugated containers.
F2 ~ BENHRAR - BB FaRIENRIA L ZE

* Awarded ISO9001; ISO14001 & BRCGS certifications.
FE151S09001 ; 1ISO14001% BRCGS 5858 ©

* 590 full time workers.
Z2BET59A °

Shenzhen %Il 1994

* Printing and manufacturing of folding cartons,
children’s book, conventional books, litho lam and
corrugated containers.
FE - REE - ERE « RIRE - RBAMIENRIFI L E o
*  Awarded 1ISO9001; 1ISO14001; ISO50001
& ICTI-ETP certifications.
FE151S09001 ; 1SO14001 ; ISO50001%ICTI-ETPE3EE ©
* 1,900-2,800 full time workers of which 700-1,500
hand assembled related.
2H57T1,900-2,800 A » EA700-1,500 AAF THEATLTA ©

Shunde, Foshan 1998
JIE{E L0

» Printing and manufacturing of folding cartons,
litho lam and corrugated containers.
FR ~ FENRAR - RBARFMRIENRIFNEE -

* Acquired in 2018 to achieve multi-locations
network producing high quality corrugated products.
2018 FINBE LI ER L MR EERBERBEHM °

* Awarded ISO9001; ISO14001 certifications.
FEF1S09001 5 1ISO014001 3858 ©

« 250 full time workers.
2BBTI50A

¥ RBMNIEREE

Wuxi #$5 2003

* Printing and manufacturing of folding cartons,
litho lam and corrugated containers.
Fo= ~ FEARAR ~ FUBARFERVENRIFNEE o

* Awarded ISO9001; ISO14001 & BRCGS certifications.
JEF1S09001 ; 1S014001 52 BRCGS #33% ©

*  280-400 full time workers of which 100-200 hand
assembled related.
288 T280-400 A » EH100-200 A\AFITHM LA ©

Heshan #1LL 2007

» Established in 2007 for printing children’s and
conventional books.
1200742237 7 52 BB Y BB R E BV ENRIZR T o

¢« Awarded ISO9001; ISO14001 & ICTI-ETP certifications.
#181S09001 ; ISO14001% ICTI-ETP 533% o

*1,900-3,200 full time workers of which 900-

2,200 hand assembled related.
288 T11,900-3,200A > EF900-2,200 A\AF TIMILTA ©

Vietnam & 2019

¢ Awarded ISO9001; ISO14001 & ICTI-ETP certifications.
H181S09001 ; 1ISO14001K%ICTI-ETP53:% ©

» Vietnam operation started in Q4 2019.
MFERRER2019FEFOSIRE ©

e 630 full time workers.
2HET630A
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a Financial Highlights
B %5 45 2

2023 2022
Year ended 31 December —=—= —=——
BE+A=+—HLEFE HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT
Revenue =R £ 2,386,862 2,950,112
Profit for the Year NEEEF 131,268 54,508
Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders KATREHEFTEA
of the Company FE(LEF 135,155 66,038
Basic Earnings per Share (HK cents) FREAREH) GBW) 15.0 7.3
Dividends per Share (HK cents) FRIRE (BW)
¢ Interim Dividend o REARGE 4 4
+  Final Dividend o KHEIRE
¢ Special Dividend o HRIRE 5 5
13 13
2023 2022
At 31 December —E—= —=——
+—-B=+—H HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BlsFT
Property, Plant and Equipment Y E R A=Y ] 1,482,133 1,417,683
Net Current Assets TRENEEFE 1,591,187 1,739,711
Total Assets HmEE 3,811,213 3,985,148
Equity Attributable to Equity Shareholders TATERFAA
of the Company FE{LE 3,046,006 3,054,670
Profit Attributable to Equity
Revenue Shareholders of the Company
EXEE ARG ABEET
HKS$ million HK$ million
BIEEHT BIEERT
4,000 140 135
3,600 3,529
120
3,084
3,200 2.950 109
2,800 2,554 100
2,387
2,400 80 76
2,000 66
1,600 60 52
1,200 40
800
20
400
0 0
FY FY FX

MEEE MEFE MEFE MEFE HEFE

2019 2020

2021
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2022 2023

FY
MERFEE MBFE MBEFE MBFE MBEE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFEHRS

“The Hung Hing Printing Group remained
resilient in a highly challenging macro-
economic and business environment
in 2023. We possess a solid foundation
that empowers us to overcome these
obstacles.”

20235 » 2IXRBEHENHRIRITRIATE
Pk > ZAT > IEERENRISE BERENEERV R
BRAE(T S IEEE - RERBHIERE > TAFI5E
SMEBRIISIRERR - 1

Matthew

Yum Chak Ming,
Executive Chairman
1EEREE

BITERE
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Full Year Results

The Hung Hing Printing Group remained resilient in a highly
challenging macro-economic and business environment in 2023 in
both the mainland China domestic market and global export markets.
Our vertically integrated supply chain, economies of scale, and strong
customer relationships provided a stable foundation for us to overcome
the delayed resumption of normal economic activities and a volatile
geopolitical climate.

Persistently high interest rates and geopolitical conflict affected
consumer confidence in international markets, while the Chinese
domestic market exhibited a slower recovery than expected. Faced
with higher capital costs and the possibility of a recession, customers
were conservative in placing new or repeat orders. Foreign exchange
fluctuations reduced compared to 2022 as RMB depreciation slowed.

We continued with our policy of order rationalisation to conserve
margins. Soft paper prices helped some businesses achieve savings,
and prudent cost management strategies were successful in improving
our margins to 16.3% (2022: 14.2%). Along with the progressive
recognition of a one-off gain from the land resumption in Wuxi,
these factors helped the Group deliver a profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the company of HK$135 million, an increase of 104.7%
over 2022 despite a decline of 19.1% in revenues.

Basic earnings per share increased to HK15.0 cents, compared to
HK7.3 cents in 2022.

Dividends

On the basis of our strong cash position, and in line with our dividend
policy that aims to maximise shareholder returns, the Board of
Directors has recommended a special dividend of HK5 cents per share
and a final dividend of HK4 cents per share, payable on 21 June 2024
to shareholders whose names appeared on the Register of Members
of the Company as of 6 June 2024. Including the interim dividend of
HK4 cents per share, total dividend for the year stands at HK13 cents
per share (2022: HK13 cents per share).

Dividends per Share
SREE
HK Cents
il
16
14 13 13 13 13
12
10
10
8
W Special
6 Dividend
RIS
4 Final
Dividend
2 REARG S
Interim
0 Dividend
FY FY FY FY FY PHBEE
MHREE MREE MHREE MHEE MHREE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
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REXE

2023% » EREBEEMBERBDHAT MK
B > IREENRI S BRIV SRR SRER FE (Y R E P sth
MEXHOTIBHRREE - FENEERSH
FE#E ~ MIBEENRENT G > HEBER
ETREER  fRAETCHEESDIEREEN
SERMGHEURIRIETRIEREER -

EHHEEGE LR EFESERMGBUAERE
& > MPEAHISHNERTREREE -\
HEESMA EAMAEHBENEERE ) R T
FTERBIAEIE o (BE2022F /8 » ARIERZ(ER
EBEREE > SMNERBTREBU ©

BMEEFRELTENRILUIRSERN  £E
THEBMENEREBPIMERE » EEFED
A EIREREFEENRIEFAE16.3% (2022 £F -
14.2%) ° BRILZ4h » EMIFE MR B EAE R
H—RMREZET AR ALELEEEEBETH®
19.1% » EENAAEREIFE AREEF TR
2022EE 18 1N104.7% E A HE1.35(8 7T ©

ERERZFIEINEANE15.01l > M2022E5E
w7 31 o

(2]

ERERESRA > UESHM—BLERBNR
FRRERPIBR SR - EFTERREFIR
BERBESIKKRIBRESRBEAIWL B
2024F 6821 Bk F 10202456 H6 HRTIEAA
BIiRRAMEARER - Lk EBERTHRES
RRABEAML > 2FREHFERBE131 (2022
F  ZRBE3MW) -

FY FY FY FY FY
R R MBEE MBEE MBEE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
HK cents #fill | HKcents i | HKcents i |~ HKcents #fll = HK cents il
4 6 5 5 5
3 4 4 4 4
3 3 4 4 4



Strategic investments in future growth

Our strategic priority in 2023 was to maintain our focus on long-term
value creation for shareholders through investment in future growth and
to achieve a stronger leadership position as soon as market recovery
begins.

In pursuit of this strategy, Hung Hing continued with our programme
to upgrade, automate, and diversify our manufacturing facilities.
HH Dream, our 35,000 sq. m. facility in Hanoi, Vietnam, was fully
operational with ideal capacity utilisation level and increased its
turnover by addressing demand from export customers. The plant has
improved our competitive position by meeting the needs of customers
who prefer working with suppliers with production capabilities spread
across Asia. During the year, we acquired a new piece of land near
the existing plant in Hanoi that will support our future expansion in the
market.

In mainland China, we completed the relocation of our plant in Wuxi.
Following a temporary business interruption during the process, the
new plant is fully operational and well-positioned to serve the Chinese
domestic market with advanced production capabilities, including food
and pharmaceutical packaging. We continued to upgrade our presence
in Zhongshan with the setting up of a smart warehouse, which will
streamline our manpower needs and serve to increase the efficiency of
our other business units. The advantageous location of our Zhongshan
facility will allow us to achieve better delivery timeframes in future,
supplemented by our network of state-of-the-art facilities in Hong Kong,
Shenzhen, Heshan, and Foshan.

R ERERRIER

EMT2023F N F EREERFERELURERK
BR > RNARRGERERE  RAREENS
FEML > BEEEB T ER -

AEREERBERE > BRESHESIEFAR
BEMEMIREREERENTE o R
A A935,000F /5 KHH DreamfiEE 2 EIBE T »
TEMRAELEFBRZEEKTE > MEORTAH
EREHEEBRELA - ZREMARTEEN
MEN > AARLERIEEREEENRREM A
HEAEEERNNMBERSIE > HH DreamERER
BAFINTEK o« £ BFATFERNIREBREM
IMEEA—IRIT i > MR EEFIRKIBEAE M E
BHEE -

EHREAM > RAIEETHRERBBRENTL
12 o BEABUBRE R ER R ERATE - B
BEREEZERAEE  AfETENEERES
BEERNERIIIOE > RNABRTISR
B o MAIFERA R LURERRE > EERE
—EEREREE  MREANEE > TEEHME
FSEBPIRVRE - LR E N BHMIBME - KA
BN FITER RINRZ G5 > WEREE ~ BRI~
BUNABLECERBEZLIERTNERUEM
[yl
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Expanding our portfolio to address modern needs

We progressed with supplementing our core business by developing
an expanded portfolio of value-added offerings that address current
and future customer expectations and needs.

STEM Plus, our brand of STEM educational content and events,
completed the integration of our new acquisition Active Minds Limited
(AML), a retailer and distributor of children’s books and toys. With
a retail network of ten high-footfall stores across Hong Kong, the
two businesses have strong synergies that will bring us closer to
the consumer market. They will enable us to stay abreast of the
latest consumption trends and provide our clients with timely market
intelligence. The brand achieved satisfactory topline results through
sales of Al training content to schools, as well as through book
fairs, promotional events, and educational expos. We continued our
sponsorship of the inter-school Al Formula Edge Competition at the
AsiaWorld-Expo for the third year, strengthening the positioning of the
STEM Plus brand as the leading platform for STEM education in Hong
Kong. Our edutainment platform for young learners, Yum Me Play, will
also continue to use the experiential model to strengthen our business.

Consumer concern for the environment has led to increased demand
for more eco-friendly, recycled, and plastic-free products from our
key export markets. More than 95% of the paper used in the Group’s
production processes is either recycled paper or paper certified by
the Forest Stewardship Council. We also continuously seek out and
develop greener production solutions and processes such as the
adoption of mineral oil free ink and a centralised ink supply system to
reduce wastage. Our innovation hub Beluga, also collaborated with
our other divisions like paper engineering, operations, and sales and
marketing to develop new products and offerings in this area.

Creating sustainable values

We strive to be a responsible corporate citizen, balancing healthy
business performance with environmental and social considerations.
Our ethos over the past seven decades has always been to create
enduring value and serve as a long-term partner to customers,
employees, and shareholders.

Our environmental, social and governance policies protect the
environment, promote the welfare of employees and communities,
and foster ethical behaviour. The solar panel systems installed at our
Hong Kong, Shenzhen, Zhongshan and Heshan plants generated a
total of 5,209,311 kWh green energy for the Group during the year,
representing nearly 9.4% of our consumption. We also implemented
various measures to help save energy and water consumption across
our operation in Hong Kong, mainland China and Vietnam.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F4 R

REEmASUREHISEHER

AEGERRSHRRNPENTR > HAIFEH
TR EER » UINREENZOET

EFFITHEREZNEEHH ML STEM Plus »
ERNEAZAWENRERE RIATERD
HERBARAR (TERY) - ZABEEEBHER
10RRMLHNZTERE > MRABNEEAILUHR
BANHENE  RRMNEMTHETS > 818
HEBY  tMAFRREEMAETENGES -
STEM PlusiZ B A2 RIRMHA T EREENAE -
BTER - EEIPNHEEESE > EL
MRRE R - MMEEEB T NER IS ES
BMMEIETREATEEE- KA EXNEFHL
1 UEESTEM PusfEABTEBTERS «
it ~ TRRRBEB(STEMHEE T aRIMAEMAL o &
EEYum Me PlayF 8 TREBRSERMBRE
EEBMARICETS

BEHEENRBENEDMAE > TEHOTEH
RMF -~ BIWBEMNELEMRYTRITREIEM
EEEEEREPERNMRIR > B95% = BER
FEBMEEZE GURNER - EEEBRES
TR ERR AR EIRR - BARRRYNGANEE
IZ > IRAA SRV hENERPREE
RGUEREFEM o HAIBRIFT P OBeluga7R %
EHMEBPIMARR TR « &8  HENTISHERE
FRTEF > AEBIRFRONERMRE

ISR TENEE

FERERA—EEEERNEELR » MMER
NEFRBHEERE > BRTFAORENT
g EEE70FMEE S - RANZROEEKRR
ERHERANEE > HATF s BEINRRHNER
HASEBH -

BRI - HENERBERNERE » 2RER
B REETNHENEN » UKRBFEET
%o BFIESE - R FLUANBLUBRERET
KIZAESERM > 1E2023 FE & H 4 E5,209,311F
ERNGERETR » MEEERHESZR.4% > [
RESE « PEAAERENERESHESEES
BERBR KR o



Promoting employee welfare was another key consideration as we
resumed normal operations. As we move towards more sophisticated
manufacturing and increased automation, we seek to improve the
skillsets and opportunities of our employees through a broad range of
training including technology, safety and internal job rotation. We have
also set up an “Innovative Team” to uphold the Group’s innovative
culture. Employees are incentivised for thinking out of the box to create
new ideas for design, production and operational improvement.

Outlook

2024 holds out both challenges and opportunities. Interest rates,
especially in export markets, are expected to decline to stimulate
spending, which will likely improve consumer confidence. On the other
hand, geopolitical conflict, supply chain and logistics disruption can
trigger price fluctuations and scarcity in raw materials.

Looking forward, we are ready to take advantage of any economic
recovery with our automated and integrated capabilities. Despite the
market disruptions seen in recent years, we are taking a long-term view
towards the domestic market of mainland China. We have intensified
efforts in growing our business by leveraging our diversified product
portfolio, strong reputation and trusted partnership built over the years.
The Greater Bay Area in particular presents tremendous opportunities
in terms of both business growth and talent acquisition for the Group.
With a market possessing significant consumption power, it is an
attractive market for STEM Plus and AML to expand its educational
offerings over the medium to long term.

We will continue to strengthen our core business with unswerving
commitment to product quality and operational efficiency. Our strong
cash position gives us the ability to invest strategically in the future
while pursuing innovative opportunities to expand our scope of
services.

| would like to express my thanks to my talented team, management,
board and shareholders, for their support and efforts.

BEXBZHMEEREE > RATEMERS
Tt - AR ERRVIENRERBINBEHE
Irr > HMAABETIREEZAE - RERIM
ZEMABTIEHFS - DURA IR RAEK
FHMEREREET - HATHILT —@TRIFHN
M BRESHEEBAIRTE - MRS TR
ERTME > SR - EENEESFERRD
BIFRES o

RE

2024 F iR G R IEMPEANRIBEI—F - HFITEH
FZE > LHEEHOSS - BHEFTE > MR
BHBIRSHEERD - Z—HH » #KEUE
ERURKMFESE R R E A SRR EHER
IREFHFEIGER o

RERK > HAETEBCHMEBRSHHEAAE
H REMERBESEERPHENT S
B @EMEHERERL > EEEHPEAM
HIENERERBERNBMREREMERN >
i EBRMES TENERES - EEREIL
NREFBEUKREZERNRESIERE > E—F
EHEBIER - FHIRKEE > MEAERIEH
BEXREH > TR—EHSFNALTE > TREAR
HHEE S HSTEM PlusfBRE KRR » 2—18
BARS|INNTE » TRRAR - RAEENE
BRI o

RSB EEREERNZOES » THREAER
BEMEENEX - ARMBRRRRE - EEES
BARBEERETREEREUEERKER [
FERSENEH RS -

Tt > HERAEES—UET - BEEE - EFM
RRFAREFRZHE > RBEMFANHERE - F
B NMEBOZEH o
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A&’ Management Discussion and Analysis

ERE R

2023 brought a range of challenges and uncertainties in the global
market. Sluggish economic recovery, mounting interest rates,
inflationary pressures and escalating geopolitical tensions caused
volatility in the business environment. Hung Hing Printing Group
maintained its focus on delivering quality and value to domestic and
overseas customers to drive business. Improved gross margins,
alongside the progressive recognition of a one-off gain from the land
resumption in Wuxi, helped achieve a profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the company of HK$135 million (2022: HK$66
million) despite a decline of 19.1% in revenue to HK$2,387 million.

Our focus was to conserve our margins while establishing a strong
foundation for future growth. Our ongoing concentration on high
value-added projects was helpful in this regard. High levels of
automation helped us reduce labour costs in addition to improving
efficiency. Agile paper procurement strategies enabled us to take
advantage of soft paper prices, further augmenting the bottom-line
results of all our business units. These factors, along with slowing
RMB depreciation, led to a 2.1% point improvement in gross profit
margin over 2022 to 16.3%.

The establishment of our manufacturing facility HH Dream in Vietnam
in 2019 has proved extremely valuable in strengthening the Group’s
versatility, geographic diversity and capacity. The facility operated at
satisfactory capacity utilisation level throughout the year, increasing
its turnover and supported the Book and Packaging Printing business
unit with a focus on paper toys and packaging printing.

We continued to advance several initiatives to position us
advantageously when the market recovers. STEM Plus completed
the integration of the new acquisition, book and toy distributor and
retailer Active Minds Limited (AML), during the year. By venturing
downstream into retail with AML’s network of bookstores, we
gathered firsthand information about consumer behaviour and market
trends. These insights are a valuable resource for our publishing
customers and help to strengthen our bonding with them.

2023%F » 2EHH MBI RBEBRE © LKE
PHRIE S FIK LA - BIRES 0 UBRMEBUERZ
BRCEWRIBFEAE c EEEBERT » IREE
RIEERNAENINEFIREEEILEERUHES
ERER - TERENENE > MLERERES
HBERRN— RN EES AR > FItEEEE
BETE19.1%EB123.87(87T » ARFERTFAEA
FE{LEF R B HE1.35(8 7T (20224  ##56,600
BT °

HMZBZRERBEURSERN > LR RREREIL
BEEHR > SERPLKR—EZEIHESEEE
mART - ZBSEBREALIRETURES
ME > EEMBERER > RARREENRREBR
B > EFRAEFBEFIG RS EF - BLERE > M
EARERERE  19HBEERENRER2022F
EMN2AMEED2E16.3% °

IR 2019 F R B B 1L R E ERREHH Dream >
HMEEENZTEERD « OHMEERMMERE
R ERSEE - ARFEEA—BERFER
EREEAE » EXRFEEM > BRHAEERE
FEENR £ FFER PR ARSI A SUEN B ENRIBRTS ©

BRPEEETSRAINEED S UUATHISE
B o 79 HAIBEFITRESHBBNRERER
MAZERDHEBERIZARAE (TRE)) - BAE
BENTEEERE > P ESEMEEETANS
SRENE—FEN > HEENHRERRSR > &
BIFEEENER > BHHMAEBRE R INRREIE
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Revenue by Business Unit
in Year 2023

“ECCEE
HMEBHIPIB D 2 EXEE
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Revenue by Business Unit
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a Business Unit Report
HPEARS

Book and Packaging Printing (BPP) remained the largest Group
business. Revenues stood at HK$1,700 million, a decline of 18.1%
from 2022, owing to subdued consumer confidence and a lag effect in
order placement especially in the second half of the year. Soft paper
prices, and rationalisation of order and product portfolio augmented
margins. The business also reaped the benefits of increased
automation and workflow optimisation. As a result of these factors,
BPP was able to maintain profit at HK$122.6 million compared to
HK$124.5 million in 2022.

The new HH Dream manufacturing facilities in Hanoi, Vietnam,
strengthens the Group’s competitive advantage, allowing us to
support our customers to rebalance their orders in Asia. We will
continue to expand our capabilities in Vietnam, and have acquired
a new 45,000 sq. m. piece of land near the current site to prepare
for future business and capacity expansion, in light of the increasing
foreign investment into Vietnam, especially around Hanoi. The
expansion will also allow us to tap into the demand of the domestic
market.

The Consumer Product Packaging (CPP) business unit was
impacted by continuing weak consumer sentiment in the domestic
market. While the relocation of the Wuxi plant caused disruption in
order fulfilment potential, the increased automation and adoption of
Industry 4.0 techniques helped CPP narrow its loss to HK$51 million
(excluding the effect of progressive recognition of the proceeds of the
land resumption), compared to a loss of HK$66 million in 2022.
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During the year, the new facility in Wuxi was completed and is expected
to be operating in full swing in Q1 2024. The new plant has a 9-color
state-of-the-art UV printing press which will enable it to produce high-
end packaging boxes for the cosmetic and pharmaceutical industry.
It will further expand our foothold in the food and FMCG sectors as
the domestic economy of mainland China improves. In addition, the
company enriched its offerings to include rigid gift boxes, a popular

trend in the cosmetics and high-end branded market.
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The Corrugated Box (CB) business posted a decline in external sales
due to weak industry demand. Soft paper pricing affected margins
and led to a loss of HK$9 million. These unfavourable conditions
were alleviated partially by long-term contracts with customers. The
business focused on improving the synergies among the Group’s
network of manufacturing facilities to improve its service offerings,
enhance coverage, and increase its competitive position. These will
prove valuable in tapping into logistics and infrastructure developments
in mainland China such as the new highway network connecting cities
in the Greater Bay Area (GBA).

The performance of the Paper Trading (PT) business was also
impacted by slow industry demand. A loss of HK$5 million was
incurred, mainly due to weak customer confidence as reflected in
cautious paper pricing throughout the year. The business continued to
play a vital role in our vertically-integrated strategy which allowed timely
and competitive paper sourcing for the BPP and CPP businesses.
The PT business expanded its scope with specialist types of paper for
overseas customers.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Risks and uncertainties may affect the Group’s business performance
or growth prospects, leading to a divergence from expected or historical
results. The Group faces certain generic risks that commonly apply to
players within the sector, such as fluctuations in exchange rates and
commodities prices, including paper prices, and inflation in labour cost.

Risks that affected the Group’s activities over the past few years
included major disruptions to the global supply chain and abrupt
increases in logistics costs fueled by pandemics, political disputes and
public policy restrictions (movement of people and social distancing)
that impacted labour supply. Additionally, the availability of government
subsidies to alleviate the business impact of these factors remains
uncertain. Geopolitics including but not limited to conflicts in Eastern
Europe would continue to affect world trade, and inevitably the Group as
well.
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Future Business Developments

We ended 2023 with early signs of a slow recovery in global business
sentiment and improvement in order pipelines for the publishing and
premium packaging segments. We are cautiously optimistic that the
recovery of the USA market will strengthen our business in 2024 and
provide some growth momentum. In addition, our Vietnam facility is
well positioned to take on additional business flowing into Southeast
Asia for manufacturing. Following a brief period of turmoil, shipping
conditions appear to have returned to stability, despite unsettled
geopolitical conditions. Systemic reforms and expectations of cuts in
interest rates will help provide customers with more confidence and
trigger further order placement.

The Group remains committed to improving its core printing business
with implementation of Print 4.0 technologies across its facilities. Data
analytics and new techniques in workflow automation, will enable us
to improve efficiency and resource alignment. Furthermore, we will
work with key customers to expand our products and services, sales
channels, and markets of operation. This will engender customer
loyalty and sustainable long-term growth.

The expected completion of mega infrastructure projects in the
GBA in 2024, including the Shenzhen-Zhongshan Bridge and the
Huangmao Cross-Sea Channel Bridge, will dramatically enhance
connectivity, making travel between cities in the area possible within
an hour. This development positions companies within the GBA at
a significant advantage over those based elsewhere, thanks to the
area’s productivity cluster. With our strategic presence in Shenzhen,
Zhongshan, Foshan, and Heshan, we are well poised to capitalise on
the integrated strengths of our manufacturing facilities, allowing us to
streamline our operations, foster synergies, and boost both efficiency
and productivity. Looking forward to 2024, the Group is committed to
driving business growth by leveraging these advancements to expand
our revenue streams in the domestic market.

STEM Plus will continue with its event-based growth approach,
organising book fairs, education expos and inter-school Al-based
competitions in Hong Kong and the GBA area. It helps strengthen
Hung Hing’'s market position and brand awareness in the industry.

With our strong financial position, and solid experience over the
years in managing business in mainland China and Vietnam, we are
optimistic about our development in mainland China and Southeast Asia
in the long term.
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Strong Financial Position: Net Cash Holding of
HK$996 million

The Group maintained a robust cash position with HK$996 million net
cash in hand (total cash including structured bank deposits and net of
bank borrowings). The financial strength enables us to invest for long-
term sustainable growth and reward our shareholders.

The Group deployed RMB-link structured bank deposits (2023 year-
end balance at HK$301 million) to enhance yield and at the same time,
provide hedging for RMB requirements.

During the year, the Group spent over HK$264 million on capital
projects to construct new facilities, expand and upgrade existing
capacities (including land reserve acquisition), and acquire new
equipment and technology to support various stages of development at
the Heshan, Vietnam and Wuxi facilities.

The gearing ratio was controlled at a conservative level of 4.0% (2022:
6.0%) in light of the higher interest rate environment.

To mitigate exchange risk while meeting operating cash requirements,
54% of total cash including structured deposits (vs. 2022: 49%) was
held in RMB, while the rest was mainly held in USD 39% (vs. 2022:
46%) and HKD 4% (vs. 2022: 3%). Loans were confined to HKD and
USD to control currency exposure and mostly at fixed rate to minimise
interest expenses. We also carefully managed our loan portfolio, using
a combination of floating and fixed interest rate facilities depending on
financial market conditions to minimise interest rate risk.
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a’ Corporate Governance Report

EXEERHRS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices and procedures. The corporate
governance principle of the Company emphasizes on accountability
and transparency and is adopted in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. In addition the Company will strive
to continuously improve these practices and cultivate an ethical
corporate culture.

Code on Corporate Governance Practices

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out in the Code
of Corporate Governance (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix
C1 (formerly Appendix 14) to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). The Company has complied with all the applicable code
provisions in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2023 except for the following deviations:

Code Provision C 2.1 provides that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The roles of the chief executive officer have
been undertaken by Mr. Yum Chak Ming, Matthew, the Executive
Chairman of the Company. The Board is of the opinion that it is
appropriate and in the best interests of the Company that Mr. Yum
should hold these offices. The Board believes that it is effective to
monitor and assess business performance in a manner that properly
protects the interests of shareholders.
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Board Composition and Board Practices

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is composed of
9 directors, of which 2 are Executive Directors including the Executive
Chairman, 4 are Non-executive Directors and 3 are Independent Non-
executive Directors. All the Independent Non-executive Directors have
appropriate professional qualifications, experience or related industry
expertise. The Directors biography and relevant relationships amongst
them are set out in the Biographical Details of Directors section on
pages 42 to 45 of this Annual Report.

Review will be made regularly by the Board to ensure that it has a
balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirement of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). Also, a balanced
composition of Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors is
maintained to ensure independence and effective management.
The Company has satisfied the Listing Rules in having one of the
Independent Non-executive Directors with appropriate accounting
qualifications and expertise to sit in the Audit Committee.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Director has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent Non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines. The Company considers that all Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent.

Independent Non-executive Directors are identified in all corporate
communications. An updated list of the Directors identifying the
Independent Non-executive Directors and the roles and functions of the
Directors is maintained on the websites of the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

When selecting potential candidates for directors, skills, experience,
expertise, his devotion of time, potential conflicts of interests are key
factors for consideration. The Nomination Committee was set up to
make recommendation to the Board on the selection and nomination
of candidates for directorship. Majority of members of the Nomination
Committee are Independent Non-executive Directors.
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The Board is accountable to shareholders and is responsible for the
formulation of the Group’s strategy, overseeing the management of the
business and affairs of the Group.

Key and important decisions are fully discussed at the board meetings.
All Directors have been fully consulted about any matters proposed
for inclusion in the agenda. The Executive Chairman has delegated
the responsibility for drawing up the agenda for each board meeting to
the Company Secretary. With the support of the Company Secretary,
the Executive Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly
briefed on issues arising at board meetings and receive adequate and
reliable information in a timely manner.

Daily operation and managing of the business of the Group, inter
alia, the implementation of strategies are delegated to the Executive
Directors and the management team. They report periodically to the
Board their work and business decisions.

Board meetings are scheduled to be held at regular interval. The Board
would meet more frequently as and when required. An annual general
meeting at which the Company’s auditor attended was convened on 25
May 2023 for the financial year ended 31 December 2022.
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The attendance record of the Directors at the board meetings and the

BE_Z_=F+"A=+—HLFE > EFH

annual general meeting for the year ended 31 December 2023 is as FEEFCEEMRRBFRGZLHUNT -
follows:
Attendance
HEE
Board meetings AGM
EEEES RRBEAE
Executive Chairman BiTER
Yum Chak Ming, Matthew 1178 4/4 11
Executive Directors WTES
Yum Christopher Carson FmE(RZZ2=%F
(appointed on 25 May 2023) AAZ+HBERT) 2/2 N/A 5E
Sung Chee Keung (resigned on 25 May 2023) RE@®R(RZE_=
HERZ+HHEE) 2/2 11
Non-executive Directors JEHITES
Hirofumi Hori IEtEsE 4/4 11
Aki Tsuge VatE & 4/4 11
Yam Hon Ming, Tommy 1E/28H 4/4 1M
Hitoshi Shibasaki (appointed on 26 May 2023) 4El&{— (R-T==
ERAZ+BEZEE) 212 N/A R
Yuji Motomatsu (resigned on 1 April 2023) IR
(MZBZ=FWA—HFT) 1 N/A FiEF
Independent Non-executive Directors BIIEMITES
Luk Koon Hoo [EER= 4/4 1M
Lo Chi Hong HEELE 4/4 11
Tan Chuen Yan, Paul BREC(RE==
(appointed on 25 May 2023) HAZ+HBESRE) 2/2 N/A R
Yap, Alfred Donald (resigned on 25 May 2023) BEX&H (R _ZE_=%F
HEAZ+ABARME) 212 11

Notice of at least fourteen days are given to the Directors for regular
meetings, while Board papers are sent to the Directors not less than
three days before the scheduled date of a board or board committee
meeting. The Directors can attend meetings in persons or through
other means of electronic communication. The Company Secretary
ensures that the procedure and all applicable rules and regulations
are strictly and fully complied with. Minutes of board meetings and
board committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are
available for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by
any Directors.

Directors have full access to information on the Group and are able to
obtain independent professional advice whenever necessary.
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Training and Support for Directors EEZIGNRZIE

Every newly appointed Director will meet with other Directors and BHEESRKEEMEERFIEETEASTHE
key management executives, and will receive a comprehensive, TI#HREXEZERFERZEE  ERXRAEMR
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment.  ZFtEHE5] - HE » ZESRIZRFAEEEREE
Subsequently, he will receive briefings and other professional MMHEX%EE > BEEHAIQAFEEREEERE
development necessary to ensure he has a proper understanding of T2 > TRE2BEAKNEAATZERE °

the operations and business of the Company and he is fully aware of

his responsibility with the Company.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional ZAABEBEEEESHSEZELERERUTNH
development to refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure their FH#H KA B BEETEGEZEERAKRIIEM
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Directors are HBZBERTHESSELHEM - ESEESHER
also invited to participate in Company events to familiarize themselves ~ ATIES) » UBEARATEE » AR THREAR
with the operations of the Company and opportunity to communicate BEEEBHEMKERE -BETESETHEHEME
with other management members of the Company. Some directors also ~ REERSIRMUHANATHE ZIFF AT E o
attended training seminars as provided by other professional bodies or

as referred to by the Company.

The records of training as received by each Director in 2023 are SRZEFN_T_=FFRIEZxBHMmT -
summarised as follows:

Type of trainings

b=k i)
Executive Chairman BiITER
Yum Chak Ming, Matthew 1EE8R A,B,C
Executive Director BiITES
Yum Christopher Carson (appointed on 25 May 2023) {Eilfs (W=_EBE-_=FH18_+HBEST) A,B,C
Sung Chee Keung (resigned on 25 May 2023) RER (MR IBEZ=FRAZ+HBT) A,B
Non-executive Directors EMITES S
Hirofumi Hori g A B 8,
Aki Tsuge HoiE A B &
Yam Hon Ming, Tommy 1E7£E8 A B g)
Hitoshi Shibasaki (appointed on 26 May 2023) RE - (RIZE2I=FRB =+ HEZE) A, B g
Yuiji Motomatsu (resigned on 1 April 2023) FIRBR(MZEZ=FMA—HFHI) A, B %
%
Independent Non-executive Directors BIIERITES 'cg':
Luk Koon Hoo 532 A, B =
Lo Chi Hong mEE A,B
Tan Chuen Yan, Paul (appointed on 25 May 2023) BREC(ME=FHA-+HHEZMT) A,B
Yap, Alfred Donald (resigned on 25 May 2023) BEXEWE_=FRA-+HEHT) A,B
A attending professional seminars/conferences/forums A HEREWSS % RE

B:  reading materials relating to general business, regulatory updates on listing B : HI:EAR—R%E - FHREEEERBE UK

rules and board practices EEGERZER
C:  attending corporate events/site visits C: WEARES BHER
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Corporate Governance Policy and Duties

The board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate
governance functions as set out below:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors;
and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors set out in Appendix C3 (formerly Appendix 10) of the
Listing Rules. The Executive Chairman or the Chairman of the
Audit Committee is the person to be notified for securities dealings
by Directors and a designated form is used for notification and
acknowledgement purpose.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, their compliance with the required standards of dealings
and its code of conduct regarding the directors’ securities transaction
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

Senior Management of the Company is also required to comply with
the guidelines on similar terms as set out in the Model Code.
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Internal Control

The Company places great importance on internal control and risk
management to safeguard the assets of the Company and the interests
of shareholders. The Board has overall responsibility for the system of
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Audit Committee
assists the Board in meeting its responsibilities for maintaining an
effective system of internal control. The Audit Committee reviews the
process by which the Group evaluates its control environment and risk
assessment process, and the way in which business and control risks
are managed through the assistance of the Company’s Internal Audit
Department.

The Company’s Internal Audit Department assesses risk exposure,
formulates audit plan and ensures the audit programs cover key
internal control areas of operating subsidiaries on a rotational basis
for the review by the Audit Committee. Special review may also be
performed on areas of concern identified by management or the Audit
Committee from time to time.

The Internal Audit Department monitors the internal control
procedures and systems of the Group and reports its findings and
recommendations to management of the Company and the Audit
Committee. The department also monitors the follow-up actions agreed
upon in response to its recommendations and reports to the Audit
Committee the progress of implementation of those recommendations.

With the assistance of the Audit Committee and the Company’s Internal
Audit Department, the Board is satisfied that the overall financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk management of the
Group continues to be effective.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. The Directors ensure the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group is in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The statement of the Auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 56 to 62 of this Annual Report.

POBBEE

EREFEERAMEEREARER > UFREE
REBERRFED - EFTEEERNIEE
HIE > WigsTHAY - BZEESHHEEEE
THEFERAREEHEZEE - E%EET
ey AN EE M T HEEIFIRIE 2 12 /7 K AL B 5T 72
P UREBA AT AR EZEFIZ MBI EEE
BREZERBRZHE -

ERBEZ AEPEZEPITE AR « HIETE &S
THFREZIIFRBEEERZEENBARZ
EENMEITHE - AABRIAZRENRE
EEERH MEEENELEZETHITHIZ
F1E > REELEPITN AR RETRBIER o

ABEZBPIERFEENBEITRFREE
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Auditor’s Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Auditor of the Company
will receive approximately HK$2,878,000 (2022: HK$2,706,000) for
their audit service. Remuneration for non-audit services which covered
taxation and other services provided to the Group was approximately
HK$834,000 (2022: HK$533,000) in the same period.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises of 3 Independent Non-
executive Directors and 1 Non-executive Director. They are Mr. Lo Chi
Hong (Committee Chairman), Mr. Luk Koon Hoo, Mr. Tan Chuen Yan,
Paul and Mr. Hirofumi Hori. The Committee’s authority and duties are
set out in written terms of reference which are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The policy and structure for all remuneration of Executive Directors
and the Senior Management were reviewed by the Committee.
Remuneration, including basic salary, performance bonus, long term
incentive plan of the Executive Directors and Senior Management
is based on skills, knowledge, involvement and performance of the
individuals by reference to the Company’s performance and profitability.
Annual salary adjustment and profit linked performance bonus are
subject to review and approval by the Committee. A Restricted Share
Award Scheme was in place to attract, motivate and retain employees
and tie their interest to the long-term growth of the Company.

No individual director and senior manager are allowed to determine his
or her own remuneration.

Executive Directors are not eligible for additional remuneration
of director fee for Board activities. Director fee for Non-executive
Directors is subject to annual review for shareholders’ approval at the
annual general meeting. Reimbursement is allowed for reasonable
out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with the performance
of their duties including attendance at board meetings and committee
meetings.

The Committee met twice in the financial year ended 31 December
2023 with a 100% attendance by all committee members.
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During the year, the Committee reviewed and recommended to the
Board for approval the followings:

— the incentive bonus program of Executive Directors and Senior
Management as linked to the financial target of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2023;

— the salary adjustment of Executive Directors and Senior
Management taken into account of the Group annual salary review
policy and performance of individuals;

— the list of participants and the execution of the share award
scheme of the past year; and

— director fee for the newly joined Directors.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises of 3 Independent Non-executive
Directors, Mr. Tan Chuen Yan, Paul (Committee Chairman), Mr. Luk
Koon Hoo, Mr. Lo Chi Hong, 1 Non-executive Director, Mr. Hirofumi
Hori, and the Executive Chairman, Mr. Yum Chak Ming, Matthew. The
defined terms of reference of the Committee are set out in writing and
are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Committee is responsible for making recommendation to the Board
for selection and nomination of directors, and the succession planning
of directors and senior management. The Committee also reviews
the size, structure and composition of the Board with reference to the
Company’s board diversity policy and assesses the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Committee met twice in the financial year ended 31 December
2023 with a 100% attendance by all committee members.

RAEFE > ZEGRNKERESTHENUTE
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During the year, the work performed by the Committee included the
following:

— the recommendation of the retiring directors for re-election at the
annual general meeting;

— the review of composition of the Board;

— the assessment of independence of the Independent Non-
executive Directors;

— the nomination of Mr. Yum Christopher Carson as Executive
Director to replace Mr. Sung Chee Keung who resigned on 25 May
2023;

— the nomination of Mr. Hitoshi Shibasaki as Non-executive Director
to replace Mr. Yuji Motomatsu who resigned on 1 April 2023; and

— the nomination of Mr. Tan Chuen Yan, Paul as independent Non-
executive Director to replace Mr. Yap, Alfred Donald who retired
by rotation at the annual general meeting held on 25 May 2023 but
did not offer himself for re-election.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy since 26 November
2013, which sets the approach to achieve and maintain diversity of
the Board to enhance quality of its performance. The Policy aims to
achieve diversity through the consideration of a number of factors
including but not limited to skills, regional and industry experience,
background, age, race, gender and other qualities. These differences
will be taken into account in determining the optimum composition of
the Board. All Board appointments are based on merit, in the content of
the talents, skills and experience, and taking into account diversity.

The Nomination Committee will report annually on the composition
of the Board under diversified perspective, and monitor the
implementation of this policy to ensure its effectiveness. It will discuss
any revisions that may be required and recommend such revisions to
the Board for consideration and approval.
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The following tables further illustrate the diversity of the Board TRE—FTHPBEEAFHRAPESTRENS
members as of the date of this annual report: 7tiE

Executive Directors HITER
Yum Chak Ming, Matthew {F:Z83

Yum Christopher Carson  {EAl1Z

Non-Executive Directors JEHITESE
Hirofumi Hori s
Aki Tsuge TRIE &

Yam Hon Ming, Tommy  {E£83

Hitoshi Shibasaki Sy

Independent Non- BiEaTES
Executive Directors

Lo Chi Hong B

Luk Koon Hoo 53

Tan Chuen Yan, Paul (=
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of 3 Independent Non-executive
Directors and 1 Non-executive Director. They are Mr. Luk Koon Hoo
(Committee Chairman), Mr. Tan Chuen Yan, Paul, Mr. Lo Chi Hong
and Mr. Hirofumi Hori. The defined terms of reference of the Committee
are set out in writing and are posted on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
effectiveness of Company’s internal control and the Company’s internal
audit function, risk management system and regulatory compliance, the
review of the Company’s financial information and compliance, making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment and removal of
external auditor and assessing their independence and performance.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the Committee
held four meetings with a 100% attendance by all committee members.

The work performed by the Committee during the year included the
following:

— reviewing with the auditor on key audit, accounting matters,
internal control and updates on regulatory rules in the auditor’s
communication to Audit Committee and the draft audited financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022;

— reviewing the financial statements for the six months ended
30 June 2023 focusing on business highlights, any change of
accounting policies and practices, and compliance with accounting
standards and listing rules requirements;

— reviewing with the auditor the scope of their audit, their
communication plan, their independence, developments affecting
the Company’s business, their risk assessment and updates of
accounting standards and listing rules as affecting the Company
for the financial year ended 31 December 2023;

— reviewing the audit plan, audit progress report and significant audit

findings of the Internal Audit Department with management at all
committee meetings;
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— reviewing with management on implementation of the
recommendations made by the Internal Audit Department;

— reviewing the risk management and internal control of the Group;
and

— reviewing the continuing connected transactions for the financial
year ended 31 December 2022.

The Committee is satisfied with the review of the work of external
auditors, their audit fees, results of their audits and has recommended
to the Board their re-appointment for the financial year ending on 31
December 2024 at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company recognises the importance of communication with the
shareholders of the Company, both individual and institutional as
well as potential investors. The Company adopted a Shareholders
Communication Policy with an aim of ensuring shareholders are
provided with timely information about the Company and enabling them
to engage actively with the Company and to exercise their rights in an
informed manner.

The annual general meeting also provides a good opportunity for
communication between the Board and shareholders. The Executive
Chairman of the Board, the Chairman of the respective Committees as
well as the external auditors are normally present to answer questions
as raised by shareholders. Notice of the AGM and the related circular
are sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the
meeting.

Votes of the shareholders at general meeting will be taken by poll in
accordance with the Listing Rules. Detailed procedures for conducting
a poll will be explained to shareholders at the beginning of the general
meeting to ensure that shareholders are familiar with the voting
procedures. Each issue will be proposed by a separate resolution by
the Chairman of the general meeting. The poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange on the same
day of the general meeting.
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Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of paid-up capital
of the Company can make a requisition to convene an extraordinary
general meeting. The requisition must state the objects of the meeting
and must be signed by the relevant shareholders and deposited at the
Company’s registered office.

Shareholders holding not less than one-fortieth of the total voting rights
of all shareholders of the Company or not less than 50 shareholders
holding the shares in the Company on which there has been paid
up an average sum of not less than HK$2,000 per shareholder can
put forward proposals for consideration at a general meeting of the
Company by depositing a requisition in writing signed by the relevant
shareholders at the Company’s registered office.

Specific enquiries and suggestions by shareholders can be sent in
writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s
registered office. Shareholders are encouraged to access to the
Company website at www.hunghingprinting.com for all relevant
information including Company’s announcements, press releases,
financial highlights, financial calendar, the Company’s constitutional
documents and detailed procedures for shareholders to convene
meetings.

Investor Relations

The Company has a proactive policy for promoting investor relations
and communications by maintaining regular dialogue with institutional
shareholders, fund managers, analysts and the media. Meetings and
conference call were held with investors and analysts in order for the
Company to understand their views and to keep them abreast of the
latest developments. Inquiries on the Company were also dealt with in
an informative and timely manner.

The Company’s website at www.hunghingprinting.com also features
a dedicated Investor Relations section to facilitate communication
with shareholders and investors. Corporate information and other
relevant financial and non-financial information are made available
electronically and in a timely manner. Specific enquiries can also
be addressed to the Company’s designated personnel by email at
ir.contact@hunghingprinting.com.
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a& Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIG - HHEMREGRS

In 2023, despite the challenges posed by subdued global demand 2023% > @& X£EETE| 2 IKTE RIFINAIRE »
affecting our group turnover, we remained steadfast in our commitment EEEEELEHE » BEMARTFHETEURK
to enhancing employee well-being and environmental stewardship. RIBHENKE - TESEFNRAOZRET » &M
With the support of our Board of Directors, we intensified our efforts to #—F A HRIEECHIEEIEH > Wl TR &

combat climate change, elevating our environmental targets as outlined BHIRIEEIE » BT !

below:

Base year 2020
20208 #5F

Original Target
REER

New Target
WEE

Scope 1 & 2 CO, emission intensity

—abhBGEE (SBE—REE )
Electricity usage intensity
BEBE

Water consumption intensity

FKeEE

Non-hazardous waste intensity

EEEEYRE

Hazardous waste intensity

BEEREYRE

Reduce 10% by 2025,
average —2% per year
EI20255F 7 /010% » SFHEEFERL2%

Reduce 10% by 2025,
average —2% per year
FI2025F /1 10% » FHEERL2%

Reduce 5% by 2025,
average —1% per year
FI2025F /5% » FHEFERIM %

Reduce 5% by 2025,
average —1% per year
EI20255F 7 /V5% » FHEEER V1%

Reduce 5% by 2025,
average —1% per year
FI2025F /5% » FHEFERM%

Reduce 30% by 2030,
average —3% per year
F2030F R /L30% » FHEERL3%

Reduce 30% by 2030,
average —3% per year
EI2030FR/30% » FHEFERL3I%

Reduce 30% by 2030,
average —3% per year
E|2030FR/130% » FHEFRI3%

Reduce 30% by 2030,
average —3% per year
EI2030FR/130% » FHEFRL3%

Reduce 30% by 2030,
average —3% per year
EI2030FR/130% » FHEFRL3%

During the reporting period, we led various environmental initiatives, TEREHIA > RFSEE T S EEBIRRIENK » 157
most notably investing over 4.3 million HKD in installing two sets of Z&AMBEHE4IHETERIFBLBEERER
centralised dampening solutions and roller cooling systems at our E&EH I ENRIEEIRKEARETE SAARL - BLERMA
Shenzhen and Heshan facilities. These systems have significantly HBHFEEERSEIRIEEEMERYNE » ERMASE
enhanced energy efficiency in our printing press operations, yielding &i& _B&8 TREER&R 12015 KAKE - A

annual energy savings of 2 million kWh and conserving 120 m? of {R&tREIEFEEEENIRIE R » RPFIEES
water. To ensure the smooth execution of our environmental strategy

across different sites, we have designated environmental ambassadors

at both our headquarters and individual facilities.
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We increased our investment in renewable energy, expanding our solar
panel capacity to 6,101 kWp compared to 5,095 kWp in 2022. In 2023,
the green energy we generated was 5,478 MWh, double the output of
2,471 MWh in 2022.

To enhance employee well-being, we have introduced additional
enriching activities such as employee recognition days, film nights,
and festive celebrations across all our factories. Our devoted team
consistently generates ideas to strengthen the camaraderie between
colleagues and the company.

For deeper insights into our ESG initiatives, please refer to our 2023
ESG report, accessible on our company website or through this
link https://www.hunghingprinting.com/sustainability. Stakeholders
interested in obtaining hard copies can email our investor relations
team at ir.contact@hunghingprinting.com.

Summary of major performance data:

tESh » FFIMNBH T BEFERIRE » B XA
EBMiIRRK B EW2022FE 895,095 T IE FIENE
6,101 FI& R o 20234 » KN EERERE
55478k ELFE 0 22022F E&E2,471 K E BRI

f& o

RE-—DREETREU > SBMERNEITESE
@mHOES  PIMIETRER « BREZERUUK
MEENSE - FME T TEHIIFAT > SRA
TELUINGRI I LR B4 ) 2 PRI BH R A E AL o

MBEFMAER > A EREMAY2023FIRIT - 4
ERERRE - ZRE AT AR MILEIZILERS
https://www.hunghingprinting.
com/sustainability & [ °
B f & ®7 % & B
(ir.contact@hunghingprinting.com)

FEENREEMFRER > REGZREHENRIZS
FTEENBIERE

Year 2023 Year 2022 Change

20235 20225 £

Revenue (HKD million) 4RSS RE CH ISR B T) 2,386 2,950 -19.1%
Total scope 1 CO.e emission (Tonne) HIE—M Z S LR ABHERE (L5) 5,619.87 6,964.09 -19.3%
Total scope 2 CO.e emission (Tonne) HE N SChiEkmE (2 8) 19,823.09  22,112.84 -10.3%
Total electricity consumed (MWh) HREE (JEERAF) 55,432 59,226 —6.4%
Total water consumed (M) Rk E (T AR 864,983 = 1,041,474 -16.9%
Total number of employees EEEAH 5,752 6,227 -7.6%
Average training hour per employee BHEE TR 2.09 3.94 —46.9%
Total Injury Rate BERETHIEE 0.22 0.15 +46.6%
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A Report of the Directors

EFOHRS

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company during the year consisted of
investment holding and the provision of management services.

The principal activities of the Group during the year consisted of the
book and package printing, the consumer product packaging, the
corrugated box and the trading of paper. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group during the year as required
by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and
an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business, can
be found in the Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion and
Analysis and Business Unit Report set out on pages 7 to 20.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the year and the state of affairs of the Company
and the Group at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 63 to 162.

An interim dividend of HK4 cents per share was paid on 20 October
2023. The directors recommend the payment of a special dividend of
HK5 cents per share and a final dividend of HK4 cents per share to
shareholders on the register of members on 6 June 2024.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out below.
This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

EEERERE_E_=F+_-_A=+—HLEF
EZEEERERAERRBZMBRRE

FEXH

EREANAFEZTEXHBEREERRER
EERT ©

FEARFTEEZTEEFOESEREELN
R~ HEEMEE - RBRERARES - &
B EXEBUERETEERLREAES) -

EF5[oleE

ER( QARG MRS ERAEB B EA XKD
(R EEEE T ERARKTIREREZZ
s R AN EFRRERZEEZIER) > OEANS
MRETE20EEXERS - EEETmROTIUKIE
PISEAER S P E o

FiaRKhR

FERTEE BN UREAATEASERNZBZ
BAFSIRE N FE63E162E 2 BIFEIRE o

ARBAERZZE=ZF+A T RIREPHRE
BRBEAML - EFZERN T _MEARH
LIIRR LM RRIKER RS SRBIES LR
REARR B ERABEAW -

MR BIE

TXEIEEENBERLEMBREEZZEUR
HE - BERIFEFIMEDSE o IWHELRE
RSB RR —E9 -
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Results
2023
—E-=HF
HK$°000
BETFT
Revenue =3 2,386,862
Profit attributable to EARERFAEA
equity shareholders of ~ FE{LiEF
the Company 135,155
Earnings per share SRER
Basic =N 15.0 cents i
Diluted #E 14.9 cents 1l
Assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests
2023
—T=HF
HK$°000
BETFT
Current assets RENEE 2,149,305
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,661,908
Total assets HEE - 3,811,213
Current liabilities RENAE 558,118
Non-current liabilities JERENEE 77,940
Total liabilities wam 636,058
Non-controlling interests  JFfEHIMERER 129,149
Equity attributable to TATERZFHAA
equity shareholders of FELHERE
the Company 3,046,006
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 10 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the Company’s share capital during the year are set out in
note 23(c) to the financial statements.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities
of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

Reserves

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and in note 23(a) to the financial statements, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

The Company’s distributable reserve as at 31 December 2023,
calculated under Part 6 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and with reference to the “Guidance on
the Determination of Realised Profit and Losses in the Context of
Distributions under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance” issued
by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
amounted to HK$422,217,000 (2022: HK$543,328,000), of which
HK$45,393,000 (2022: HK$45,393,000) has been proposed as a
special dividend and HK$36,315,000 (2022: HK$36,315,000) has been
proposed as a final dividend for the year.

Charitable Contributions

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$205,000 (2022: HK$71,000).

M - BER=E

FEEREEERNYE - BMERRBEZELEBFE
BN FFIRARMIEE10 o

Rz 7s

BATREANAEERNZ FBENHTFFIRERMF
23(c) °

fRE - MO EFAF LHEs

FRABREEAHBEARREEENGEES -
BB HE A AR Z MR ©

f#fE

BNR A En S ER R FHRERMEE23()

Aok R

AR R GEE TR B (A BRG] 5638 (F A
F622F) RS EFAGHMAG (TEB D
N EHRZTEB(ATEANPHRERE D EHE
EEERABREBZIESIE - ZATRZ
EZ=F+ZA=+—HZADREELBIE
422217,0007¢ (Z B - T : #E1543,328,000
7T) 0 BB N45393,000 T (ZEZ2F 1 B
#£45,393,00070) ERZEA IR E KRB
36,315,0007C (ZEZ 24 : #1£36,315,0007T)
BEZREATEEZRIRKE °

EEiAm

REEER > ZEBEFHESHERALBE
205,0007C (ZE =4 : ##71,0007T) ©
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during
the financial year is as follows:

FERRRMEH

REMBEE » 7EENTERR RMHEHD 5]
TGV E RARBERIT :

Percentage of

the Group’s total

sales/purchases

SHE IRR8

A EmEE

FEHESLE

The largest customer BRAEE 18%
Five largest customers in aggregate hAAREFREE 37%
The largest supplier BRAMER 12%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AARBEESS 26%

None of the directors, their close associates, or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors:

Yum Chak Ming, Matthew

Yum Christopher Carson (appointed on 25 May 2023)
Sung Chee Keung (resigned on 25 May 2023)

Non-executive directors:

Hirofumi Hori

Hitoshi Shibasaki (appointed on 26 May 2023)
Aki Tsuge

Yam Hon Ming, Tommy

Yuji Motomatsu (resigned on 1 April 2023)

Independent non-executive directors:

Lo Chi Hong

Luk Koon Hoo

Tan Chuen Yan, Paul (appointed on 25 May 2023)
Yap, Alfred Donald (resigned on 25 May 2023)
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In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, the following
directors will retire by rotation:

Yum Chak Ming, Matthew
Aki Tsuge

Hitoshi Shibasaki

Luk Koon Hoo

All the retiring directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with the Corporate Governance Code of the Listing
Rules, if an independent non-executive director serves more than
nine years, his further appointment should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by shareholders. Mr. Luk Koon Hoo and Mr.
Lo Chi Hong have served the Company for more than nine years. They,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Luk Koon Hoo, Mr. Lo Chi Hong and Mr. Tan Chuen Yan, Paul and
as at the date of this report still considers them to be independent.

Directors of Subsidiaries

The following is the list of directors who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2023 and up to the date of this report.

Chan Siu Man, Alvin
Chong Wai Kan, Winky
Lam Yuen Wai, Gary

Lau Ching Wai Peter

Lau Wing Kit, Tommy
Lee Tak Ming

Li Jun Wei (appointed on 14 August 2023)
Li Tsz Ching

Lim Pheck Wan, Richard
Liu Hing Yuen

Park Yung Keun

Shek Kwok Man

Song Zhi Yi

Sung Chee Keung

Wu Hui Bin (resigned on 27 October 2023)
Yam Ho Ming, Michael
Yum Stephanie Carrie
Yum Christopher Carson
Yum Chak Ming, Matthew
Yum Nicholas Kevin
Zeng Xiang Dong

RBARBZABERMER > THNEERBRER
£

1EE8H
RS
SRl

FIEREEFHSERTBENEERRBEFXR
g LEEEE -

Rig ERRAZ BEEBRTR - H—RBILIEHR
TEFEIRBENE  HEFREKRRSTE
BRBFEME - ERESRAERBSHIEEERE
ARERBBRNE » REDSERLBEENER
RRBERG EEEEE -

AT BRERRRLE - BTHEIAERREC
FREZEEBIERE  MBEXRRSBHKSE
AR RBILNL -

MBARZES

UFARBE_E_=ZF+_A=+—HLEE
REEXAREAHERNEIATDMBELADNERTE
ZEFRE -

BRIKSZ
HEAr
WEEL
2i5E
2Kk
*’EEH
FEH(RIEZ=F/\A+NBEEZT)
=7
MRABE
BER
ThEAR
AEX
RER
K58
SER(RIEZ=F+A+tHEHD)
59
Ena
EmiE
128
EnE
B
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Biographical Details of the Directors of the
Company and Senior Management of the Group

Executive directors

Mr. Yum Chak Ming, Matthew, aged 65, is Executive Chairman of
the Group. He has been a director of the Company since 1991. As
Chairman of the Board, Mr. Yum is responsible for setting direction
and overseeing the effective implementation of the Group’s strategy, in
addition to the overall management of the Group. He has been with the
Group since 1983. He holds a Bachelor of Applied Science degree in
Industrial Engineering and a Master of Business Administration degree
in Marketing and Finance, both from the University of Toronto, Canada.

Mr. Yum Christopher Carson, aged 38, has been the Executive
Director of Hung Hing Printing Group Limited since May 2023. He is
the commercial director for the Group and also the director for Hung
Hing Off-set Printing Co Ltd. With more than 20 years of experience
in the printing business, Christopher has been leading the sales and
marketing operations of the Group’s Book and Package Printing
business since 2007. Christopher understands the shifts in market
demand, and with the vision to take the traditional printing business
to new heights, he has created multiple brands for the business to
provide better educational products for children and educators of Hong
Kong, including Yum Me Play, STEMPLUS and iitutors, just to name
a few. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Business Management
from Coventry University, UK. He is the son of Mr. Yum Chak Ming,
Matthew.

Non-executive directors

Mr. Hirofumi Hori, aged 65, is a member of the Senior Executive
Meeting of Rengo Co., Ltd (“Rengo”) (Tokyo Stock Exchange: Stock
Code: 3941, Rengo is the Company’s substantial shareholder holding
29.9% in the issued share capital of the Company) and is the Senior
Managing Executive Officer with responsibility of overseeing the
Overseas Business Unit of Rengo. He holds a Bachelor of Economics
from Wakayama University, Japan. Mr. Hori joined Rengo in 1981 and
since then has held various positions in Rengo.

Ms. Aki Tsuge, aged 51, is the Director of Group Administration of Tri-
Wall Limited, a subsidiary of Rengo. She holds a Bachelor of Liberal
Arts from International Christian University in Japan. Ms. Tsuge has
been with Rengo since 1996 in various positions.
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Mr. Yam Hon Ming, Tommy, aged 60, holds a Bachelor of Arts degree
in Economics from York University, Canada. Mr. Yam has significant
management experience in the printing industry. He was a non-
executive director of the Company from 1991 to 1996. He re-joined the
Company in 1999 and served as an executive director of the Company
from July 2000 to July 2008. He was also the general manager of
Hung Hing Packaging (Wuxi) Company Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, and was responsible for its general management between
2002 and 2008. He is a brother of Mr. Yum Chak Ming, Matthew.

Mr. Hitoshi Shibasaki, aged 61, is the Managing Executive Officer
and General Manager of Sales Promotions and Displays Sales and
Marketing Group of Rengo. He holds a Bachelor of Sociology from the
Meiji Gakuin University in Japan. Mr. Shibasaki has served in various
positions in Rengo since 1985.

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Lo Chi Hong, aged 77, was a Board Director and Vice President
of Sino United Publishing (Holdings) Limited and is an advisor to the
group chairman of the Hung’s Food Group which runs the restaurant
and bakery chain under the “Yoshinoya” and “Maria’s Bakery” brand
names respectively. He has held senior managerial roles in the
publishing industry over the last 30 years. From 1996 to 2007, he
served as the chief executive officer of C&C Joint Printing Co., (HK)
Limited. Mr. Lo has also held a number of public posts in Hong Kong
and the PRC including acting as the chairman of the Advisory Board
of the Hong Kong Institute of Print-media Professionals, an honorary
president of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong
and an honorary president of the Hong Kong Printers Association.
He served as a vice president of the Printing Technology Association
of China, a council member of the World Print and Communication
Forum (WPCF), a member of the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation
of Academic & Vocational Qualifications and a member of the SME
Development Fund Vetting Committee, and was the founding chairman
of the Hong Kong Publishing Professionals Society. In 2005, Mr. Lo
was awarded the Medal of Honour by the HKSAR Government. He was
also the recipient of the Outstanding Achievement Award presented by
the Hong Kong Print Awards in 2007. Mr. Lo was a PHD Candidate of
Peking University in mainland China in 1985.

EZPARE > 6058 » FAMEANRASREER
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Mr. Luk Koon Hoo, aged 72, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since August 2008. He is a retired banker and
has 30 years of comprehensive experience in accounting and financial
management. He joined Hang Seng Bank in 1975 and became the
bank’s Chief Financial Officer in 1989. He was appointed Executive
Director and Deputy Chief Executive in 1994 and was subsequently
re-designated as Managing Director until his retirement in 2005. Mr.
Luk is currently an independent non-executive director of two publicly-
listed companies in Hong Kong, namely, i-Cable Communications
Limited and Harbour Centre Development Limited. Mr. Luk also serves
as a member of Urban Renewal Authority. Mr. Luk graduated with a
Bachelor of Social Sciences Degree in Statistics from The University of
Hong Kong and also holds a Master of Business Administration Degree
granted by The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a Fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Bankers. Mr. Luk is a Non-official Justice of the
Peace and was awarded the honour of Bronze Bauhinia Star in 2004 in
recognition of his contributions to public services.

Mr. Tan Chuen Yan, Paul, aged 65, has over 40 years of experience
in the legal industry, having practised as a solicitor in both Hong
Kong and Sydney, New South Wales, Australia. Mr. Tan joined Baker
McKenzie in 1982 and was Managing Partner of its Hong Kong,
mainland China, Vietham and Korea offices from 1997 to 1999, and
from 2013 to 2015. He had also served as Chairman of the Firm Global
Nominating Committee and Head of Hong Kong Commercial and
Securities Practice. Mr. Tan retired as a partner of Baker McKenzie
in December 2019. Mr. Tan has since become a Vice Chairman
and Company Secretary of the Hong Chi Association, a government
subvented charity dedicated to the welfare and training of mentally
challenged children in Hong Kong. Mr. Tan serves as an independent
non-executive director of Kerry Logistics Network Limited since
October 2021 and an independent non-executive director of HSBC
Provident Fund Trustee (Hong Kong) Limited, which is regulated by the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority since August 2023.
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Mr. Tan was Vice President of the Law Society of Hong Kong from
2000 to 2003, having been a Council member since 1995. He was the
Convenor of Solicitors Disciplinary Tribunal, President of the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong and Chairman of its Appeal Tribunal. Mr. Tan
has also served on a number of public appointments in Hong Kong,
including as Chairman of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Appeal Board, Occupational Retirement Schemes Appeal Board
and the Appeal Tribunal Panel (Buildings). He also served as the
Independent Trustee of the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology Staff Superannuation Scheme, the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology Ancillary Staff Superannuation Scheme,
and was a member of Air Transport Licencing Authority. Mr. Tan
received from the University of Sydney in Australia a bachelor’'s degree
in economics in 1980, a bachelor's degree and a master’s degree in
law in 1982 and 1985, respectively. He is a qualified solicitor in Hong
Kong.

Senior management

Mr. Shek Kwok Man, aged 59, is the Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary of the Group, providing overall financial leadership
in matters related to mergers & acquisitions, investor relations,
accounting, planning & reporting, treasury, and financial management
of all operations. He is also responsible to support the Group’s board
of directors on all the board related activities, and handle listing and
regulatory affairs as the Group’s authorised representative required
under the Hong Kong Stock Exchange Rules on Listing Matters and
the Company Ordinance. Mr. Shek joined the Group in February 2013,
bringing with him over 30 years of management experience in senior
executive roles with world-renowned multinational corporations such
as IBM, Bausch & Lomb, Philip Morris/Kraft Foods, Thomson Reuters,
Wrigley, Mead Johnson, Hershey’s and Associated British Foods. He
has been assigned to station in various locations including Tokyo,
Guangzhou, Beijing and Shanghai in addition to Hong Kong. Mr. Shek
is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales (ICAEW) as well as the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA). He graduated from the University
of Hong Kong with a BSSc (Hons) degree, and holds a MBA with
Manchester Business School, UK and Master of Science-Marketing
(MSc-Mktg) with Napier University, Edinburgh, Scotland.

Mr. Sung Chee Keung, aged 64, is the General Manager, Consumer
Product Packaging. He is responsible for overseeing the operation of
the Group’s Consumer Product Packaging business in mainland China.
He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Printing Engineering from
Rochester Institute of Technology, U.S.A. He has over 30 years of
experience in the printing industry and has been with the Group since
1986. He became an executive director of the Company in September
2008 till May 2023.
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Mr. Wong Fu Cheung, Dennis, aged 63, is the General Manager,
Corporate Responsibility and Compliance and is responsible for
overseeing improvements in quality, safety, ethics and sustainability
initiatives. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Computational
and Statistical Science from the University of Liverpool and a Master of
Business Management degree from University of Bradford both in U.K..
He has been with the Group since 1992.

Mr. Song Zhi Yi, aged 62, is responsible for the management of the
Group’s manufacturing operations in Shenzhen, Heshan and Foshan.
He holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Forestry from the Southern China
Agricultural University, mainland China. He has been with the Group
since 1990. He is a brother of Mr. Sung Chee Keung.

Mr. Chan Siu Man, Alvin, aged 65, is responsible for the Group’s
manufacturing operation in Hong Kong as well as the supply chain
and procurement operations of the Group. He holds a Bachelor of
Applied Science degree in Electrical Engineering from the University of
Toronto. He has been with the Group since 1990. He is the brother-in-
law of Mr. Yum Chak Ming, Matthew.

Ms. Chong Wai Kan, Winky, aged 53, is responsible for the
management of the Group’s paper trading business. She has over
30 years of experience in paper trading and has been with the Group
since 1992.

Mr. Lim Pheck Wan, Richard, aged 58, is the Chief Operations Officer
of the Group Business Units and is responsible for overseeing the day-
to-day operations and execution of the core printing and packaging
divisions, including the Book and Package Printing (BPP), Consumer
Product Packaging (CPP), Paper Trading and Corrugated business.
With his extensive experience and expertise, Mr. Lim plays a vital role
in ensuring the smooth functioning of our factories located in Hong
Kong, mainland China and Vietnam. He has been an integral part of
our team since July 2011, bringing more than 25 years of experience
in the printing and packaging industry. He holds a Master’s Degree in
International Marketing from the University of Strathclyde, Glasgow
and is also recognised as a Fellow Member of the Chartered Institute
of Marketing UK. Throughout his career, Mr. Lim has held various
positions in Singapore, Malaysia, Hong Kong and mainland China,
allowing him to gain valuable insights into different markets and
develop a comprehensive understanding of the industry.
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Mr. Yu Yan Yee, aged 54, is the Chief Information Officer of the
Group. In this capacity, he is responsible for formulating the Group’s
information technology (IT) strategy, overseeing all aspects of IT
function, and driving enterprise — wide digital transformation across the
Group in supporting its business vision. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Yu had spent 10 years with IBM Global Business Services (US
and HK), advising and driving technology agenda for organizations in a
wide range of industries. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree (cum
laude) in Mechanical Engineering from Louisiana Tech University,
USA, a Master of Business Administration degree from Boston
University, USA, and a Master of Science degree in IT from the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology. Mr. Yu was the recipient
of numerous industry recognitions, notably 2019-2022 IDC CIO50 in
ASEAN, 2018 IDC DX (Digital Transformation) Leader of the Year,
2017 China CIO Award, and 2017 Hong Kong CIO Award for Medium
Enterprise. He has been with the Group since May 2012.

Mr. Yum Nicholas Kevin, aged 36, is the director of Beluga Limited,
focuses on the design and creation of high-tech printed products. He
holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Management from
University of St. Andrews, UK. He has been with the Group since 2011.
He is the son of Mr. Yum Chak Ming, Matthew.

Mr. Lee Tak Ming, aged 51, is the General Manager of the Group’s
corrugated business. He has nearly 20 years of experience in
corrugated business and has been with the Group since 2001.

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout this year.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Remuneration

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board
of directors or remuneration committee with reference to directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements, no director
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares

At 31 December 2023, the interests of the directors in the share capital
and underlying shares of the Company, as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”), or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

EERNANZzER

PREAFSIRRMGE28IREE S > BIBERNERT
FEHEMMBARNREEERSET IR AER
EEMEREARZEANGNIEENEEERE
Afa o

EFNIR RARRRR (D Z it

RIZZ=ZF+"A=+—H  REIZFKHPE
5B (TEE S R R IRG)) SB35 A AR AT HFE
ZERMAE > RE EHRTAEFETE
HR 52 REFH (TRETH) ERITARAHE
KREERZFRFH Z B > REER A AR REKRE
RARR(D N T -

RAEAREBRZEFR

Number of shares held, capacity and

nature of interest

FAERGEE « SAREREE

Percentage of

Directly Share the Company’s

beneficially award issued share

owned scheme Total capital

16428

BETRE

Name of directors EEME HERRHRS {5 iEm =2 Eot ] HAL

Yum Chak Ming, Matthew 1EE08 55,857,062 1,608,192 57,465,254 6.33
Yum Christopher Carson FfE (RZB==

(appointed on 25 May 2023) RBZ+HERAESHT) 8,878,716 188,158 9,066,874 1.00

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
directors had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Share Award Scheme

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of shares available
in respect of which restricted share awards may be granted under the
Restricted Share Award Scheme is 15,887,637 shares representing
approximately 1.75% of the shares in issue as at that date.
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Details of restricted share awards granted under the Scheme during
the year ended 31 December 2023 are as follows:

Number
of awards Number
unvested of awards
as at granted
Date of 1 January during
Grant 2023 the year
RIBZ=f
—R—H

ABEZ TEEERFZ
&¥H ROGEEYE  RAREBHE

BE_T_=—F+_"_A=+—HLH/R > 1B
et BT RIR A AR D IREN BN ¢

Closing price

Number of shares

Number ofawards  immediately

Fair value of awards unvested before the
of awards vested asat date on
at the date during 31 December  which awards
of grant the year 2023  were granted
Ko®Z=f BTG

RTRi? +=BA=+-A @A

EWEEz  FEEREEZ RBEZ B—X2Z
ATEE ROZEBEE RORBHE Ay {E

(%) )
FT FT
Directors 55
Yum Chak Ming, Matthew FE68 11412021 190,168 - 1.33 95,084 95,084 1.36
1/412022 = 2,269,662 - 1.29 756,554 1,513,108 1.27
Sung Chee Keung KRG 11412021 735,038 - 1.33 367,519 367,519 1.36
(resigned on 25 May 2023) (RZB-_=%18R
Z+RHEHT)
Yum Christopher Carson EmeE 11412021 376,316 - 1.33 188,158 188,158 1.36
(appointed on 25 May 2023)  (RZE-=%#%A
Z+RHEZRD)
Five highest paid individuals HEZEEHAT 1/4/2021 3,249,302 - 133 1,624,651 1,624,651 1.36
1/412022 = 2,269,662 - 1.29 756,554 1,513,108 1.27
Other employee participants ~ Hft1S£i{g8 1/4/2021 © 2,314,138 - 133 1,157,069 1,157,069 1.36

(1) No restricted share awards granted were cancelled, lapsed or forfeited in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme during the year ended 31 December
2023.

(2)  No restricted share awards granted were in excess of the Participant Limit or
the 1% individual limit pursuant to Rule 17.07 of the Listing Rules.

(3) Pursuant to Rule 17.12(1)(a), during the year ended 31 December 2023,
restricted share awards were granted to five highest paid individuals, which
includes executive Directors, Mr. Yum Chak Ming, Matthew and Mr. Sung
Chee Keung (resigned on 25 May 2023), and three senior management of the
Company.

(4)  The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the
dates on which the awards were vested was $1.13.

Under the rules of the Scheme, share awards will be granted to the
participants of the Scheme when certain performance target is met and
on or before 30 June of each year. Upon certain vesting conditions
are fulfilled, the share awards granted to the participants will be vested
in three equal tranches provided that the relevant awardee remained
employed by the Group or retired on reaching normal retirement age.
For awardees who cease employment with the Group before vesting,
the unvested shares are forfeited. The forfeited shares are held by the
trustee of the Scheme.

(1) BEIZ=F+-A=+—HLEE> IER
BEFBMRRUR T BURGI M IR S BIAREUH ~ R
IR ©

(2) EEERTHRAERGEBEASHEEREN L
TRRRIE 7. 07IRRELI1 % EARER ©

(3) WREBLEHBEIFE17.12(1)(a)E > BE_ZB_=
+ZB=1+—HILEEE » [REIMERGERBERET
AgREHAL  HROERITESTERLE
EREBEE(R-_E=FRA-+HBATE)
EAAT =R EEAS °

(4) SRERMEEZBEI—XZRGINEFTSRHE
A1 135 ©

REZBZRA - ROBRTEETREER
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares

Pursuant to the Restricted Share Award Scheme, the executive
directors are eligible participants of the Restricted Share Award
Scheme, details of which are set out in note 24 to the financial
statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company
granted to any director or their respective spouses or minor children, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,

or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2023, the following interests of 5% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of

interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO:

Long positions:

ERWARRRZHER

RIRPREI AR 1R EN St 8 > MITESEAMRBIMER
RIZENEBIZ A ER2HE » BB EHNMTE
RRMIEE24 ©

PR ESCREE S » RAFEEMERE > XATIE
BRTEMNES RESBZEBIRNEFU
AHEBASABRMOMEZ ZEF > MKETFE
TEARMERN  AREHEETAWELBTES
BEMZH > BEESFNEAEMEARRES
ERAER o

FERRRRHE A LR Rk
Rzt

RIBZ=F+"A=+—H  REZFKPE
1RBISE3IIRA AR AT FEZECHMATE - %
BARBEEHITRAE%H A LEZZATIT :

Fa

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s
ordinary issued share
Name Capacity and nature of interest shares held capital
AT
Fez=] g#TRE
2\ S kiEmtE i ee BatE
C.H. Yam International Limited* (Note) Directly beneficially owned and 290,834,379 32.03
through controlled corporation
C.H. Yam International Limited* (MizE) BEERnaEKERTIERAT
C.H. Yam Holding Limited (Note) Through controlled corporation 199,263,190 21.95
ERBESRAF (fifsE) BBZIEFIAT
Hung Tai Industrial Company (Note) Directly beneficially owned 199,263,190 21.95
Limited
BREERRRE (ffzk) EEE=EER
Rengo Co., Ltd. Directly beneficiary owned 271,552,000 29.91
BEtk gt BERETHER
* C.H. Yam International Limited, established by the founder of the Company, 7 A B Bl # A AR IL Z C.H. Yam International

was held by Mr. Yum Chak Ming, Matthew, Mr. Yum Christopher Carson, Mr.
Yam Hon Ming, Tommy and other immediate family members of the founder as
at 31 December 2023. None of such interests renders C.H. Yam International
Limited a controlled corporation (as defined in SFO) of any of Mr. Yum Chak
Ming, Matthew, Mr. Yum Christopher Carson, Mr. Yam Hon Ming, Tommy or
any other members of the family.

Note: C.H. Yam International Limited owns Hung Tai Industrial Company Limited
as to 100% through its wholly-owned subsidiary, C.H. Yam Holding Limited.
There is a duplication of interests of 199,263,190 shares in the Company
among C.H. Yam International Limited, C.H. Yam Holding Limited and Hung
Tai Industrial Company Limited.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the
section “Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares” above,
had registered an interest and short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

Significant Related Party Transactions

The Group have certain transactions with parties regarded as “related
parties” under applicable accounting principles. The related party
transactions conducted during the ordinary course of business, which
cover transactions with related parties and constitute connected
transactions as defined under the Listing Rules, are set out in note 28
to the financial statements. Such transactions were complied with the
applicable provisions under the Listing Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions

During the year and in the normal course of business, the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) had various commercial
transactions with Rengo Co., Ltd. (“Rengo”), its subsidiaries and
its associates (together with Rengo, “Rengo Group”). Rengo is a
substantial shareholder of the Company and these transactions
constitute continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

Details of these transactions are as follows:

On 9 December 2021, the Group and the Rengo Group renewed
two framework agreements in relation to the continuing connected
transactions, namely as follows:

(i) The Sale of Paper Products Framework Agreement pursuant to
which the Group agreed to sell and the Rengo Group agreed to
purchase paper products for the period from 1 January 2022 (the
“Effective Date”) to 31 December 2024.

(i) The Purchase of Paper Products Framework Agreement pursuant
to which the Group agreed to purchase and the Rengo Group
agreed to sell paper products for the period from the Effective Date
to 31 December 2024.
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The annual caps of the agreements are as follows:
Sales of paper products by the Group to the Rengo Group:

Year ended 31 December 2022: HK$5 million

Year ended 31 December 2023: HK$5 million

Year ended 31 December 2024: HK$5 million

Purchase of paper products by the Group from the Rengo Group:

Year ended 31 December 2022: HK$15 million

Year ended 31 December 2023: HK$15 million

Year ended 31 December 2024: HK$15 million

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the
profits ratio) calculated with reference to the above annual caps
exceed 0.1% but are less than 5%, the transactions under the renewed
agreements are subject to reporting, announcement and annual
review requirements but are exempt from circular and the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the actual amount of
transactions in relation to the Sale of Paper Products Framework
Agreement and the Purchase of Paper Products Framework
Agreement were HK$4.67 million and HK$Nil, respectively.

Annual Review of Continuing Connected Transactions

The Company has engaged its auditor, KPMG, to conduct a review
of the above continuing connected transactions for the year ended
31 December 2023 in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter in respect
of the continuing connected transactions disclosed in the paragraph
above.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and the letter issued by the auditor and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions were
entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(ii) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted an updated dividend policy paying on
half-yearly basis (“Dividend Policy”), pursuant to which the Company
endeavors to maintain stable dividend return with progressive
increment and special dividend, so as to offer the utmost in rewarding
the shareholders of the Company.

In deciding whether to propose or declare a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account projected cash-
flow and retained profit requirement for future development of the
Company, inter alia:

financial performance and operating results;

— effective allocation of distributable retained earnings and reserves;

— maintaining regularity in pay-out frequency, amount and/or ratio;
and

— other factors it may deem relevant at such time.

The dividend to be proposed or declared shall be determined at the
sole discretion of the Board and is subject to the restrictions under the
Articles of Association of the Company and all applicable laws and
regulations.

The Company will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Dividend Policy. The Dividend Policy shall not
constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company and there is
no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount in any
given period.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company
is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board

Yum Chak Ming, Matthew
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2024
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a Independent Auditor’s Report

WA ZHETRS

KPMG

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
Hung Hing Printing Group Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hung
Hing Printing Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 63 to 162, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2023, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended and notes, comprising material accounting policy information
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters P E s+ HIA

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, BB StBIETHIRER P2 EHEFIE > SBAHK
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial HfFEMBRRZBIRAEEZEIE - %%
statements for the current period. These matters were addressed in  BEREMBTERGEMBERRIAHAERRFE
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a TR - ZAFFGHZEFEREERER
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of raw materials

EitEhE
Refer to accounting policy note 1(n) and note 14 to the consolidated financial statements

F2RR A BSIRRIS N (n) R 142 BHEER

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

FASREtRIE EE AR RS

At 31 December 2023, inventories comprised raw Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of the raw
materials, work-in-progress and finished goods. materials included the following:

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net EMFHEEMEMEEZ SRR EETIIRES !

realisable value (“NRV”) in the consolidated financial

statements. » evaluating the Group’s policy for provision for raw

RIZEZ=F+"RA=+—H » ZEaFEEME - THEK materials with reference to the requirements of the

B o FERMARMEIREE (TAI2IRFE]) 2RIEE prevailing accounting standards;

PR EMTBRRALR © ERSERTEFENZER My SEBRZEMREE
B ;

At 31 December 2023, the Group’s raw materials,

which accounted for 63% of the total inventories and * assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the

comprised principally of paper products, with gross raw materials ageing report were classified within the
amount of HK$268 million, against which a write-down appropriate ageing bracket by comparing individual items
of HK$18 million was recorded. with goods receipt notes; B S
RIZEZ=F+"A=+—H > EEEZEME (hFEHE EELEBE R EE B G ER  iRsTHE R EREC R S ';%@'
4863%  TEIEMLR) 584 515268,000,0007T » L 2IEERBEHABE ZRBER ; 22
£ 18,000,0005T © 2 %
* inspecting the ageing report of raw materials and g
Management performs a regular review of the raw discussing with management the condition of long-aged 5:
materials held by the Group and assesses if any write- and slow-moving items as identified by management; ";é
down is required due to their deteriorating physical BEEMNZIRERRS > THRSEESHRSEER 2R %D
conditions, long ageing or the expectation that they BRRRRFHER 2R ;5 =

would not be fully utilised based on expected future

manufacturing or trading orders. Where there are such +  assessing the reasonableness of NRV of raw materials
raw materials, a write-down may be required to reduce estimated by the management for those long-aged

the carrying amount to NRV. and slow-moving raw materials with reference to the
BEER BSEEMSERMRZESEITTHRER - 1T movements, ageing analysis, forward customers’ orders
HEEEEABRCZYIERR « IRERRRFE KRR and the selling price subsequent to the year end;

B BT ERHARET DT A Z FRRIT A E R AR o RSEFERENET  REDIT - BRERTERERE > 51
HAEFEZFERZRME > BRI AeE(E L MR LU AR E (B HEEENZERERE R HHERMEHE ST T 2 5RSEN
BEREIRFE o "M
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Valuation of raw materials

[RFRHEE

RS EFE ()

Refer to accounting policy note 1(n) and note 14 to the consolidated financial statements

A2 RIR S T IRR M (n) R MicE 142 BEHEER

The key audit matter

FAREtHRIE

We identified the valuation of raw materials as a key
audit matter because significant degree of management
judgement is required to assess the appropriate level of
write-down for raw materials.

ARHEEE 2B R AR EIRE (R ERHE - M
R R ERR SRR ETEIE o

Information other than the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Our Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

HEBEHPNAEEZER

.

attending the year-end inventory count, observing the
relevant controls implemented by management and
identifying damaged inventories through inspection and
enquiry of the warehouse staff;

HEFRGFEHRE BT RAMEEST » BREERE
BHERMERAERIL A BERES ;

assessing whether the calculation of the write-down

for raw materials was consistent with the Group’s raw
materials write-down policy by re-calculating the write-
down based on the Group’s write-down policy; and
EBER SEBRZMABEREMEMAE - sHERMEHN
BZAEARRENE BEERMEZMBRECE ; &

assessing the historical accuracy of management’s write-
down for raw materials by examining the utilisation or
release of previously write-down in the current year and
additional write-down made during the current year in
respect of raw materials held as at 31 December 2022.
MR- _F+_RA=+—HmESEMK > ZeuEHHA
HEEZERMEN ERFEERBEMRRN BRI FEFE
ZERSMITGRL > ST EIRE B ERMIREMEHE L MR < ZEFEE o

A MBI R EZEED RS LI
G

EXTHHMENGS - HMBERMSETIER
FRANEZHEN » EFBRBEEUBRER
ZEENERE -

RAEGEHHERRNBEREAREHME
o RATAHZEHMERERETATAN

0 o



Information other than the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Our Auditor’s Report Thereon
(continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

REMBRRREZHEMERS UM
& (&)

MEPIHGEEMBRRNET » RFAINEEEH
EHMEN > FIERED  TEAMENREH
FREMBRERAKMEBBETRTEHER
FHEENEENE U EFEEAEREANER

ERFEMASHITHIE > IRKRFRDSHMENR
FHEEAH#HBRERL > HMTEREZFE - T8
FHE > B EEMRS o

EFEMGRAMBRRARENRE

EFREERBEBEHMAGEMGI(EEME
REZERDREB(REMEANRBEEE T SR
BMBRE > UHHEDAMER S RRAOE
BEARFERNEFF AR ME RN E AR R
FRERAEMERIEE -

EREFRSHBREE > ER8HNE 55E
FHEEERREN > BAEBEABR TRERRFEL
EAMNER URERAFESESGTER

MRIFERARR BXEEBFENFLEE > 55
BHMBERNERSGE -

ERZEEWHEERTEE SEEUBRS
BREMEE -
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

HEETAESH R A MBI RAREN
RIEGER)

HESRAFKECE G ERNSEEFY
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yeung Yuk Fan.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

25 March 2024
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A’ Consolidated Income Statement
FalmE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) _g_zgfé _g_zg;z
(B TTEImR) Pz FiT Fir
Revenue HEE 4 2,386,862 2,950,112
Cost of sales SHE RS 5 (1,997,950) (2,530,264)
Gross profit EF 388,912 419,848
Other revenue Hothza 4 52,663 63,589
Other net gain HBuA 4 121,309 34,400
Distribution costs PAE |27 (48,432) (70,179)
Administrative and selling expenses THRHES H (337,245) (365,316)
Operating profit BT 177,207 82,342
Finance costs RMERA 6 (9,391) (4,653)
Share of loss of associates LI ATIREE (933) (2,736)
Profit before income tax IRFRiSHAEEF 166,883 74,953
Income tax FRigH 8 (35,615) (20,445)
Profit for the year TEEHF 131,268 54,508
Attributable to: FE(G :

Equity shareholders of the Company KATEHEFEA 135,155 66,038
Non-controlling interests JEEEHIE RS (3,887) (11,530)
Profit for the year FEEEF 131,268 54,508
Earnings per share attributable to equity TATEDGE AELS Cents Cents

shareholders of the Company BEF 9 <311 A

Basic B 15.0 7.3
Diluted e 14.9 7.3

The notes on pages 71 to 162 form part of these financial statements. H£71E162B ZMi:EAZ S M FHFRE 2 E M
Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company 4 - B AT A ABGEAEE R 2B
attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 23(b)(i). SEEFIFEAMIEE23(b)(i) ©
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a Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FefEl=ER

For the year ended 31 December 2023

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) _3_222; _g_z_o;z
BE_Z_=F+"H=+—HLEE " Ts000 000
(B TTHIR) FiT FiT
Profit for the year TEERF 131,268 54,508
Other comprehensive income for the year EEHMBEUTES (FRIRE) ©
(net of tax):
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss BEBTEENAEERDZ
EH

— Change in fair value of equity investments at fair ~ —3##AF(@EF A2 EUkE

value through other comprehensive income (el E)8) REKE QT

(“FVOCI’) (non-recycling) EE=E5) (6,685) (140)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to B GEE#M P EERm

profit or loss ZEH

— Exchange differences on translation of financial —EBLINZ B AT R—IE

statements of subsidiaries and an associate BrE AT BHRRZEIE

outside Hong Kong BEELE (24,147) (97,933)
— Change in fair value of intangible assets — B EEATEES) (200) 900
Other comprehensive income for the year TEEEMB IS (31,032) (97,173)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEEREUNELEEE 100,236 (42,665)
Attributable to: L -
Equity shareholders of the Company KAREZFEA 106,467 (18,908)
Non-controlling interests FEFEFIE A (6,231) (23,757)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEEZmMELEEE 100,236 (42,665)

The notes on pages 71 to 162 form part of these financial statements. BI1E162EZMFAZEMBRR ZARISD
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A’ Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FaFERRE

At 31 December 2023

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) _3_2223 _g_z_o;z
ATE_=F+"HA=1+—H Note $°000 $°000
(LB TTYIR) PfiaE Fr FT
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment Y ~ BB Rk 10 1,482,133 1,417,683
Intangible assets B EE 13,274 13,615
Prepayments for acquisition of non-current BEIERSEETENR
assets 63,368 34,044
Interest in associates REE AT Z R 12 15,310 22,204
Financial investments BRMRE 13 55,427 57,674
Deferred tax assets RIERIEE E 21(b)(ii) 32,396 24,790
1}7661 ,908 1,570,010
Current assets mEEE
Inventories =75 14 401,028 540,226
Trade and other receivables FEUS B2 53 BRI K ELfth FE UK
Hig 15 626,242 628,204
Income tax recoverable FIUR[EIFF1SHR 21(a) 315 593
Structured bank deposits EEEIRITER 16 311,025 203,580
Cash at bank and on hand RIT R FEEIRS 17(a) 810,695 1,042,535
2,149,305 2,415,138
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade and other payables P& B 5 ARIE R EL A FE At
B 18, 22 343,343 454,324
Bank borrowings SRITIERR 19 126,004 191,578
Lease liabilities HEaE 20 16,406 9,843
Income tax payable FE(SFRTSHR 21(a) 72,365 19,682
”558,1 18 675,427
Net current assets REEERE 11591 ,187 1,739,711
Total assets less current liabilities WEERTESEE 3,253,095 3,309,721
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

FEMEIRRR (@)
At 31 December 2023

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) .z _ 022
RpTeSSeh N ong —e-=x ot et 3
9—?—15’5"'—5 =t—H Note $7000 $°000
(LB TTAIm) Mtk FiT FiT
Non-current liabilities JERENER
Lease liabilities HEaR’ 20 22,652 28,184
Deferred income IRIEW A 22 15,847 20,267
Deferred tax liabilities IRERIEA(E 21(b)(ii) 39,441 71,220
77777777 77,940 119,671
NET ASSETS HESE 3,175,155 3,190,050
CAPITAL AND RESERVES A B fE R
Share capital i 23(c) 1,652,854 1,652,854
Reserves 5 1,393,152 1,401,816
Total equity attributable to equity FATIESFE AELLE
shareholders of the Company 1 3,046,006 3,054,670
Non-controlling interests eI 129,149 135,380
TOTAL EQUITY 4N 3,175,155 3,190,050

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 March

2024.

Yum Chak Ming, Matthew

BEEEEN _ ST _NF=A_+HAMLERE

FETIEE o

Yum Christopher Carson

1EE8H 1EhN{E
Director Director
- =

The notes on pages 71 to 162 form part of these financial statements. FBT1E162EZMFAZEMBRR ZARISD ©
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a’ Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2023
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HECECCEIA=T-HUEE
(BRI

Note
i1
Balance at 1 January 2022 R-BZZE
-B-BiH
Changes in equity for 2022:  ZB-Z%
Engs.
Profit for the year KEERF
Other comprehensive B2l
income, net of tax (i3

Total comprehensive FEERENEEE
income for the year

Dividends approved inrespect Bt 7 BHER

of the previous year k& 23(b)(i)
Dividends declared inrespect ~ EERZAEERS

of the current year 23(b)(i)
Purchase of shares for Share ~ [R{pREIS I TEES

Award Scheme i3 L
Sharesvested and allotted ~ IR{AHRENFEITER

under Share Award Scheme  RAEMIRM %
Equity compensation expenses  E7fER: %
Alocation to legal reserves ~ BEEtkE

Balance at R-E--%4+CR
31 December 2022 =t+-RiH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

A i2) FAFRERAAELS
For the year ended 31 December 2023 Fi";":eifs'
(EXpressed in Hong Kong dollars) Other Intangible  atFVOCI
HECTZZECAC-HIEE capital asset  reserve Exchange Equity Non-
(DEIETHIT) Share  reserves revaluation (non- Legal fluctuation compensation  Retained controlling Total
capital  (Note(i)) reserve  recycling)  reserves reserve reserve  earnings  Sub-total interests equity
fikEE
AT
HARM
Eft 2l
BEblE  EYEE 2B ShE i Ei ]
Ba  OR) EMRE (RIER)  EERE  HBER WREE  REERY it BE g
Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i3 7z 77 77 77 z z 77 77 z z 7
Balanceat1January 2023  RZBC=E
-A-Rit 1,652,854  (11,956) 8300 36,776 161,291 35736 6,990 1,164,679 3,054,670 135,380 3,190,050
Changes in equity for 2023:  —B-=FiEHEE.
Profitfor the year REEER - - - - - - - 135155 135155  (3,887) 131,268
Other comprehensive Rt e
income, net of tax - - (200)  (6,403) - (22,085 - - (26,688) (2,344) (31,032)
Total comprehensive FEERENGEE
income for the year - - (200) ~ (6,403) - (20 - 135155 106,467  (6,231) 100,236
Dividends approved in respect Bt g7 BAEERE
of the previous year 23(b)ii) - - - - - - - (81,708) (81,708) - (81,708)
Dividends declared inrespect ~ EETRZAEERE
of the current year 23(b)(i) - - - - - - - (36,315 (36,315) - (36,315
Shares vested and allotied ~ IRfASEENEHEI TERR
under Share Award Scheme ~ HEAR(} U - 50 = = = - (5087) - - - -
Equity compensation expenses R TEfERI 2% - - - - - - 2,802 - 289 - 2892
Alocation to legal reserves B+ EE - - - - 1235 = - (1239%) = - -
Balance at kit g
31 December 2023 t-RE&R 1,652,854  (6,899) 8100 30,373 1730686 13,651 4825 1,169,416 3,046,006 129149 3175155
Note: Mk
(i) At 1 January 2022, other capital reserves represented own held shares () RIZE-Z-_F—H—H » E1EXREPEELS

reserve and capital reserve with debit balances of $14,006,000 and $814,000

respectively.

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023, other capital reserves represented
own held shares reserve and capital reserve with debit balances of $11,142,000

and $814,000 respectively.

At 31 December 2023, other capital reserves represented own held shares
reserve and capital reserve with debit balances of $6,085,000 and $814,000

respectively.

The notes on pages 71 to 162 form part of these financial statements.
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Ay’ Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERERE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) _3_2223 _g_z_o;z
S=E_=F+"RA=1+—H Note ~$000 ~$000
(B TTEImR) Pz FiT o
Operating activities rREERE)
Cash generated from operations REEFEZRE 17(b) 298,759 455,342
Hong Kong profits tax paid BRAEENER (1,337) (3,170)
The People’s Republic of China (“the PRC”) (BfY) BEFEARH
income tax (paid)/refunded FNED (THREL) RS (19,851) 3,774
Net cash generated from operating activities & ;EEEL 2 NS BLE 277,571 455,946
Investing activities REES
Settlement of derivative financial instruments T4 £/ T E&E (1,726) (5,793)
Interest received [EElIs 22,463 12,625
Dividend received from financial investments B ERISERE 4 4,058 564
Purchases of property, plant and equipment  BEEY% « BER&ZE 10 (218,038) (143,448)
Additions to intangible assets REEWEE (1,341) (1,429)
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of W EE— e B A IS
cash acquired ZIREPER 17(e) (12,051) -
Deposits for acquisition of property, HBEME - BERREZ
plant and equipment A (44,481) (25,094)
Payment for financial investments SRR B (4,827) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE - BERRER
plant and equipment s3I 2,685 15,616
Receipt of compensation from government YSERIBU AT 4B 56,255 16,238
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits with EERBB=EAZE
original maturity over three months HRTERURL (48 0) 58,500 (52,385)
Increase in loan to an associate, net REF—KEERRNZE
FIENNFEE (1,922) (4,900)
(Increase)/decrease in structured EREEIRITIERR (1Em)
bank deposits PERA (100,088) 184,727
Net cash used in investing activities BEEBFIAZRERE (240,513) (3,279)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

FERERERE)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) _ _2223 _ _2_022

Xpressec in ong ’ —E-=% ot St
9—?—15’5"'—5 =+—H Note $:000 $000
(UAB TR MizE F7T F5T
Financing activities R ES
Capital element of lease rentals paid EEEREREID 17(c) (15,442) (11,492)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHEERET RS 17(c) (1,936) (503)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITE RIS RIE 17(c) = 112,855
Repayments of bank borrowings BEIRITER 17(c) (65,573) (113,559)
Interest paid [EEREESS 17(c) (7,540) (4,292)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders BENERABRREFEAZ

of the Company [35) (118,023) (118,023)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEBFAZREESE 00 (208,514) (135,014)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERREEEY

cash equivalents GRiL) Y hni$EE (171,456) 317,653
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January W—BA—BzHR&Rk

REEEY 972,841 667,006
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SMEEREEZHE (1,725) (11,818)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December #+Z=HA=+—HZ
RERFEEEY 17(a) 799,660 972,841

The notes on pages 71 to 162 form part of these financial statements.
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A’ Notes to the Financial Statements
B FEER R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (W& t3m » BRBBFRIEIN

1 EXREHEER
(a) BHEH

1 Material Accounting Policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Material accounting policies adopted by
the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current accounting period
reflected in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
and the Group’s interest in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the
following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below:

— club debentures under intangible assets (see note 1(i));

— investments in debt and equity securities (see note 1(j));

and

— derivative financial instruments (see note 1(k)).

ZEVBRERBEFEERZEBME
BEEN(TERVBREER )R -
EAMBRESER —AEEEAES

Mag (TEBGMAE)) BREZHRE
BRENEEBMBREER - FBGH
A (TER G2 ) REREEREA(2
BRGINZIRTE - ZEFMBREJTETE
BMAERBAARABRS LHRAIZ
BRKERE - ZEBRMWZERES

BRI X ©

EREFMAGEEMETERHBR
HEANERT - WFHERRAERMERZ
S IMEREMH A HEARAE - 1
SR WA R~ SE P Y] RFE M L5
SR AMER] 2 ZRIFRS I B E R & 5t HRf
ZEMEHBREE > ERNZFMBR
RARBR - BRABEREIMIEE(c)

(b) MFHmRGEREE

BE_E_=H+_A=+—HLtEE
ZEEMBERRAS S AT RENRBA
BB A EBMPREE AT AER o

BUTEEREEZATETRTX

PRECE StBUERFRRIRE) 5b » BB HHRE
R RIAEE ARt EER

- EREETHNERES (R
1(3i) 5

— BEBERREFEFRE (BWE()) ;
b4

— TEERMIARWE1K) °
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 2.

(c) Changes in accounting policies

(i) New and amended HKFRSs
The Group has applied the following new and amended
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA to these financial
statements for the current accounting period:

«  Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors: Definition
of accounting estimates

« Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Making
materiality judgements: Disclosure of accounting
policies

«  Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax
related to assets and liabilities arising from a single
transaction
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued) 1 EXGHEEEE)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c) EEHBRZEE) (48)
(i) New and amended HKFRSs (continued) (i) FETRASIESTE BRI B & ER

*  Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: International
tax reform — Pillar Two model rules

None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s result and financial position
for the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented. The Group has not adopted any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

New HKICPA guidance on the accounting implications of
the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism

In June 2022, the Hong Kong SAR Government (the
“Government”) gazetted the Hong Kong Employment and
Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement)
(Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the “Amendment
Ordinance”), which will come into effect from 1 May 2025
(the “Transition Date”).

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong” that provides accounting
guidance relating to the offsetting mechanism and the
abolition of the mechanism.

Upon the enactment of the Amendment Ordinance in June
2022, it is no longer permissible to apply the practical
expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 that previously
allowed such deemed contributions to be recognised
as reduction of service cost (negative service cost) in
the period the contributions were made; instead these
deemed contributions should be attributed to periods of
service in the same manner as the gross Long Service
Payment (“LSP”) benefit.

To better reflect the substance of the abolition of the
offsetting mechanism, the Group has changed its
accounting policy in connection with its LSP liability and
has applied the above HKICPA guidance. The change
does not have a material impact on these financial
statements.
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income statement
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued) 1 EXGHEEEE)
(d) MBARRIEFEFIERER (48)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note 1(j)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate (see note 1(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(m)).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence, but not control or joint control, over its management,
including participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale. Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date
fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the
cost of the investment (if any). The cost of the investment
includes purchase price, other costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment
into the associate that forms part of the Group’s equity
investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post
acquisition change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net
assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment
(see notes 1(f) and (m)(iii)). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-
tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

(e) Associates (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method, together with any other
long-term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate (after applying the ECL model
to such other long-term interests where applicable (see note

1(m)(0))-

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant influence or
joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note 1(j)).
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued)
(f) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
acquired measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUSs”), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note

1(m)(iii)).

On disposal of CGU during the year, any attributable amount
of purchased goodwill is included in calculation of profit or loss
on disposal.

(g) Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are ftranslated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the Company
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

(g) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(h

~

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 1(m)):

— right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold
properties where the Group is not the registered owner of
the property interest;

— items of plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets
arising from leases of underlying plant and equipment (see
note 1(1));

— buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold
land; and

— land use rights which are up-front payments to acquire
long-term interest in leasehold land.
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is provided to allocate their costs less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives. The principal
annual rates and bases used are as follows:

Buildings situated in  Over the shorter of the useful lives of the
Hong Kong, PRC
and Vietnam

assets or lease terms of the associated

land use rights

— Land use rights Over the lease terms of the land use rights

— Plant and machinery 10% — 20% on the reducing balance basis

— Motor vehicles 30% on the reducing balance basis

— Furniture, fixtures 20% — 30% on the reducing balance basis
and equipment

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the net disposal proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of disposal.

Properties under construction are stated at cost less
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the construction and comprises construction
costs and applicable borrowing costs incurred during the
construction period. On completion, the properties under
construction are transferred to other categories within property,
plant and equipment.

No depreciation is provided for properties under construction.
The carrying amount of properties under construction is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount (see note 1(m)).
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

(i)

)]

Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise goodwill arising from consolidation,
acquisition of computer software and club debentures. The
accounting policy for goodwill is set out in note 1(f).

Expenditure on computer software which give rise to economic
benefit is capitalised as part of intangible assets and are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(m)).
Amortisation of computer software with finite useful lives is
30% on the reducing balance basis and is charged to profit or
loss.

Club debentures are initially recognised at cost, subsequently
at revaluation. Changes arising on the revaluation of club
debentures are generally dealt with in other comprehensive
income and are accumulated separately in equity in the
intangible asset revaluation reserve. Gains or losses on
disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with
the carrying amount and are recognised in profit or loss. Club
debentures that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment (see note

1(m)).

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries and associates, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell
the investment. The investments are initially stated at fair
value plus directly attributable transaction costs, except for
those investments measured at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL”) for which transaction costs are recognised
directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the Group
determines fair value of financial instruments, see note 27(f).
These investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification.
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued) 1 EAFHEEGER)
() Otherinvestments in debt and equity securities (continued) () EthEBREAEFEE (E)

(i) Investments other than equity investments
Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified
as FVPL if the investment does not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.

(ii) Equity Investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment
the Group makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made
if the investment meets the definition of equity from the
issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is made,
the amount accumulated in other comprehensive income
remains in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the
investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the
amount accumulated in the financial assets at FVOCI
reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained earnings.
It is not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or
loss as other income in accordance with the policy set out
in note 1(w)(iii).

(k) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. At
the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, except where the derivatives
qualify for cash flow hedge accounting or hedge the net
investment in a foreign operation, in which case recognition of
any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item
being hedged.
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

() Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and
leases of low-value assets. When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, using
a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability
and hence are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued) 1 EXGHEEEE)
() HEEE@E@

() Leased assets (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see notes 1(h) and 1(m)(iii)).

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits is accounted
for separately from the right-of-use assets in accordance
with the accounting policy applicable to investments in debt
securities carried at amortised cost (see notes 1(j)(i), 1(w)(ii)
and 1(m)(i)). Any difference between the initial fair value and
the nominal value of the deposits is accounted for as additional
lease payments made and is included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment
is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change
in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease contract that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised lease payments
and lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

() Leased assets (continued)
The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property, plant
and equipment” and presents lease liabilities separately in the
statement of financial position.

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) on the financial assets measured
at amortised cost (including cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables and balances with related
parties). Other financial assets measured at fair value,
including equity and debt securities measured at FVPL,
equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling)
and derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL
assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between
the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

The expected cash shortfalls for fixed-rate financial assets
and trade and other receivables are discounted using the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition or
an approximation thereof where the effect of discounting is
material.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued) 1

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade and bill receivables are
always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when (i) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (ii) the financial assets are 30 to
90 days past due. The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

BHEEERUTIIEp—IRE%E

B

- TZEBREHEERE | KR
SHBAR+TZEAMNAAEHE
ERNENEH RIS HRNEG
B &

— 2RRHGEEER  RBEHR
EEBERERINEENEEE
FRET A EHANFRA R ERE
BN E MRS T RAYETE

BB ZRAERREZ BRER—
BEURERZHBRREEGEENE
B E - ZEMBEENTRMEER
EEDERENTERBEEES
RERFHYBRERRGE - A
RBEAREBZANRERR KRN
BEARER KRB —REERT
BT T LGREE o

MATEHRHMEMTIAMNS » ~%E
LAEER+ B R RMEE KA
REEEE > RIFERIAGER
B EIR SR LUREEE LA > RIS
BREURENEMBEMESRER
HUEERETE -

SERKREEE
RFE—ESRIAZEEAKRE
AR R EE LR > &
EEgHN RS HEMTEERT
BB ENNRMBENRBESE
HAFF TSR T AZEEONER
HATEEE o RIEHZIBE M > &
EERSE 0 R()EAEERIREE
REH (NFEEASS) STHE
TBER » WERARKATSEBEAE
ERMEEEEERT ; J(i)ZE
B EECELHS0EE0RE » B
RNBEBNEG - AEEEERE
FEAEENELRELER > 8
BEAMHBZMARLE HENATE
BB RATEEER o

HUNG HING PRINTING GROUP LIMITED JEBEEIRIEE B R AE

85

0%

=}

E:

z
o
=
o)
(2]
=
o
=4
=
o
I
>
o
=)
Q,
o
(9]
&
)
=
@
3
o)
>
=
()




86

1 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised
as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued) 1 EXGHEEEE)

(m) EEGIRREERE (R
(i) EfEHHFERZIGERE (B)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Credit losses from financial guarantees issued (continued)

Financial guarantees issued are initially recognised
at fair value, which is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm’s length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by
lenders when the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable estimates
of such information can be made. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised in profit
or loss over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued.

The Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor
will default on the contract and recognises a provision
when ECLs on the financial guarantees are determined
to be higher than the carrying amount in respect of the
guarantees (i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes in the
risk of default of the specified debtor since the issuance
of the guarantee. A 12-month ECL is measured unless
the risk that the specified debtor will default has increased
significantly since the guarantee is issued, in which case
a lifetime ECL is measured. The same definition of default
and the same assessment of significant increase in credit
risk as described in note 1(m)(i) apply.
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued (continued)
As the Group is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the specified debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an
ECL is estimated based on the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any
amount that the Group expects to receive from the holder
of the guarantee, the specified debtor or any other party.
The amount is then discounted using the current risk-free
rate adjusted for risks specific to the cash flows.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment, including right-of-use
assets;

— intangible assets (including goodwill);

— interest in an associate; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and other
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued) 1 EXGHEEEE)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued) (m) EEBEREERE(E)
(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued) (iii) B meEEmE (&)
— Calculation of recoverable amount — SEAKEEEE
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater BEAREOEEAEATER
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in HEMAKRFEREERE 2K

use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a CGU).
A portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset
(for example, head office building) is allocated to an
individual cash-generating unit if the allocation can be
done on a reasonable and consistent basis, or to the
smallest group of cash-generating units if otherwise.

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the CGU to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the CGU (or group of CGU) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of CGU) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)
— Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is
not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

(n) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued) 1 EXGHEEEE)
(o) REKRRELEY

(o) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
parts of the Group’s cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance with the
policy set out in note 1(m)(i).

(p) Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are initially measured at their transaction price.
Trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and other receivables are initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs. All receivables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost, using the effective interest method
and including an allowance for credit losses (see note 1(m)(i)).

(q) Trade and other payables (other than refund liabilities)

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Subsequent to initial recognition, trade and other payables
are stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice
amounts.

Refund liabilities arising from volume rebates are recognised
in accordance with the policy set out in note 1(w)(i).
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

(r)

(s)

t)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 1(x)).

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue (see note 1(w)). A contract liability
would also be recognised if the Group has an unconditional
right to receive non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see note

1(p))-

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

The Group operates a defined contribution staff retirement
scheme (the “Scheme”) for certain of its employees,
the assets of which are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
eligible employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
income statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Scheme. When an employee leaves
the Scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group’s
employer contributions vesting fully, the ongoing
contributions payable by the Group may be reduced by
the relevant amount of forfeited contributions.
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EAEHHER ()

(t) Employee benefits (continued) (t) EEEF @
(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined (i) FEHIIES1EF R REHRFIB R E

1 Material Accounting Policies (continued) 1

contribution retirement plans (continued)

The Group also operates another defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Contributions to the
MPF Scheme are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Employees who joined the Group before 1 December
2000 have the option to join either one of the schemes.
Employees who joined the Group on or after 1 December
2000 are only eligible to join the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal governments.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the income statement as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

The Group has no further obligations to pay once the
contributions have been paid for these schemes.

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments. The
Group recognises a provision where contractually obliged
or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

(t) Employee benefits (continued)
(i) Share-based payments

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan (the “Share Award Scheme”), under
which the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (shares) of the Group.
The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the shares is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the shares granted:

— including any market performance conditions;

— excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions; and

— excluding the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of shares that are expected to vest.
The total expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of shares that are expected
to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates,
if any, in the income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

Under the Share Award Scheme, directors and employees
of the Group are entitled to the shares for which are
held in trust by Law Debenture Trust (Asia) Limited (the
“Trustee”) for the benefit of the directors and employees.
The Trustee may be instructed to buy shares from the
market using the funds held by the Trustee. Details of
outstanding shares can be referred to note 24.
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

(t) Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

(u) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

(u) Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

(u) Income tax (continued)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

(v) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(w) Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods or the provision of services.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

(w) Revenue and other income (continued)
Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

(i)

Sales of goods
Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products.

Payment terms and conditions vary by customers and
are based on the billing schedule established in the
contracts or purchase orders with customers, but the
Group generally provides credit terms to customers within
90 months upon customer acceptance. The Group takes
advantage of practical expedient in paragraph 63 of
HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for any
effects of a significant financing component as the period
of financing is 12 months or less.

The Group offers retrospective volume rebates to
certain major customers when their purchases reach
an agreed threshold. Such volume rebates give rise to
variable consideration. The Group uses an expected
value approach to estimate variable consideration based
on the Group’s current approach to estimate variate
consideration based on the Group’s current and future
performance expectations and all information that is
reasonably available. This estimated amount is included in
the transaction price to the extent it is highly probable that
a significant reversal of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is resolved. At the time of sale
of goods, the Group recognises revenue after taking
into account adjustment to transaction price arising
from rebates as mentioned above. A refund liability is
recognised for the expected rebates and is included in
other payables.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset (see
note 1(m)(i)).
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

(w) Revenue and other income (continued)

(iii) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

(iv) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost
of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are effectively recognised in the
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.

(x) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in which they are incurred.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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1 Material Accounting Policies (continued) 1 BEREBEGE)
(z) Related parties (z) REAL
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is (@) MBUTAL  BIZALTHZAL
related to the Group if that person: IR EEBRE

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(i) PERISHBERIAER ;

(iy HEAEBEEAXESN ; K
(i) HAEEIFEFIATZE
EEEAE o

WFFE THMEMAEMS - BZEREA
TEFEBRE

() ZEREFSERRERN—£E
(BIEEAE - MBARKRER
& A BRI R A RAEE) ©

(iy —HEREAS—BEZHEA
BREEE (RS —SEFE
EEBETHERATZHEQNT

REERHE) o

(i) MEEREAR—
o

(v) —"BERERFE=FEEZS
¥ ME—BEA/ZFE=
BEEZBEAR -

(v) ZEESETEENAERRR
BEREZESEFMMR Zﬁﬁﬂﬁkﬁ
fEFETE -

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) ZERRZ L5 (@) ERMEE
person identified in (a). AN TiEH S EIES o

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (vii) E#iEE (a)(i)IEAFTERE A L H
over the entity or is a member of the key management ZERAE %&%ﬁ:ﬁ%;ﬁg
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). g (XZEREAR)ZEE

BAB -

(viii)The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (viiyiZERHEMBERE 2 EAK
part, provides key management personnel services to BARIAAEERSTEEZZ
the Group or to the Group’s parent. RERBEETEEIEASR o

RE-—ATZERIERRTTRZEZA LA
BERETEEINEERZZALRE
ZERRBHE °

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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2 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Fair value estimation of debt and equity financial
assets
The fair value of debt and equity financial assets that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select an
appropriate valuation method and makes assumptions that
are mainly based on market conditions existing at the issue
date and the end of each reporting period. The valuation
model requires the input of both observable and unobservable
data. Changes in these unobservable and subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate of
debt and equity financial assets.

(b) Provision for inventories

The Group reviews the carrying value of its inventories to
ensure that they are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. In assessing the net realisable value and
making appropriate allowances, management identifies, using
their judgement, inventories that are slow moving or obsolete,
and considering their physical conditions, age, market
conditions and market price for similar items.

Provision of ECL for receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for trade
and other receivables. The provision matrix is based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience (including credit
history of its customers) and the current and forecast economic
conditions. Management reassesses the provision at the end
of each reporting period.

(c)

Significant judgement is exercised on the assessment of
the collectability of trade receivables from each customer. In
making the judgement, management considers a wide range
of factors such as results of follow-up procedures performed
by sales personnel, customer payment trends including
subsequent payments and customers’ financial positions. If
the financial conditions of the customers of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowances may be required.

2

RAEE S sH& st R F R

et RAEBHIRBEEEECRAEMER (2
BEHRARSERTEBEEZARARESHZRE
A o WFAEEITEIE o

FEBFHARARRZ G RREK o BILE
2 G AFHRERR D EAMERERA
[ o TRl AE S S MEM B EE R
BERBRZREEFHEAFABZEARR
B2 (hst R fReR o

(a) REREREMBREEZ ATEMG
at
IR EETIZ EEBEZ @B RER N
MBEEZRATENLDRBGHERZE
E o AEBEFHAMLUEZBEGES
ARFHEEZEERETETEHRARERS
HAREFEZTRZRE o HERAER
BWARBRERANTREHRE - ZFFH
BREAEIBEOABRRZESHAHEER
BEtMBEEZATEGFEEEXN
B0

1

(b) FE#EE
TEBBRANEFEZIREE © URRFRET
ERMAHEATEFEFERZREET
IR o REME I 2RFERFHBEERE
B EEEERHIERERETFEAR
R~ B MRAEMER ZHEN
HAFIHNERERS ©

FEW R IRTRAR{S SRS IE A
FEBERBFEERG HRKEZRE
REMMEWRIAZ TREE B R5E o i
BREDRECERBEEEHIECH
(BEEERZIEELE) URER KRR
RREARREL - BEEERSREAR
BTG o

(c)

RERERRWEZIREZ FJREE
RS > ATIEE AHER o BO1F I H BR BT -
EEEETRFEZER (WHEASRAT
ZIRERFER  ERIRES (BEH
BAR) RBERZBMBRMR)  HAEH
ERZMBRREBE  ERREFELA
TMZBENMEE > RURJAEZRIELHERIME -
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3 Segment Information

The management committee (being the chief operating decision-
maker) has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed to make strategic decisions and assess
performance. The management committee, comprising the
executive chairman and other senior management, has determined
the operating segments based on these reports. The Group is
organised into four business segments:

(a) Book and Package Printing segment;

(b) Consumer Product Packaging segment;

(c) Corrugated Box segment; and

(d) Paper Trading segment.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

Revenue from external customers are after elimination of inter-
segment revenue. Inter-segment revenue is charged in accordance
with terms determined and agreed mutually by relevant parties.
Revenue is allocated based on the places/countries in which the
customers are located.

Management assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of gross profit and other revenue less
distribution costs, administrative and selling expenses, and other
net gain that are allocated to each segment. Other information
provided is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
financial statements.

Sales between segments are carried out at an arm’s length basis.

Segment results do not include corporate finance costs, other
corporate income and expenses and share of result of associates.
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3 Segment Information (continued)

(a) The following tables present revenue, results and certain
information for the Group’s business segments for the years

ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

3 PEEHGR)

(a) TREVAERHEZZE_=ZFER"E
ZTE+ZR=1t—HUILEEXKSE
EEE EERETEN -

Segmentrevenue  HEEEE

186,695
64,200

203,476
73,224

2,386,862

(3442m1)

250,895

477,400 (3442m1) 2,386,862

(9,289) (5.04) 3635 60577

133,667

(17,087)

5,021 9,319

Sales to external HEFIMER

customers 1,700,115
Inter-segment sales  HERHEE 5528
Total 5t 1,705,643
Segment results HEEE 122,569
Gain on disposal of ~ HEHE  BERRME

property, plantand 2 Rk 4i)

equipment (note 4(ii))
Corporate and TERFINEZ M

unallocated expenses
Operating proft TEER
Finance costs HENAE
Share of loss of FEEEAAARE

associates
Profit before income tax BF/GHaT AR
Income tax FiEH
Profitfor the year FEEHF
Depreciation and ERES

amortisation
Segment HE 79,720
Corporate and TERFIHE

unallocated
Total ot
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3 Segment Information (continued)

(b) Geographic information
The following table sets out information about the geographical
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers
and (ii) the Group’s property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and deposits for acquisition of non-current assets
(“specified non-current assets”). Revenue is allocated based
on the places/countries in which customers are located. The

3 SEERGE)

(b) HMEEF
TERENEM)ZTEERBIBERZ
Wik RVAEEZYE  BERR
% BREENRWEERBEES A
R (EEFERBEE)) HEUEE
Ko WHBBREEREME EXRS
B o iR IE R L AT EREEE

geographical location of the specified non-current assets is FRFRTEHIELEI S ©
based on the physical location of the assets.
Revenue from external customers Specified non-current assets
REIMEPE R 2 W EEERMEE

2023 2022 2023 2022
ZEZ=HF k- et - 3 ZE=HF k- Jemfat -
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
FiT T FiT =T
The PRC A 579,227 844,302 1,284,446 1,231,040
Hong Kong Fge s 344,109 429,032 97,788 90,230
United States of America = 962,027 1,167,997 - -
United Kingdom HE 167,750 214,501 - -
Other countries HithEEZxR 333,749 294,280 176,541 144,072
2,386,862 2,950,112 1,558,775 1,465,342

The Group’s customer base is diversified. For the year ended
31 December 2023, revenue of approximately $427,399,000
(2022: $499,096,000) is derived from one external customer
with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenue. These revenues are attributable to the sales of
book and package printing (2022: Sales of book and package
printing). Details of the concentrations of credit risk arising
from the customers are set out in note 27(c).

4 Revenue, Other Revenue and Other Net Gain

The principal activities of the Group consist of book and package
printing, the consumer product packaging, the corrugated box and
the trading of paper.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 121
of HKFRS 15 to its sales contract of paper trading and does not
disclose information about remaining performance obligations that
have an original expected duration of one year or less.
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4 Revenue, other Revenue and other Net Gain

4 EXH - HimREMFKRA

(continued) (#8)
The Group’s revenue, other revenue and other net gain, consist of FEEZEXTE HtEREMEWAS
the following: EUTRIA:
2023 2022
—®C-= ot et
$'000 $7000
Fiz S
Revenue from contracts with customers EFRMBHRESENFE15 > BR
within the scope of HKFRS 15 BNz
Sale of goods (recognised at a point in time) & &5 (R —ERIZEHEET) 2,386,862 2,950,112
Other revenue Hithhzs
Interest income FRUWA 23,743 14,544
Dividend income from financial investments SR EZREKRA 4,058 564
Government grants (note(i)) BB (FEE()) 10,460 29,193
Sales of scrap materials EERISHE 4,775 3,842
Sundry income HIERA 9,627 15,446
52,663 63,589
Other net gain HERHA
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BEKRREZ P
equipment (note(ii)) (P = (i) 131,043 60,677
Net foreign exchange loss AN = e (12,065) (20,191)
Net realised loss on derivative financial TEEHERZITEEMIAZ
instruments not qualified as hedges BEIREIEPE (1,726) (5,793)
Fair value gain/(loss) on structured bank ERMEIRITERATE
deposits Wik, (#518) 7,357 (293)
Impairment loss of investment in associates ~ REREEATRREEE (3,300) -
121,309 34,400

Notes:

PeE -

(i) In 2023, the Group recognised government grants of $1,278,000 (2022: (i)
$8,069,000) and $9,182,000 (2022: $21,124,000) from the Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and PRC, respectively,
in relation to the Group’s operation upon satisfaction of the conditions

attached to the receipts of these government grants.

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group surrendered (i)
and vacated from all of its land and properties in Wuxi under the Land
Resumption Agreements as set out in note 22 and recognised a gain of

$133,667,000 (2022: $59,813,000).

MRIEZ=F » ZAEBP WS U FHEE
IS5 - MAERN A RERERERER
BEBFITHRENBUTFHENE 1,278,000
T (ZETTH  #18,069,0007T) FAFER
ERT#BBh 759,182,000 (T —F : B
21,124,0007T) °

BE_Z-_=—#+"A=+—HILEE > £&
AR 35 M 51 22 F S A9 1 3t 0 37 3% B R B
MEEESNED LM EYME > FAitAEEE
U #1133,667,000 0 (ZBE_ZF : #
#59,813,0007T) ©
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5 Expenses by Nature

Expenses included in cost of sales and administrative and selling
expenses are analysed as follows:

5 EEBEINSZEH

BEHENE ~ THRRFEHZRAZ S
mE

2023 2022
—E== ot St -
Note $°000 $°000
fEE FT FiT
Depreciation® rees 10
— Owned property, plant and equipment  —&E%% « BER
Bt 103,503 109,089
— Other assets leased for own use —EERNEMEE 15,664 14,139
— Land use rights — i fE AR 3,674 3,906
122,841 127,134
Staff cost®* B T s
(including directors’ emoluments) (BIEEEME)
— Salaries, allowances, bonus and —&r ~ VERL  TEAL R
benefits in kind BEYF = 585,434 669,839
— Pension costs — defined contribution —RIRERZS— REMH
plans ETE 44,958 50,244
— Share-based payments — BRI 2,892 5,697
633,284 725,780
Amortisation of intangible assets” E B E R 1,580 2,067
Auditor's remuneration ZEEmEN &
— Audit services — 1 ZHRFE 2,878 2,706
— Non-audit services — IEZBBRTS 834 533
Research and development costs other BRI ES R A EH SNV ST A
than depreciation and amortisation* RN 5,004 5,309
Cost of sales* SHE R A 14(b) 1,997,950 2,530,264
Lease charges for short term leases SEHHEMTREER 3,934 1,386
Loss allowance of trade receivables, net  FEUN B ZERIEESIBE 5
JBEE 27(c) 5,556 11,302
Reversal of loss allowance of other Hith e R IBRS 18 55
receivables o - (162)
Loss allowance of loan to an associate REFT = ATIR
B REE 4,574 4,698

# Cost of sales include $529,363,000 (2022: $634,567,000) relating to staff
costs, depreciation and amortisation expenses, which amount is also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above.

Research and development costs other than depreciation and amortisation
includes $4,032,000 (2022: $4,186,000) relating to staff costs, which
amount is included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately
above.
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6 Finance Costs 6 RIEmMZ

2023 2022

—BC-= - o

$°000 $°000

Fz F7

Interest on bank borrowings (note 17(c)) RITMERZ R (MizE17(c)) 7,455 4,150
Interest on lease liabilities (note 17(c)) HEaEZFE (FiEE17(c)) 1,936 503
9,391 4,653

7 Emoluments for Directors and Management 7 EEREEEZME

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=ME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) IR EA(ATHERFINEE383(1)IER(AT]
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the (RBEEMNEER) RONE2PIREZ
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BEEMWEWT -

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Salaries, Employer’s
allowances contribution Share-
and benefits to pension Discretionary based
Fees in kind scheme bonus payments Total
Fid R EEBHE B
g REWFE R BBTEAL RRipfR 4t
$000 $7000 $1000 $000 $000 $000
FT FT FT F7T FT FT
Year ended BE_E-=H4C
31 December 2023 B=1+—HLEE
Executive directors: HiTEE .
Yum Chak Ming, Matthew* {E;Z8g¢ - 5,044 233 - 1,100 6,377
Yum Christopher Carson* {Efl{Z* - 650 30 - 7 751 gz
Sung Chee Keung® K& - 808 37 - 91 936 % ?w.;
#e
- 6,502 300 - 1,262 8,064 s
rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr 312}
=
Non-executive directors:  FEHTEE * 5
Yam Hon Ming, Tommy  {F£88 260 - - - - 260 3
Hirofumi Hori el 260 - - - - 260 oy
Yuji Motomatsu! PR 65 - - - - 65 ®
Hitoshi Shibasaki? LEIF(2 156 - - - - 156 )
Aki Tsuge TRiES 260 276 - - = 536 g
@
3
1,001 276 - - - 1,277 @
Independent non- BUHRTEE
executive directors:
Yap, Alfred Donald? EXE 104 - - - - 104
Luk Koon Hoo G35 260 - - - - 260
Lo Chi Hong LI 260 - - - - 260
Tan Chuen Yan, Paul* fEfE{4 156 - - - - 156
780 - - - - 80
1,781 6,778 300 - 1,262 10,121

HUNG HING PRINTING GROUP LIMITED JSEENRIEEBRAR 107



7 Emoluments for Directors and Management 7 EZKETEEBZME (&)

(continued)

(a) EFME (48)

(a) Directors’ emoluments(continued)

Year ended
31 December 2022

Executive directors:

Yum Chak Ming, Matthew* {FZ85#

Sung Chee Keung?®

Non-executive directors:

Yam Hon Ming, Tommy
Hirofumi Hori

Masashi Nakashima®
Yuji Motomatsu'

Aki Tsuge

Independent non-
executive directors:

Yap, Alfred Donald®

Luk Koon Hoo

Lo Chi Hong

BECE--S4Z
B=+—HLEE

HiTEE .

R

FHTEE
EEH
e
FlgH RS
KA
thiER

BUFHITEE -

BX®
R
‘S

# Chairman

' Resigned on 1 April 2023 !

X

RIZEZ=FMA—H#HT

2 Appointed on 26 May 2023 2 RIZZ=FHRRZ+HAHEZRE
3 Resigned on 25 May 2023 3 RIBI=FRRZ+HHGHE
4 Appointed on 25 May 2023 ¢ RIZZ=FHRR-+HBESRE
5  Resigned on 27 May 2022 5 RIZBZTHERRZHtHEHME

During the year, no director received any emoluments from
the Group as an inducement to join or leave the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. No director waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments.
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Emoluments for Directors and Management 7 ZEEXEEEZME (&)
(continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) ARREHAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in FENFERLLREHALTEE—%(C
the Group during the year included one (2022: two) executive ZTTF I MB)RITES > BEZME
directors. Their emoluments are reflected in the analysis HBEHRMHET@Z2 20T - BRE
presented in note 7(a). The aggregate of the emoluments in NEBETE R (ZEZ2E . =%) AL
respect of the remaining four* (2022: three) individuals during BN EARZRUNT ¢

the year are as follows:

2023 2022
—E-= ot e
$000 $000
FiT FiT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & ~ ZREREYHIE 9,929 7,569
Pension costs — defined contribution plans Bc& 74— R EHREE 332 231
Discretionary bonus FYIBTEAT - 2,757
Share-based payments B RN EN 954 1,713
11,215 12,270
*  Included one individual who has served as s director for part of the * BRE-ARAMBREERSRAREAE
financial year. FEZAxe
The number of highest paid non-director individuals whose WEBUTHEZRSHIFESALTA
emoluments fell within the following bands: e gz
Number of individuals i* 5]
AE 5
Mo
2023 2022 m
—E-= ot et §
$2,000,001 — $2,500,000 2,000,0017t—2,500,0007T 2 - &
$3,000,001 — $3,500,000 3,000,0017c—3,500,0007T 2 1 %
$4,000,001 — $4,500,000 4,000,0017t—4,500,0007T - 2 g
3
(2]
4 3
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7 Emoluments for Directors and Management 7 EZKEEREZME (&)
(continued)

(c) Senior management remuneration by band (c) BREBIEAS ZFHENER
Senior management remuneration by band included two (2022: BREEASZFHMERN EmE (ZE
two) executive directors: —TE I mBWITES:
Number of individuals
A
2023 2022
—E=fF ot St - 3
$2,000,000 and below 2,000,0007c KA 7 2
$2,000,001 — $3,000,000 2,000,0017t—3,000,0007T 2 4
$3,000,001 — $4,000,000 3,000,0017tc—4,000,0007T 2 2
Above $4,000,000 4,000,000t L 1 3
12 11
8 Income Tax in the Consolidated Income Statement 8 4&Z&UERAZFAEFR
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents: (a) HZREWBERAZIRIESS :
2023 2022
—E-=%F —E-CfF
$°000 $000
FiT FT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax RHARIE — HEFER
— Provision for the year —NEEERE 715 23
— Under-provision in respect of prior years —@EFEERETRE = 480
715 503
Current tax — PRC Income Tax ZsHARTE — PEIFRISTR
— Provision for the year —FEERE 72,534 9,332
Withholding tax R - 1
Deferred tax IRIEIRIA
Origination and reversal of temporary By 2 RE 2 R A e[ 43
differences (note 21(b)) (f=£2100)) (37,634) 10,609
35,615 20,445
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8 Income Tax in the Consolidated Income Statement 8 4F&WHERAZEAFH (4B)
(continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents: (a) frEWEmRAZNIGE @ (&)

(continued)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2023 and 2022 is
calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profits for the
year.

Hung Hing Printing (China) Company Limited (“HHCN”), an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, was certified
as a High-New Technology Enterprise in 2020. The effective
PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”) for 2022 and 2023 was
subject to a reduced tax rate of 15%. For PRC entities other
than HHCN, PRC Income Tax represents CIT calculated at
25% (2022: 25%) and PRC withholding tax at the applicable
rates. Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations,
provision for PRC withholding tax on dividend income is
calculated based on 5% (2022: 5%) of the dividend income
from subsidiaries in the PRC.

The Provision for corporate income tax (“CIT”) in Vietnam is
calculated at 20% of the estimated taxable profits for the year.
HH Dream Printing Company Limited and HHD (Thai Ha)
Company Limited, subsidiaries of the Company incorporated
in Vietnam, are entitled to a preferential tax treatment of CIT
exemption for the first two years starting form which profit is
generated and 50% income tax reduction for the next four
years.

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations, provision for
Vietnam withholding tax on interest income is calculated based
on 5% (2022: 5%) of the interest income from subsidiary in
Vietnam.

TR =FRISIZEEFBTERE
BIREFEENGERREFN216.5%

5t -

RATIEBEEZENE AT BEER (f
E)BRAT (MREAE) RS
ERBASHMEMEE —S22FK
TEC-FERPECEFRER(ThE
FRi8M 1) B RMNES15% o FIREF
BN PEIERS - FEIFFSRIERE
FriS#i#25% (ZT "4 : 25%) =X
STERTEENRZERREAHE R
ERATSIRR B R ARG > B EWA Z R E
FENREBEEPERBATRERAZ
5%(ZFE_ 4 5%)FtHE o

HEEEMGR (TEEMFRL) BE
REFENMGRRTEF 220% 5t
R o AEENBEEMNIIZINEAT
HH Dream Printing Company Limitedz
HHD (Thai Ha) Company Limited B ZE4
FHEEMERTZRRBEXEMRERE
BB TNHEBNFEERHS0%ME
o

IRIBFAIEMARR KRFRF > MEF B WA
FEINREELREUERB AR B
ABB% (CB==4F 1 5%)5tE o
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8 Income Tax in the Consolidated Income Statement 8 #ZF&WHERAZEASH (4B)

(continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and profit before income (b) HBRMEFHEZRIER S EIRFIFR
tax at applicable tax rates: AR Z $HER ©
2023 2022
ot ol 3 k- St - 3
$'000 $°000
F5 F7
Profit before income tax FRPRISIAT AR 166,883 74,953
Notional tax on profit before income tax,  FRFFEIRATERZ LBIRE » 1%
calculated at the rates applicable to ARBEEERIERZR
profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned RiE 37,975 14,739
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AENMRFAZ 2 R is R 2 5,545 7,345
Tax effect of non-taxable income JEFEEMINAZ IR E (5,441) (7,119)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not FARERZ REBRIESEZ
recognised during the year R 6,188 7,428
Tax effect of utilisation of previously ERBFFEERMER ZNIERE
unrecognised tax losses e = (2,851)
Withholding tax on earnings remitted/ HEHBATEEL TaiiE
expected to be remitted by PRC HEMZFENR
subsidiaries 5,226 3,756
Under provision in prior years BEFERERE = 480
Statutory tax concession SEERIBER (14,453) (3,831)
Others Hith 575 498
Actual tax expense BERERY 35,615 20,445
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9 Earnings Per Share 9 HiET

(a) Basic earnings per share (a) SRETERF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the ERERBIRBERNRATERGE
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of A FEA 3% F) 7 135,155,000 T (= &
$135,155,000 (2022: $66,038,000) and the weighted average T : %66,038,0007T) REANBD %
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year excluding TEIBR (FEERASIRERMIZE
ordinary shares purchased by the Company under the Share BEE 2 EBR) ZINETHREEE -

Award Scheme.

2023 2022
—EC=H o et
Profit attributable to equity shareholders of ZAF#HEIFHE AESGEH)
the Company ($'000) (F7) 135,155 66,038
Weighted average number of ordinary BETEBER ZNETHRE
shares in issue (‘000) (F1D) 907,865 907,865
Weighted average number of own held TR DB B A B IFERDZ
shares for Share Award Scheme (‘000) INREEIIRRER (F1D) (5,737) (8,858)
Weighted average number of ordinary AEEREABANZERTEE
shares in issue for calculation of basic A& Z NI RGEL (1)
earnings per share (‘000) 902,128 899,007
Basic earnings per share SREAREF (SRAEWL)
(HK cents per share) 15.0 7.3

0%

=}
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z
o
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9 Earnings Per Share (continued) 9 EREF(EE)

(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) SRIEFRF
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the EREERMN BB ATESFEA
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of FE(L & F B 15135,155,0000 (ZE -
$135,155,000 (2022: $66,038,000) and the weighted average F : $B1566,038,0007T) K i i@ RGN A
number of ordinary shares of 907,048,000 shares (2022: SEIRE8907,048,00008 (ZE - " 4F
904,819,000 shares). 904,819,0008%) £+& o
2023 2022
—E-= ot e

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of ZxAEIHE A ARG EF]
the Company ($'000) (F52) 135,155 66,038

Weighted average number of ordinary BEITEBR 2 INET SR

shares in issue (‘000) (F4D) 902,128 899,007
Effect of deemed issue of shares under the X1 ARIEAR AT IR IEENETE)
Company’s Share Award Scheme (‘000)  TE{THIRR(D 2 528 (F111) 4,920 5,812

Weighted average number of ordinary R+_A=+—BE&ER(E#

shares (diluted) at 31 December (‘000) ) Z TR S (1) 907,048 904,819
Diluted earnings per share SREERY (SREWL)
(HK cents per share) 14.9 7.3
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10 Property, Plant and Equipment 10 Y% - BER & 1HE

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) BREIE¥IER
Ownership Other Furniture, Properties
Land interests  assets leased Plantand Motor fixtures and under
userights  inbuildings  forownuse  machinery vehicles ~ equipment  construction Total
TN HEARN fRRE
LhERE  mARER AffEE  HRERMHE ot kith  aEE 3t
$1000 $000 $7000 $7000 $000 $000 $7000 $7000

77 77 77 7 77 77 7 7

Yearended 31 December 2022 HZ-F--f&

TZAZt-ALEE
Netbook value at 1 January 2022 ~ —E-—F-A—RiKESE 118,838 395525 7923 783,756 6,621 42,983 36,714 1,392,360
Additions HE - 3,528 41,198 33,614 - 11,958 94,348 184,646
Transfer from properties under EREnRMYE
construction - 1,817 - - - 3,722 (5,539) -
Transfer from deposits for SRERBFTEEEL
acquisition of non-current assets & - - - 11,545 - 1,461 22,617 35,683
Disposalsfurite-off HE /s (121 (55%) - (1360) 00) (69 - @
Depreciation (note 5) 1% (i) (3906)  (2037)  (141%) (7I501)  (1789)  (7762) - (3
Impairment loss HfERE - = = (420) = = = (420)
Exchange diferences E2E (5700 (15054) (19) (4484  (M49)  (666)  (181)  (46.259)
Net book value at 31 December 2022 ~B=-#+-A=+-R
FESE 107,957 358,247 34,963 712,903 4,593 51,001 148,019 1,417,683
At 31 December 2022: W-8ZZE+-A=+-H:
Cost i 164,013 728,867 40,252 1,938,866 25236 168,546 148,019 3,213,799
Accumulated depreciation ZitirE (56,056)  (370,620)  (5,289) (1,225963)  (20,643)  (117,545) - (1,796,116)
Net book value KEFE 107,957 358,247 34963 712,903 4,593 51,001 148,019 1,417,683
Yearended 31 December 2023 ~ HZ-E-=f gz
tZAZ+-BLLEE s &
Net book value at 1 January 2023 ~ —E-=5—-B—RiKESE 107,957 358,247 34,963 712,903 4,593 51,001 148,019 1,417,683 %ﬂ ?:
Additions #E - 152,055 16,473 49,939 3,024 7,656 5364 234,511 B3
Transfer from properties under BREARMYY .
construction - 119470 - - - 8,593  (128,063) - 2
Transfer from deposits for SERREENgEEL ol
acquisition of non-current assets he - m - 11,328 10 2,920 - 15,329 o
Acquisition of a subsidiary company  WE—THBAR &
(note 17(e)) (HH17(e) - 10 - - - 360 - 370 g
Disposalshwrite-0ffs e/ @351)  (#183) - (ost) (s (8) - (57415 3
Depreciaton (note 5) i (435 (3674)  (19517) (15664  (12870) (184  (9.274) - (28H) 2
Impairment loss HfEFE - - - (67) = = = (67)
Exchange differences EREE (026) 395 - (548 @5 (28 @78 (543
Net book value at 31 December 2023 ~5-=%+-A=1-H
FESE 99,006 573,357 35772 685,228 5107 60,471 22592 1,482,133
At 31 December 2023: RZFZ=%+ZB=+-A:
Cost A 155,664 928,435 56,722 1,920,708 25533 183,979 22,592 3,293,633
Accumulated depreciafion BiflfE (56,658) (355078)  (20950) (1,235480)  (19.826) (123,508 - [(1811,500)
Net book value KEFE 99,006 573,357 35,772 685,228 5707 60,471 22,592 1,482,133
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10 Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets,
carried at depreciation cost, by class of underlying asset is as

10 3% ~ B Re=s i (4R)
(b) FERERE

DUFres s A5 BR W 2 AR RA B EE 4R R B
ZEAEEENREFEDTNT !

follows:
2023 2022
ZE=F k- St -
Note $'000 $000
FfE T T
Land use rights, with remaining lease TR EHAA10ERM L
term within 10 years, situated in HEFRE > ikt (i) 1,477 1,977
~PRC —FE
Land use rights, with remaining lease  FlgsfAEHAZA /T F10-504
term between 10-50 years, situated At IhfEFEHE > (it
in (i)
— Hong Kong —&8 12,008 12,547
- PRC —FRE 76,213 83,601
— Vietnam — & 9,308 9,832
99,006 107,957
Other assets leased for own use HEBRNEHMEE (i) 35,772 34,963
134,778 142,920
Note: FiEE -
(i) Land use rights (i) EHhfEFERE

(it)

The Group holds land for its manufacturing facilities and office
premises. The Group is the registered owner of these leasehold
lands, including the whole or part of undivided share in the land.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire these leasehold
lands from their previous registered owners, and there are no ongoing
payments to be made under the terms of the land lease, other than
payments based on rateable values set by the relevant government
authorities. These payments vary from time to time and are payable to
the relevant government authorities.

Other assets leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other properties as its
warehouses, office, retail shops, staff quarters and office equipment
through tenancy agreements. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to five years. Some leases include an option to renew
the lease when all terms are renegotiated.
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10 Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 10 % - BE RS ()

(b) Right-of-use assets (continued) (b) EREEE ()
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised RiEEANERZEEEMAZEE 2
in profit or loss is as follows: mr:
2023 2022
—EC-=H o et
$°000 $°000
FiT FT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets AEREELERIEI D 2 EREE
by class of underlying asset: EZIERA
Land use rights (note 5) iR (i 5E5) 3,674 3,906
Other assets leased for own use (note 5)  THE B ARYEME ZE (FiE5) 15,664 14,139
19,338 18,045
Interest on lease liabilities (note 6) HEAEZHE (M56) 1,936 503
Expense relating to short-term leases FEHATE S & A (FfHEED)
(note 5) 3,934 1,386
During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were RAEER FEFAEREEALASB
$16,473,000 (2022: $41,198,000). This amount primarily 116,473,000 C (ZEBE - ZF : HiE
related to the capitalised lease payments under new tenancy 41,198,0007T) » S AT ELARIEIRTA
agreements. EfpEENM A EARER o
Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity B ERS AEEEREEAETHE §
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 17(d) and 20 BOthZE#E > DRERME17d)E ﬁ
respectively. 20 o =
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11 Investments in Subsidiaries

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets and liabilities of the Group.
The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

1 RItBARNRE

TREHEFTETVELEEEE  EHERE
BZMBABZ#1E BB HERI » Fifs
RINEERI R E B ©

Issued and fully

Place of incorporation Principal activities paid up shares/
Name and type of legal entity and place of operation registered capital
BETRARRS/
£ MR RS IEXRREEM iR
Hung Hing Off-Set Printing Hong Kong/Limited liability Production and trading of paper products 100 ordinary shares
Company Limited company and carton boxes/Hong Kong
BEMSIEERAR &5/ERLT HRRVELERER &4 100 EER
Sun Hing Paper Company Hong Kong/Limited liability Paper trading/Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares
Limited company
RHAERAR &%/ERAT YiRES/BR 100 EER
Hung Hing Printing (China) The PRC/Limited liability Production and colour printing of $566,000,000
Company Limited company paper products/The PRC
TRESR| (hE) BRARSS HE/ERAT BREERYE/HE 566,000,0007¢
Tai Hing Paper Products Hong Kong/Limited liability Trading of corrugated cartons boxes/ 100 ordinary shares
Company, Limited company Hong Kong
AEGRERAR &8/BRLTY REgRES B4 100 EER
Beluga Limited Hong Kong/Limited liability Design and production of 2 ordinary shares
company “print + digital” products/Hong Kong
ERMERAT &8/ERAY FHREETIR 87 R/ R IREER
Toppwork Limited Hong Kong/Limited liability Professional services/Hong Kong 10,000
company ordinary shares
REARAT E/ERLR LY 10,000 &%
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11 Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

11 RIBARNRE (8)

Issued and fully
Place of incorporation Principal activities paid up shares/
Name and type of legal entity and place of operation registered capital
BEARERRR/
4] SRR Rt EER IEREREENE itfiE
Stem Plus Limited Hong Kong/Limited liability Educational services/Hong Kong 21,850
company ordinary shares
Stem Plus Limited &8/ AR HBHY/ B 2 850REER
Active Minds Limited Hong Kong/Limited liability Trading and Distributor/Hong Kong 1,000,000
company ordinary shares
BRERLT B8 /BRAR BRRIHE,/ B 1,000,000 S 188
Zhongshan Hung Hing Printing & ~ The PRC/Limited liability Printing and manufacturing of USD20,000,000
Packaging Company Limited ¢ company paper cartons/The PRC
hUBREPIEEARATS e/ ARAR GRA%/TE 20,000,057
South Gain Enterprises Limited ~Hong Kong/Limited liability Selling and purchasing agent/ 1,700,000
company Hong Kong ordinary shares
BRCEARAR &E/ AR BEAR/ & 1,700,000 8%
Po Hing Packaging (Shenzhen) ~ The PRCILimited liability Printing and manufacturing of USD11,200,000
Company Limited company paper cartons/The PRC
BRRE (M BRAR S WE/BRAF gams/4E 11,20000057C
Zhongshan South Gain Paper The PRC/Limited liability Printing and manufacturing of USD15,000,000
Products Company Limited ¥ company paper cartons/The PRC
hlEEERRRERAR:S WE/BRAF gams/4E 15,000,000%7C
Hung Hing Packaging (Wuxi) The PRC/Limited liability Production and colour printing of USD61,050,000
Company Limited company paper products/The PRC
BRGE(EH)BRARS WE/BRAF AREERYE/HE 61,050, 000%7%
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11 Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

1 RIBARRNRE (8)

Issued and fully

Place of incorporation Principal activities paid up shares/
Name and type of legal entity and place of operation registered capital
BEORERRR/
& AR EER TEREREENE i
Hung Hing Printing (Heshan) The PRC/Limited liability Production and colour prining of $630,600,000
Company Limited company paper products/The PRC
TBELR (B BRAR:S WE/BRAF HREERYE/TE 630,600,007
Jun Hing Company Limited The PRC/Limited liability Paper trading/The PRC $19,200,000
company
SEDRMM (R ERARSS  HE/BRAR 48R/ E 19,200,007
Jun Hing Paper (Shenzhen) The PRC/Limited liability Paper trading/The PRC RMB20,000,000
Company Limited company
BEGE (M BRAR:S WE/BRAF 48R/ E AB120,000,0007
Guangdong Lianhe Packaging The PRC/Limited liability Printing and manufacturing of USD16,880,000
Company Limited company paper cartons/The PRC
RREADEARAR: WE/BRAF gems/ 48 16,880, 000%7C
HH Dream Printing Company Vietnam/Limited liability Production and colour printing of VND
Limited company paper products/Vietnam 575,000,000,000
HH Dream Printing Company Limited ~ /R4 BREERV/ M 575,000,000,000%/E
HHD (Thai Ha) Company Limited  Vietnam/Limited liability Production and colour printing of VND
company paper products/Vietnam 121,405,900,000
HHD (Thai Ha) Company Limited ~~ #78/BRAF BREERTE/ W 121,405,900,000 87
§  Sino-foreign equity joint venture s HHIMEERE
$  Wholly foreign-owned enterprise s HMEEELE
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11 BB ABNEE (48)

TR AR EERRARDFER RS
WIBEENRIBEARAR (IR EEEZHE
AT MAEAIFERIE R (TIFZEH
1)) ZEK o TXETZMBERBERE
RIAREEHEA 2 28 > R EERRA
Bl FEEARBZ HEHRR -

11 Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

The following table lists out the information relating to South
Gain Enterprises Limited Sub-group and Zhongshan Hung Hing
Printing & Packaging Company Limited, the subsidiaries of the
Group which have material non-controlling interests (“NCI”). The
summarised financial information presented below represents
the amounts before any inter-company elimination except for the
elimination within South Gain Enterprises Limited Sub-group.

South Gain Enterprises Limited Zhongshan Hung Hing Printing &

Sub-group Packaging Company Limited
MmtXEARARTFER B RENRI BRARAT
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-=fF k- et 3 —E-=f ot St - 3
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
FiT T S FiT
NCI percentage JEFFIMERE R T oL 29% 29% 29% 29%
Current assets TRENEE 113,141 141,041 72,215 82,225
Non-current assets ERBEE 91,784 99,595 194,918 199,801
Current liabilities hEEE (29,986) (55,380) (46,460) (33,624)
Non-current liabilities ERENEE (658) (2,693) (3,955) (5,223)
Net assets BEEFE 174,281 182,563 216,718 243,179
Carrying amount of NCI FEEHIM R
BRMEE 50,541 52,919 62,848 70,522
Revenue S 162,273 200,867 102,597 112,446
Loss for the year AEERIE (5,949) (11,812) (22,170) (34,486) %z
Total comprehensive 2ENTAEEE o
income (8,282) (28,125) (26,461) (59,210) %* 55:
Loss allocated to NGl $EREIEEEHII g
A5 (1,725) (3,425) (6,429) (10,001) 2
2
Cash flows from operating #& %S »
activities ReRE 19,796 (6,263) (261) (10,074) )
Cash flows from investing REX#HR1EZ 3
activities Hens (1,169) (8,222) (3,932) (2,227) @
Cash flows from financing R4 %718
activities RERE (14,125) 19,105 30,294 15,770
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12 Interest in Associates

12 REHE AR Z

2023
—E-=

$°000

FT

Share of net assets of associates S AT ZEERE 8,915

Goodwill BaE 6,395
Loan to an associate (note) REFT—REBEATZ

=t NI -

15,310

Note: The loan to an associate is unsecured, interest-free and repayable after
one year. The amount is netted off with a provision of loss allowance.

The following list contains the particulars of the associates, all of
which are unlisted and their quoted market price is not available.
The associates are accounted for using equity method in the

consolidated financial statements:

M RETFT-EBEQRNZERAEIER &
BRER—FRHEE - ZZSTHGE
BRERTATEN o

TREFBEABNFE > RFAKME QRN
RIELEHAF > WEDIZRE - BEQRTD
RAEEDENREMBRRAR

Place of
Form of business incorporation and Particulars of issued
Name of associate structure business and paid up capital Principal activity
BRTRER
HEQRER ES R HHERES fedstE TEEH
Guangzhou Honghai Incorporated The PRC/The PRC RMB6,527,750 Provision of innovative
Enterprise Co., Limited printing services
BMTABCERRAT  BRHAE FE/hE AEH6,527,7507C FRAHRIRRENRIARTS
D & P Education Kingdom  Incorporated British Virgin Islands/ ~ USD1,000 Selling and distribution
Holdings Limited Hong Kong of learning package
D & P Education Kingdom ~ IR{3A] EERUBE/EE  100ET HERDHLBEH
Holdings Limited
Yum Me Limited Incorporated Hong Kong/ $2,000,000 Trading
Hong Kong
Yum Me Limited RIAE &8/ 5% 2,000,000 g5
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13 Financial Investments 13 HFEIIRE

2023 2022
ZE-=HF k- Jemfat -
$°000 $000
ST FiT
Financial assets designated at FVOCI IEERATFESAHM
(non-recycling) EEWNEZMHBEEE
(FAIEHE)
Unlisted equity investments JEETHRRANIGE 46,511 45,076
Hong Kong listed equity investments, ERLETRAKRE
at quoted market price (U5 HREET) 8,916 12,598
55,427 57,674
14 Inventories 14 78
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial (a) &FEHBRRARZEEEHE
position comprise:
2023 2022
ZE=HF k- Jomfat -
$000 $000
FiT 7T
Raw materials* AR 267,820 355,894 -
Work in progress RS 58,977 89,382 % &
Finished goods SRR 96,528 111,293 i
423,325 556,569 I
Less: Write-down of inventories S © 7 O (22,297) (16,343) 3
&
@
401,028 540,226 %
3
S
(2]
* At 31 December 2023, $52,743,000 (2022: $66,139,000) of raw * RIEZ=F+"BA=+—H > BE#E
materials were designated for paper trading business. 852,743,000 TT(ZEZZF : B

66,139,0007T) #WIEE (FARRE 2 %55 ©
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14 Inventories (continued) 14 78 (48)

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised (b) BRAMZRAABEZEESEH
as an expense and included in profit or loss is as ST -
follows:

2023 2022

—EC=F ot ot -

$7000 $7000

F7 77

Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEEEREE 1,994,147 2,531,343

Write-down/(reversal of write-down) of FEMRL (R E)
inventories, net FE 3,803 (1,079)
1,997,950 2,530,264
15 Trade and other Receivables 15 FEWLES 5 ARTE R H {th FEULTRIA

2023 2022

ot e 3 ot et

$7000 $7000

FiT FiT

Trade receivable FEWE ZERIE 545,675 550,805
Less: loss allowance (note 27(c)) A BRI (MEE27(c)) (23,230) (18,004)
522,445 532,801

Trade receivable due from related parties FEWRAEA T ESERIE 293 =
Total trade receivable, net RRERE ZERIERE 522,738 532,801
Bills receivable FEUS 203 608

Prepayment, deposits and other receivables FEITIE « S

HihpEIE 103,301 94,795

626,242 628,204
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15 Trade and other Receivables (continued) 15 FEMYE 5 ARTE B H fth FEUL TR IE (48)

Al of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered Fr FEUR & 5 BRIE K Hth FE U RR B TE IR 7 —
or recognised as expense within one year. FRREIHER A o

Ageing analysis ERES IR

The ageing analysis of total trade receivable at the end of the RS RARARFEUN B 5 BRIE 2 ARER D4 (IR
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss S AT ELINRESIERE) WT ¢

allowance, is as follows:

2023 2022
—B_=f k- ot 3
$'000 $'000
FiT FiT
1-30 days —E=+H 220,826 238,146
31-60 days =+—Zx+H 153,758 115,314
61-90 days ~tT—ZEA+H 78,401 65,962
Over 90 days BEh+a 69,753 113,379
522,738 532,801
Trade receivable are normally due within 30 to 90 days from the FEWE ZRE—KBEZRHEN=TE
date of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set NT+BREE - AEBREEBERZE—DEH
out in note 27(c). IBERHIEE27(c) ©
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16 Structured Bank Deposits 16

Structured bank deposits were stated at fair value and represented
currency linked products issued by banks. The principals and
returns were not guaranteed by the relevant banks and the
maximum expected rates of return are ranging from 6.4% to 8.5%
(2022: 6.9% to 8.6%) per annum. The Group designated these
structured bank deposits as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition.

ESIBIEERITERR

EBMEIRITERIR AT EYIER » F5RRTHR
TRSMER S ES - HRERITEEME SR
EI3RIELIER > M EARRENTSE
6.4%E85%(ZE -4 : 6.9%=E8.6%) °
REMPY L RDEHG S B M RITER
IEEARATESABRZNMBEE -

17 Cash and Cash Equivalents 17 RERIREEEW

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

(a) HERFAEFEMEE :

2023 2022

—EC=H o et

$000 $000

T FiT

Cash at banks and on hand $RITRFEEIRS 810,695 1,042,535
Less: time deposits with original maturity over & : REIEARBB=1EA

three months 2 ERRERR (11,035) (69,694)
Cash and cash equivalents in consolidated ZEIRERERANZIES

statement of cash flows EIREZEY 799,660 972,841
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17 RERRESFEY (B)
(b) BRFAGMATEFAEBEEZRE

17 Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash

generated from operations: ZHER
2023 2022
—EC=H§ kot -
Note $1000 $7000
e Fiz FiT
Profit before income tax BRFR{SIRATER 166,883 74,953
Adjustments for: HhE
Interest income FEIBA 4 (23,743) (14,544)
Dividend income from financial SRREZRE
investments WA 4 (4,058) (564)
Net gain on disposal of property, HEME  BERREZIR
plant and equipment e 4 (131,043) (60,677)
Net realised loss on derivative financial ~ FEEHBERZITESRT
instruments not qualified as hedges A7 E#REIEPE 4 1,726 5,793
Impairment loss on investment in BRERBERARNRE
associates 518 4 3,300 =
Fair value (gain)/loss on structured bank  #E#&1ERITERZ ATE
deposits (Wess) /548 4 (7,357) 293
Depreciation e 5 122,841 127,134
Amortisation of intangible assets BB EHE 5 1,580 2,067
Loss allowance of trade receivables, net  FEUN B 5 BRIEAS B35 548 5 5,556 11,302
Reversal of loss allowance of other Hh eI Es a0
receivables 5 - (162)
Loss allowance of loan to an associate 1Rt F—RIHBE AT ER
E51EE 5 4,574 4,698
Finance costs BHE R A 6 9,391 4,653
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) of FEMR, MuRisE) BME Tz
inventories, net 14(b) 3,803 (1,079) %
Payment for purchase of shares for R ERHIRENS BRI Eﬁ 2-
Share Award Scheme 24 - (2,095) 3 g
Restricted share award scheme PRI M A H 2B 5t 8IF |
expenses 24 2,892 5,697 2
Share of loss of associates -y 933 2,736 é.
Net foreign exchange SNEFE (18,182) (41,245) ®
&
139,096 118,960 3
(2]
Changes in working capital: EEEREE)
Decrease in inventories 725/ 146,868 194,215
Decrease in trade and other receivables  FEULEE 5 BRIE R H (thFEUER
IEm 2,548 292,276
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other  FE{} & FERIBREMAENT
payables B, G 10,247 (150,109)
Cash generated from operations EBRELZRE 298,759 455,342
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17 Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued) 17 RERINEEEY (B)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified
in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

(c) MEEHEEZARYKR

TRFARFEEREZHELEZQEE
B BRRERIFREEH  MEE
PELEZARAREREBIRKERR
B> ZAREAELERRERERER
DEAMETHFISRENME -

Bank borrowings (note 19)

SRITIERR (BidEE19)

Lease liabilities (note 20)

AEaE (Mizk20)

2023 2022 2023 2022
—EC=HE b bt —EC-=H - bt
$'000 $'000 $000 $000
F7 F7 i F7
At 1 January K—RA—HB 191,578 192,282 38,027 = 8321
Changes from financing RERSREE .
cash flows:
Capital element of lease EfHEEREZ
rentals paid KEED - - (15,442) (11,492)
Interest element of lease EfNEEHREZ
rentals paid FEEH - = (1,936) (503)
Proceeds from bank RITIEFRPTIS A
borrowings - 112,855 - -
Repayments of bank BIEIRITER
borrowings (65,573) (113,559) - -
Interest paid BUFE (7,541) (4,292) = =
Total changes from BEIRE R B AREE)
financing cash flows - (73,114) (4,996)  (17,378)  (11,995)
Other changes: Hithi&s) :
Increase in lease liabilities  ZRBEHARFTILFRFALIM
from entering new leases HEAEEMm
during the period - - 16,473 41,198
Interest expenses (note 6)  F BRI (HiEE6) 7,455 4,150 1,936 503
Decrease in interest payable FE{HF] 2D 85 142 - -
Total other changes Hth4REiE) - 1,540 4,292 18,409 = . 41,701
At 31 December ®W+=B=+—H 126,004 191,578 39,058 38,027
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17 Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued) 17 RERNEEEY ()

(d) Total cash outflow for leases (d) FAERERNAREE
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash flows GeRERERTEMEENHEENT !
for leases comprise the following:

2023 2022
—EC=H ot ot -
$°000 $°000
FiT =
Within operating cash flows EERESNEN 3,934 1,386
Within financing cash flows MERESRERN 17,378 11,995
21,312 13,381

These amounts relate to the following: ZEREBEELTRIEMEE -
Lease rentals paid BffHEEHRS 21,312 13,381
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17 Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued) 17 RERINEEEY (B)

(e) Acquisition of a subsidiary (e) WiE—FEMIBAR
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group acquired HE-_Z-=F+"“A=+—HL#EF
all equity interest in Active Minds Limited (“AML”) from B> AEERBIE=AFLERERER
independent third parties at cash consideration of $15,796,000. 115,796,000 c W BB ER BB R A F] (TEE
AML is principally engaged in trading and distribution of BIOBERGEZ  BRZETEERS
English children books, education toys and stationery BEXREEE - HERARXEYSRE
categories. SR EE o
The fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired as RUEEBFREZ T EEREBEZ
at the date of acquisition are set out as follows: NEEFITNT :
2023
—E-=
Note $7000
FEE Fir
Property, plant and equipment M ~ BERRE 10 370
Inventories =Zz5 11,474
Trade and other receivables FEU B2 5 ARTE R L FE UG IE 6,989
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERE 3,745
Trade and other payables FE(T B 2 IR IE R Lt FE (T FRIE (5,682)
Other liabilities Hiheafs (1,100)
Total identifiable net assets at fair values, DIREREBZ A Z R EE
satisfied by cash consideration HEREZ NTE 15,796
Analysis of net cash outflow in respect of BREMUALBE—MEATZ
the above acquisition of a subsidiary RERHFEZ D
Cash consideration BEARE 15,796
Cash at bank and on hand acquired BISZIRITRFHEES (3,745)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in BREAWE—EREBARREKR
respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary REEEBYIZRE$EE 12,051
Since the acquisition of the newly acquired business BHE_Z_=F+ZA=+—HLtHEF
contributed revenue of $32,441,000 and net loss of $4,316,000 B> HRWBEZNBAEZEBEREAER
to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023, there is B R4 B 132,441,000 7T B R 5 18
no significant change in this impact had the combination taken %164,316,0007T » BARZEHESSE
place at the beginning of the year. T > ZRBIRBEREL -
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18 Trade and other Payables 18 FE(TE ZEARIER HthFE{IFRIA

2023 2022
—E== ot St - 3
$000 $°000
ST FiT
Trade payable FE{TE ZERIE 112,909 139,184
Bills payable (note 18(b)) FETEEHR (FiEE18(D)) 10,014 8,545
Receipt in advance — current portion (note 22) FEUS T IE — BNEBER
(F¥sE22) - 126,863
Deferred income — current portion (note 22) IRSEYA — BRERER 9
(KM¥5E22) 6,267 11,930
Other payable and accrued liabilities (note 18(c)) HhfENFIEREARE
(PH218(c) 208,453 167,802
Amount due to an associate (note 18(d)) FES—RHE AT
(MF5E18(d)) 5,700 -
343,343 454,324
Except for an amount of $1,337,000 (2022: $1,763,000), all of the PRERIEANE 1,337,000 (2222
remaining balances of trade and other payables are expected to be 7&#51,763,0007T) 5 » FREETE SR
settled or recognised as income within one year or are repayable IBREMENMRIBZ SR T AAGRTEEAN —
on demand. FERNFEFERABATIZEREE o

0%

=}

E:

z
o
=
o)
(2]
=
o
=4
=
o
I
>
o
=)
Q,
o
(9]
&
)
=
@
3
o)
>
=
()

HUNG HING PRINTING GROUP LIMITED JSEENRIERBRAR 131



18 Trade and other Payables (continued)

(a)

The aging analysis of the total trade payable at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

18 FEftE B IRIAR H Mt FE{ITRIR (48)
(a) MEREHKRBIESE R RIBZARE

S (RBEERBMAFWMT ©

2023 2022
—EC=H k- ekt 3
$'000 $'000
FiT FiT
1-30 days —E=+H 82,406 100,214
31-60 days =+—=/;x+H 22,801 27,132
61-90 days ~NtT—ZEh+H 3,261 6,163
Over 90 days #ah+a 4,441 5,675
112,909 139,184

(b) All bills payable at 31 December 2022 and 2023 were (o) I —EZ=F+=ZH

(c)

unsecured.

At 31 December 2023, the balances include contract liabilities
of $5,373,000 (2022: $12,180,000) represents billings in
advance of performance in sales. When the Group receives a
deposit before the delivery of products in its sales activity, this
will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until
the revenue recognised on the sales exceeds the amount of
the deposit.

Contract liabilities of $12,180,000 (2022: $33,826,000) at the
beginning of the year is recognised as revenue during the
year and contract liabilities of $5,373,000 (2022: $12,180,000)
was recognised at 31 December 2023 as a result of billing in
advance of goods delivery.

(d) Amount due to an associate is unsecured, interest bearing at

prevailing market rates and repayable on demand.
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=+—BOFERNRER SRR -

(c) RZZ-_=F+"A=+—8 &£&He

EE#HBaEA5373,000c (222
£ #%12,180,0007T) > BMHE BATE
TRIE - EXREMMETHEBTEERR
TRIEES > BRENRRREES
HadE BEEHERIKGEBHRES
AL -

RENZEHEEE 12,180,000 7T
(ZEZ & : #%33826,0007T)
BEREABRDSAENRE  RRZIZEZ=
FE+ZA=+—HEERXTATKE
BE5373,000 T (ZEZ2F : Bl
12,180,0007T) EMERBAEHNEE ©

(d) FEfT—RIBS AR A EIEE - HiEH 2

WNIRITHISH R B BAREREIE -



19 Bank Borrowings — Unsecured

19 $R{TIERR — EIKH

2023 2022
ot ek 3 ZE-CF
Effective Effective
interest rate $°000 interest rate $’000
BIEFIE FrT =1 vilES F
Current liabilities TEEE
Term loans subject to BBTRERERE
repayment on demand ERHEHER
clause (note (i)) (FE5E(i))
— Maturity in 2024 —MRZZ_MEHEA 6.10% 30,000 4.49% 62,000
— Maturity in 2026 —RIETRERE  1.72%-1.98% 96,004 1.72%-1.98% 129,578
Total bank loans IRTEM4EEE 126,004 191,578
Note: Pk -

(i)  In accordance with HK Interpretation 5 issued by the HKICPA, non-current
portion of term loans is classified as a current liability as the classification
of term loans was determined by reference to the contractual rights and
obligations of the lender and the borrower at the reporting date and without
considering the probability of the lender choosing to exercise its rights
within the next twelve months after the reporting date.

The balances are carried at amortised cost and none of the non-
current portion of the term loans is expected to be settled within
one year.

The Group has bank loans and trade facilities of $829,077,000
(2022: $756,578,000), of which $126,004,000 (2022:
$191,578,000) had been utilised as at the end of the reporting
period. All of the bank loans are guaranteed by the Company.

The bank loans are subject to certain covenants and the Group
has not breached any borrowing limits or covenants on any of its
banking facilities. Further details of the Group’s management of
liquidity risk are set out in note 27(e).

() WEEBGAMLGEGNEBZESSN
BHRERIERBE RO ESREBEE
BHRERNDEN2RERAKRERARKRS
RGN REBMET - TEEEEMA
BETHRE AR T @A NITREER R
rri °

SRR ATIE » BRERNOIERTH
DIEARER—ERMEIE o

AEBNRITERKESHRESEALE
#820,077000 T (ZE - F . B
756,578,0007%) » H A A #E 126,004,000 7T
BT 1 #1191,578,0007T) REREHR
RKEBA o FIERITERBARATER °

RITERZTETRARR » MAEE M EE
REMRRITRENEAEERFIHEZY o &
EEEERSHEERMNELSFIBEHNMEE
27(e) °
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20 Lease Liabilities 20 fAE&E

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the lease liabilities were RIEI=ZFRZE-"F+ZRA=+—
repayable as follows: H > HESENESIANT !

Within 1 year —FRN
After 1 year but within 2 years —FBRERREAN
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERAERN
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21 Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement of 21 4ZF&RFEIRARAZFRSR
Financial Position

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) {FEMBIKRTKAZENHPIRIES :
financial position represents:

2023 2022
—EC=H k- ot
$°000 $7000
FiT S
Provision for Hong Kong profits tax for the year  Ax [ > FEH1SMIEE 715 23
Provisional profits tax paid BATEEAIER (1,930) (593)
(1,215) (570)
Balance of Profits Tax provision relating to BEFEERSREBELR
prior years 1,260 337
45 (233)
Taxation outside Hong Kong EARIRINRIE
— PRC corporate income tax payable — P E RS 72,005 19,322
Net current income tax payable FE{S ENHARR1SFF 4R 72,050 19,089
2023 2022
—BC-= o et
$7000 $°000
=TT FiT = g
Representing: 5 g T
#3
Income tax recoverable EIENERES (315) (593) B3
Income tax payable FERFRISHR 72,365 19,682 =
2
QL
72,050 19,089 »
g
(0]
3
S
(2]
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21 Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement of 21 {FEMIBIRRRAZFRFHR (&)
Financial Position (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) BHEREERETERARE :
(i) Movement of each component of deferred tax assets and () BERESERGESHBEZZ
liabilities #Ey
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities ERGEMBEIR TR ZIEER
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial H(EE) at8ERSrsREE
position and the movements during the year are as NEENT :
follows:
Differences
between
depreciation  Credit loss
allowances allowance Gain on land Other
and related oftrade  Withholding  resumption temporary
Taxlosses  depreciation  receivables tax (note) differences Total
HERER [EHER -Uae)
1RRiE RARE Wt Eft
il ZEB iR it (h3) ERES At
$000 $1000 $1000 $1000 $1000 $1000 $1000
7 7 7 7 7 7z 7
Deferred tax arising from; FEEEERE .
At1 January 2022 #-%-=5-A-A (852)  MEB (1663 3578 17082 (18701) 38367
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss (tA) /B (H8(a)

(note 8(a) (0447 @3)  (5) 376 16030 154 10,609
Exchange differences EREE 1,650 (3,222) 13 (454)  (1,181) 548 (2,546)
At 31 December 2022 and RZEZZE+ZA=1-Ak

1 January 2023 —%2=F-B-H (42,019) 68,128 (1,901) 6,880 31,901 (16,559) 46,430
(Credited)icharged to profit or loss (tA) /1isEER (HE8(a)

(note 8(a) @02)  (106)  (32%) 526 (0B 475 (31634)
Exchange differences EREE 389 (463) 25 (108)  (1,664) 0 (1,75
At 31 December 2023 R-EB-=#+-Bz+-B (5651) 60603 (517) 11,998 - (4T T

Note: The amount represented the timing difference arising from MizE : =EERIEBUWR U (RfEE4
the gain on land resumption (see note 4(ii)) which the (i) EEMRREER » HEREN
corresponding tax payable will be settled in 2024 as agreed RIBEAEMMBBIBESR T
with the local tax bureau. PO o
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21 Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement of 21 {FEMIBIKRERAZFREHR (&)
Financial Position (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) BHEVEERESERAR : (B8)
(continued)
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial (i) EBARE MR RRZ #HiR
position
2023 2022
—EC-= o et
$7000 $7000
FiTz FiT
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the PR E SRR R
consolidated statement of financial position ZIRERIEE ESE (32,396) (24,790)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the R4 & BRI REST
consolidated statement of financial position ZIRERIBAERE 39,441 71,220
7,045 46,430
(c) Deferred tax assets and liabilities not recognised (c) KREDBERBETERER
(i) The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in () AEEERNRFARIBERIERTIR
respect of cumulative tax losses, whose expiry dates are: EMIEEE - HEIHARS ©
2023 2022
—BC-= - ot
$7000 $7000
F7 F7
o =gz
Within 1 year —FR 17,926 19,048 ®O
@
More than 1 year but within 5 years BiE—FENAEERN 30,913 27,314 ﬁ B
o
Do not expire under current tax legislation RIEBRRIEEATE 2=
H
548 95,767 75,803 2
2
3
144,606 122,165 )
@
=L
(0]
3
S
(2]
The directors are of opinion that it is not probable that EHRA > BERKTERERR
future taxable profits against which the losses above can BRFERBRARRREN A
be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction FALUREE _Eitifs1s o
and entity.
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21 Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement of

Financial Position (continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets and liabilities not recognised

(continued)

(i) At 31 December 2023, deferred tax liabilities of $5,249,000
(2022: $4,331,000) in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of retained profits of the
PRC subsidiaries amounted to $104,972,000 (2022:
$86,615,000) have not been recognised as the Company
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it
has been determined that it is probable that these profits
will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

22 Receipt in Advance and Deferred Income

On 3 April 2020, the Group entered into certain land resumption
agreements (“Land Resumption Agreements”) with Wangzhuang
Residential District Office of Wuxi City in Xinwu District of the
People’s Republic of China (“Wuxi Local Administration”), pursuant
to which Wuxi Local Administration will resume, and the Group
will surrender its land and properties at Wuxi in exchange for a
compensation of RMB296,237,000 (equivalent to $331,621,000)
payable by Wuxi Local Administration. Details of the transaction
have been set out in the circular of the Company dated 25 May
2020 and the announcements of the Company dated 6 April 2020,
17 April 2020, 29 April 2020 and 28 July 2020.

As at 31 December 2022, receipt in advance of $126,863,000 and
deferred income of $5,245,000 represented receipts from Wuxi
Local Administration in relation to the Group’s land and properties
at Wuxi to be surrendered to Wuxi Local Administration and
compensation of the relocation expenses to be incurred for the
land resumption in 2023, respectively. The whole land relocation
was completed in 2023 and all the receipt in advance and deferred
income were recognised as income (including non-current portion)
during the year (note 4(ii)). The remaining balance of the deferred
income which amounting to $22,114,000 (2022: $26,952,000)
represents the government grants related to purchase of property,
plant and equipment of other Group companies.
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RAERQTEHZEWB LB MRS
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£ #B1586,615,0007T) HRIHIE
5,249,000 (ZE - F : B
4,331,0007T) FEEIERFREE ©
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23 Capital, Reserves and Dividends 23 g7~ EERRS

(a) Movements in components of equity (a) HEEPZ2EEN
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances REBRREERSERE D 2 FHEER
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set BEREGRZHESRESELSED
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details x o AATERERARIT D NRENE
of changes in the Company’s individual components of equity FRBBIRZ SBEEHHMT ¢
between the beginning and the end of the years are set out
below:
Financial
assets
Other at FVOCI Equity
Share capital  reserve (non-  compensation Retained
capital reserves recycling) reserves earnings Total
BRATEHA
Hit2EEZ
MBEERE
Ba  HitEsgs (FRIEHR) sl RIER L)
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
¥z ¥z i i ¥z ¥z
At 1 January 2022 RZE-Z§-B—H 1,652,854 (14,006) 12,956 6,252 755,145 2,413,201
Changes for the year FEELE
Profit and total comprehensive  EFIRAFEELANGEEE
income for the year - - - - (27,692) (27,692)
Dividends approved in respectof Btz BEEERS
the previous year (note 23(b)(ii))  (FtzE23(b)(ii) - - - - (81,708) (81,708)
Dividend declared inrespectof ~ BERZAEERE.
the current year (note 23(b)(1))  (FEE23(b)(i)) - - - - (36,315) (36,315)
Purchase of shares for R RE R TR E RN
Share Award Scheme (note 24)  ([ff5¥24) - (2,095) - - - (2,095)
Shares vested and allotted under PR EEI FHBRAEMN
Share Award Scheme (note 24)  Raf3 (Fifsto4) - 4,959 - (4,959) - - .
Equity compensation expenses 1B ER (Hfi24) § 5
(note 24) - - - 5,697 - 5,697 = 0
#3
At 31 December 2022 and R=B-=#+-A=+-8 Ma
1 January 2023 kZE-=%-B—-H 1,652,854 (11,142) 12,956 6,990 609,430 2,271,088 %
=}
Changes for the year TEELE 53
»
Profit and total comprehensive IR AEE2ANGEE )
income for the year - - (2,030) - (2,826) (4,856) g
Dividends approved in respectof Btz BEEERE 7
the previous year (note 23(b)(ii))  (H¥EE23(b)(ii)) - - - - (81,708) (81,708)
Dividend declared in respectof ~ BERZAEERE
the current year (note 23(b)(i))  (HtzE23(b)(i)) - - - - (36,315) (36,315)
Shares vested and allotted under ~ R{A 1B B THBRAEMN
Share Award Scheme (note 24)  I&f7 (Hiz£24) - 5,057 - (5,057) - -
Equity compensation expenses 1B (ER (HfiE24)
(note 24) - - - 2892 - 2,892
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=F+ZRA=+-B 1,652,854 (6,085) 10,926 4,825 488,581 2,151,101
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23 Capital, Reserves and Dividends (continued)

(b) Dividends

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company

(b) RS

23 fas -~ (KRS ()

(i) BIEREEGIFEANLFEREN

attributable to the year BRE
2023 2022
ZE=HF kSt -
$°000 $000
F7 F7
Interim dividend of HK4 cents AR S B S BB E 410
(2022: HK4 cents) per ordinary T F L AEAMD)
share 36,315 36,315
Proposed special dividend of BRI SR T E
HK5 cents (2022: HK5 cents) BEs(ZE2 ==
per ordinary share A5 45,393 45,393
Proposed final dividend of BRI REAR E SR @R
HK4 cents (2022: HK4 cents) Bl (ZE2 =
per ordinary share A4 36,315 36,315
118,023 118,023
The directors recommend the payment of a special EEEBNREFNREESREBER

dividend of HK5 cents per ordinary share and a final
dividend of HK4 cents per ordinary share. Such dividends
are to be approved by the shareholders at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 23

May 2024.
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23 Capital, Reserves and Dividends (continued) 23 g7 ~ EERRE (8)

(b) Dividends (continued) (b) RS
(i) Dividend payable to equity shareholders of the Company (i) L1 EEETER G B miFAE
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and A ZBRE (A FEHERSZ(T)
paid during the year
2023 2022
—EC=H ot et
$°000 $7000
FiT S
Special dividend in respect of the HEMBFEZENRE
previous financial year, approved (RAREEHERSZA) »
and paid during the year, of HK5 EREBRAESL
cents (2022: HK5 cents) per ordinary (ZZZ 4 : HAHE51)
share 45,393 45,393
Final dividend in respect of HEMBEEZRBRE
the previous financial year, (MAREEHEREM)
approved and paid during the year,  &REEAZHIEAL
of HK4 cents (2022: HK4 cents) (ZZE & : BiEa)
per ordinary share 36,315 36,315
81,708 81,708
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23 Capital, Reserves and Dividends (continued) 23 g7~ EERRE (B)

(c) Share capital (c) Be#s
2023 2022
—Z== —ECF

No. of shares No. of shares

VE ] 40 |
‘000 $°000 ‘000 $°000
Fli Firt Flii FiT

At 1 January and W—A—Bk+ZAH

31 December =+—H 907,865 1,652,854 907,865 1,652,854

IRIBEB(REFRGINE1351F » SRR H
BRIEEE -

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the Company do not have a
par value.

KRR ZIE=F+ZHB=+—HZ
EETREERG EIEBRELARIE
PR& M AR (D SZB ST B EsE A NTFA Z
44846048 (Z T 4 : 8,211,036
i) B 1 > BRAFEIBENHIZE24 o

The Company’s issued and fully paid shares as at 31
December 2023 included 4,484,604 shares (2022: 8,211,036
shares) held in trust by the trustee under Restricted Share
Award Scheme, details of which are set out in note 24.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased any of the
Company’s shares, except that the trustee of the Restricted
Share Award Scheme, pursuant to the terms of the rules and
trust deed of the Restricted Share Award Scheme, purchased
on the Stock Exchange a total of nil shares (2022: 1,648,000
shares) of the Company (note 24).
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23 Capital, Reserves and Dividends (continued) 23 g7 ~ EERRE (8)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (d) fREEEERBR
(i) Legal reserves (i) EEREE

Subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC, which are wholly
foreign-owned enterprises, follow the accounting principles
and relevant financial regulations of the PRC applicable to
wholly foreign-owned enterprises (“PRC GAAP — WFOE”),
in the preparation of its accounting records and financial
statements. Pursuant to the accounting regulations for
business enterprises, the subsidiaries are required to
appropriate 10% of the profit arrived at in accordance
with PRC GAAP — WFOQOE for each year to a statutory
reserve. The profit arrived at must be used initially to set
off against any accumulated losses. The appropriations to
statutory reserve, after offsetting against any accumulated
losses, must be made before the distribution of dividends
to equity owners. The appropriation is required until the
statutory reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital.
This statutory reserve is not distributable in the form of
cash dividends, but may be used to set off losses or be
converted into paid-in capital.

Intangible asset revaluation reserve

The intangible asset revaluation reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies in note 1(i).

Financial assets at FVOCI reserve (non-recycling)

The financial assets at FVOCI reserve (non-recycling)
comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of
equity investments designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9
that are held at the end of the reporting period (see note

13))-

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 1(g).

FEEZTERBAR GMEBER
F) NRRE SRR B RRE
Kt EmBEEEERZFEE
RRRABRAM B ER ((HEARE
SHRAI-SNEBELRE)) - RIFE
BEEZEHER > WEAREAR
BREAR SR -SHEBEDR
ESFMAMERN B BH10%E
EEME o IR EBF SAE K
RIHERREGE - RREZES
AR IR ERT > BIEHERREES
Bz aA v REREEEERHE > B
EEREREHEERGEMRAZ50%7
AIEIEEE - ZEAERBERTUR
ERBZBHADIK > MR A
IR AR AR -

(i) FEEEBGFE

B EESEGHHBEERL > IR
EMYEE1 (PR B S 5T IERER R o

(iii) R FEFARMEE Kz

BE#E (TaEE)
BRATESARMEEEEZ M
HEME (FAIOE) aERREH
REFANRBEEBMBREENF
RIEERATEFAREMEE YD
ZRAEKREZ R AT EEERE
(RFEE1G)) ©

(iv) SMEKBNFTH

SMNEE R B (R BRI B B SN R TS
BRREEZFIAEREE - #iB
RIBFIEE1 (o) P8 G ST ECRERIE o
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23 fas -~ (KRS ()
(e) BFEER

23 Capital, Reserves and Dividends (continued)

(e) Capital risk management

The Group regards its shareholders’ equity as capital. The
Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total equity. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (i.e.
current and non-current bank borrowings as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position) less cash at bank
and on hand.

During the year, the Group’s strategy was to maintain the net
debt gearing ratio below 30%. As at 31 December 2023 and
2022, the Group had net cash position as follows:

FEERERREDRRESR - 7EE
ZEAEEERAFRERERBRENR
HEREEEEERE  LERRRT
RER K BEMFF D E R > Wi
FREBERRBLUERE R

mERHREERRE > FEEES
AEINTFRRZBREEE - ARRE
BEAX  BTRRMAHEBTEUZE
&5 o

FEERFEREALREERETE
A o ZLERBEF FEREEEFTH o
RSB ERLURIER (BNR S MBS RFR
T BVERRIEBNERERITERR) IR T IR F
BIREFHE -

RER > FEEZEEAERFEGRE
AEEERER30%  c RZTEZ=FK_ZF
—_THE+ZA=+—H FEEZFHR
EARMTF :

2023 2022

=% k- Jonfat: -

$7000 $7000

FiT S

Cash at bank and on hand IRITRFHEES 810,695 1,042,535
Total bank borrowings (note 19) IRITfEFRAEEE (FYEE19) (126,004) (191,578)
684,691 850,957

As the Group had a net cash position, the net debt gearing
ratio as at 31 December 2023 was nil (2022: nil).
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24 Restricted Share Award Scheme

The Restricted Share Award Scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
by the Company on 21 December 2009 as an incentive to attract,
motivate and retain employees of the Group. It will expire on 30
June 2024.

Eligible participants of the Scheme are senior management and
directors of the Group.

The awarded shares are the existing shares, which are purchased
on the Stock Exchange by the independent trustee, Law Debenture
Trust (Asia) Limited (the “Trustee”), with funds provided by the
Company. The maximum number of shares in respect of which
awards may be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed
18,157,299 shares, representing 2% of the total issued share
capital of the Company as at 1 July 2021.

Under the rules of the Scheme, share awards will be granted to the
participants of the Scheme when certain performance target is met
and on or before 30 June of each year.

Upon certain vesting conditions are fulfilled, the share awards
granted to the participants will be vested in three equal tranches
provided that the relevant awardee remained employed by the
Group or retired on reaching normal retirement age.

For awardees who cease employment with the Group before
vesting, the unvested shares are forfeited. The forfeited shares are
held by the trustee of the Scheme.

24 PREERR (D EER)=HEY

RIZESAEF+ZBAZ+—H » ZQTIHRM
PREIMER (7 BB =t & (%5t 81 ) fER—T1aER
B> UIRS| ~ BB RIGBREBRZES ° %
AN T MEB=1+HEIH -

ZE B2 AERSEERFERZSRER
ABRES -

BERRMBRARD  BEILEFRNREE
58 (BEM) ARRAE (TE5EAL) IR PR g
B WHARERMEES o REZEIFTR
TRENROBERSNSIER18,157,299
R (EERARDBE_Z_—FtHA—HEH
1TRRAHBERRI2% ©

RiEZETBZRA > RDEBRRNFSET
KEERRRTZEZ28E > BRMHK
BN EFRAZTRSZART2HEE -

FETHBIRMERR BT ZRMERR
NEHERBETSEE > HAERERBA
THEMNBEREBMRIEERERKFHEES
BIK

MREBERETBERAER 2 ERBAL
Ms > REBROMEWRL - ERAZRM
Mt B ZEFEARA ©
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24 Restricted Share Award Scheme (continued)

The fair value of the shares was determined based on the closing
market price of the Company’s shares that are publicly traded on
the Stock Exchange on the grant date.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a total of 2,269,662
shares at a fair value $1.27 were granted to the participants. No
share was granted during the year ended 31 December 2023.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of shares
available in respect of which restricted share awards may be
granted under the Scheme is 15,887,637 shares representing
approximately 1.75% of the shares in issue as at that date.

Share based payments of $2,892,000 (2022: $5,697,000) has been
recognised in the consolidated income statement as employee
benefit expenses (notes 5 and 7). In 2023, a total of 3,726,432
shares (2022: 3,631,348 shares) were vested and their average
purchasing fair value was $5,057,000 (2022: $4,959,000). No
shares granted was forfeited during the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.

Movement in the number of shares awarded and their related
average fair value is as follows:

24 FREIMERL(DEZEYSTEI (48)

RIFZ AFEDREBRABRNRBZPIARE
BZRMHERHABHZIHERRE

BE_ZE__S#+"-_B=+—HLEE>
BAFEBEI12ITTH2EERTEH
2,269,662 &1H c BE_T_=F+_"1
=+—HLIEFE » MEEHERRS o

RAEEREBE > RIBZEI B EES
4R AR SE BRI AR5 4 88 % 15,887,637 8% » 14
Z BB E1TRINE1.75% ©

BERRMOARE2892,000T (ZTE -
. B5,697,0007T) ERGEERERA
BRRAEEEHASZ (MF5K7) c RZE
= 53726432 (=T ==
3,631,348[%) RS BHBIRSEE » HIFY
BEQAFESBIE5057,000 (ZE ==
F 1 B¥4,959,0007T) c BEZTZ=FK
ZEZZHE+ZHA=+—HIEFE  BER
HERMPETEA o

ERRM BB S RHBRTHEQATENT ¢

2022
=== b bt 3
Average Number of Average Number of
fair value shares fair value shares
per share awarded per share awarded
Sk SEEhAG 1R SR SZEIAR (R
THATE #®E FHATEE B8
$ $
T T
Beginning balance FEVEEER 8,209,418 9,571,104
Granted BE¥ - - 1.27 2,269,662
Vested BB 136  (3,726,432) 1.36  (3,631,348)
Ending balance FREERR 4,482,986 8,209,418
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24 Restricted Share Award Scheme (continued)

All the shares held by Trustee for the purpose of the Scheme are

24

PRAEVERR (7 SR 518 (43)
SR ABRZH BB ZFAERARIINT :

listed below:
Number of shares
RIPER

2023 2022

—BE-=HF ot <Jonfent -

Beginning balance FWLERR 8,211,036 10,194,384
Purchase of shares BERG = 1,648,000
Vesting of shares B (3,726,432) (3,631,348)
Ending balance FERGER 4,484,604 8,211,036

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the total consideration
paid for the purchase of 1,648,000 shares was $2,095,000. No
such purchase was made during the year ended 31 December
2023.

25 Contingent Liabilities

The Group issued guarantees to a former related party for its
banking facilities and $nil (2022: $25,747,000) of the banking
facilities was utilised as at 31 December 2023.

At the end of the reporting period, the directors do not consider it is
probable that a claim will be made against the Group under any of
these guarantees.

25

HEZTHE+ZHA=1+—HIEEE &
% 51,648,000 10 LA R E R B
2,095,000 c HEZEZ=F+ZA=+—
HIEEE > WEETEMLIEREE -

ARG

AEEMERTRER—RAMAEALTIEL
R RITE=ZF+"H=+—HEHH
ZIRITHEABEST(ZEI2E | B
25,747,0007T) ©

RBEHRR > EFRATEETKATERE
AZEERMEERR
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26 Commitments 26 K

Capital commitments BaAEE
Capital commitments outstanding at the end of the reporting period REIRER > MBRRARBEZEREE
not provided for in the financial statements were as follows: mr:
2023 2022
—E=fF ot bt - 3
$7000 $°000
T FiT
Contracted for, but not provided for [ERENEESE L 96,766 182,184
Authorised but not contract for BIREERTH = 49,359
96,766 231,543

27 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value of 27 MBEREEREMTIAZATHE
Financial Instruments

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, AEFEFEEHTE GTETARIN B1ER
comprise cash and bank deposits, trade and other receivables, B RERITER ~ FERE ZIRIERE MR
trade and other payables and bank borrowings. The main purpose 18~ BB S IREREMEMRIEUKRIRT
of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s B ZEEMTAZFIERAREALEER
operations. EEREES -

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are rEEESMTAEEZIERBANER
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, equity price risk b~ ShERRE ~ EERME - RERRERR
and liquidity risk. The policies to mitigate each of these risks are BEERE o TXHAEZESERRZ K
summarised below. The board manages and monitors these risks R BEEGTERERZERG 0 UEREK
to ensure that appropriate measures are implemented in a timely RANBHEZSRN - BARAEETETA
and effective manner. The Group’s accounting policies in relation 1ERE 2 EETEUR R B RS RRRMIEE 1 (K) ©

to derivatives are set out in note 1(k) to the financial statements.
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27 MBAREEREMIAZATE
(%)

(a) FIZEER

27 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value of
Financial Instruments (continued)

(a) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arises mainly from
its bank deposits and bank borrowings.

The Group manages its interest rate exposure with a focus
on reducing the Group’s overall cost of debt and exposure to
changes in interest rates. When considered appropriate, the
Group uses interest rate swaps to manage its long-term bank
borrowings which bear floating interest rates. Interest rate risk
on bank deposits is considered immaterial.

At 31 December 2023, the Group has term loan of $30,000,000
(2022: $62,000,000) with variable rates. The Group considers
that these loans are due within short period, thus the interest
rate risk arising from them are immaterial.

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group’s other borrowings at the end of the reporting period:

rEBZHERBREIEZELEBHRTE

MRSRITIER ©

FEFBNBBEBERHMAEKRFE
2yEABUEENXAR TEER
5 AEEGH BN RIsHEERRT
R EFF B2 RERITER « RITER
ZHRRABLERERK ©

ATEZ=F+ZHA=+—H &~&EH
Al & H W H B E 7 4 % 1530,000,000
T(ZTEZZF : ##62,000,0007T) °
SEBDRAZEERNEEREIE
LEEEMFEREBRRAK

TREFLAER RS HAREMERD
F=EEK

2023 2022

—E== ot <Jomfent -

$7000 $°000

F7 F7

Fixed rate borrowings ESEH

Lease liabilities HEaRE 39,058 38,027 _
Bank loans — unsecured RITER—BIER 96,004 129,578 e
B
135,062 167,605 =g
Variable rate borrowings AIEEFIER(ETR =
Bank loan — unsecured ST 3R — I 30,000 62,000 5
Amount due to an associate FEHE ATIRRIE 5,700 = Q—U’)
5
(0]
170,762 229,605 3
5
73
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27 MBAREEREMIARZAFE
(%)

(a) FIZEME (48)

27 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value of
Financial Instruments (continued)

(a) Interest rate risk (continued)

At 31 December 2023, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group’s profit after tax and retained earnings by approximately
$357,000 (2022: $620,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk arising from variable rate borrowing held
by the Group at the end of the reporting period, the impact on
the Group’s profit after tax and retained earnings is estimated
as annualised impact on interest expense of such a change in
interest rates.

(b) Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
its business transactions, assets and liabilities denominated in
various foreign currencies primarily Renminbi (“RMB”), Hong
Kong dollars (“HKD”) and United States dollars (“USD”).

The Group is subject to foreign exchange rate risk arising from
future commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities which are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the transactions
relate.

When there are significant foreign currency transactions
other than the functional currencies of the major operating
companies within the Group, the Group will use forward
currency contracts to manage the foreign currency exposure.
The forward currency contracts must be in the same currency
as the hedged item. At 31 December 2023, the fair value of
forward currency contract is immaterial to the Group.
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27 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value of 27 MBEBEEREMIRAZATHE
Financial Instruments (continued) (#8)

(b) SMEEELER (48)
(i) EEmEE

(b) Foreign currency risk (continued)
(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of
the exposure are shown in HKD, translated using the spot
rate at the reporting period end date. Differences resulting
from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency are
excluded.

In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between
the HKD and the USD would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the USD against

TERFVAEBRNBREAREEHE
REEHRE(UEREMZINES
LNz EWEHE) FREEZ B
Bk 2B EEK  ERERZE
BRI SR B R ANRER R
RBIEIIR o BINEBZMBRE
HEAAERERERREEZE
2> FEFAEBRAR -

FUEMS » AERBRRETRAM
BRZBEESHIEHBERS
T ENMBRERERERTE -

other currencies.

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in HKD)

SMERIR(ABTIT)
023 02
Z3EE o S 3

RMB HKD usD RMB HKD 1)

AR A ES I\ it £n

$000 §000 $1000 $1000 $1000 $000

b7 z F Fz F z
Trade and other receivables el E RERER At ENETE 29,563 - 2,210 48,985 - 7,337 =
Cash at banks and on hand RORFERE 467,284 4,267 14413 473,859 3911 26,990 #
Trade and other payables EfERRERANENTE (65,920) (18) (18) (70,903) (18) (18) S5
E_.E

Net exposure arising from ERTEENEARY Y
recognised assets and liabilities ElREE 430,921 4,249 16,665 451,941 3,893 34,309
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27 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value of
Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Foreign currency risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s profit before income tax that would arise if
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed

27 MBAREEREMIARZAFE

(%)

(b) SMESELER (48)
(i) BIREZHT

TRETBRRNBSHAREEAER
FEREABZEXNEQLHRE
o MAEEMAREHEERT
g ERAERZIRRERANER

at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained AIREE Y Z BIRFEE) o
constant.
2023 2022
—EC-=H ot bt

Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (decrease)

in foreign in profit in foreign in profit

exchange before exchange before

rates income tax rates income tax

FRER{SHRAD FRER{SHEAG

SMEEESR bl SMESEESR A,

£ (FFE) GRi) £ (FF2) GRE)

$’000 $°000

F FT

RMB# AR 5% 21,546 5% 22,597
(5%) (21,546) (5%) (22,597)

HKD* B> 5% 212 5% 195
(5%) (212) (5%) (195)

usD* ESSivd 5% 833 5% 1,715
(5%) (833) (5%) (1,715)

# For the company and subsidiaries with functional currency as

HKD

* For subsidiaries with functional currency as RMB or VND
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27 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value of 27 MBEBEEREMIRAZATHE
Financial Instruments (continued) (#8)

(b) SMES LR (48)

(b) Foreign currency risk (continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (continued)
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects
on each of the Group entities’ profit before income
tax measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into HKD at the exchange rate ruling at the end
of the reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis excludes differences that would result
from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2022.

(c) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on
its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade and bills receivables and deposits placed with banks.
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
Management has policies in place to monitor the exposures to
these credit risks on an on-going basis.

For banks and financial institutions, deposits are only placed
with reputable banks. For credit exposures to customers,
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for the determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
regularly reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
receivable to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is properly managed and
significantly reduced.

Since the Group trades only with creditworthy third parties,
normally there is no requirement for collateral.

(i) BREZHT
EREVZAMERBELFEES
BERLABRMAE S BB Z RS
MAaEf Z BB E > HREHE
Y > ARAREURS IR ZEXRR
HRBIEE®R -

BREDIMESEXSHEANE
Mt EXEEMBESHAERRR
SHFEHMERMRZEMIA -
BRPMAEIEBIINER ZMBR
RNEAKREEAZREBREES
EZE > DINRE TS - _FFRAZ
TEEIE LT o

(c) IFEREMR

FERARERZHFRERGNEHM
ERAEMELMHHERZER - %
Bz EEREEIEREEKEZRER
REREBRIRITZER - FEET &
EXEPEEAR - EEEEHNEERR
FEEEZEEERRE -

FIRTTRERMMEBMS - EREFBRR
FERIFNIRIT - MERZEERRM
5 rEEEEEERRERENE &
BEEEEE  GEfRKHEMEEERE
FF > R RIRE WA HRETS © thsh
FEEE RGNS ER B IRREZ B IR
88 » UHEFRA NI REIETEFL R
SRERTIR - BUET S » EFRREE
EEZEEERAEFBEERE

HRAEEEREERIFZE=FET
X5 BERAEERRZER -
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27 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value of 27 MBEBEEREMIRAZATHE
Financial Instruments (continued) ()

(c) IEE R (48)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivable

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 8% (2022:
9%) and 43% (2022: 20%) of the total trade receivable was
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade and bills
receivables are due within 30-90 days from the date of billing.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

During the year, the management identified the credit risk
associated with a trade debtor has increased significantly
since initial recognition and performed reassessment on the
ECLs of that debtor. As a result, a loss allowance of $2,160,000
(2022: $8,995,000) had been provided for the receivables due
from that trade debtor. Other than that, the Group measures
loss allowance on financial assets based on the past loss
experience, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking information at the end of each reporting period. Having
considered those factors, the Group considered that there is
no significant loss allowance recognised in accordance with
HKFRS 9 as at 31 December 2023 and 2022, and no expected
credit loss rate has therefore been disclosed.
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FEURE SARIE
AEEFMEENEERRIESEERR
BERREREE > MIFBUARE R EER
ETERER > HeEEFZEERE
FERAEEABNERBERERT
REFFE o RIHFHR > BB ZIRIE
YAZEZ 8% (ZB 4 1 9%) K43% (=
TTTF 1 20%) ARIRERNEENRA
EERAKRER ©

FRrEERBHBERGHEEZEFTE
ETEANEEE - IbFFHEINE
FBEZ BB RREC B R IR 2 (J 7R BE
N BEBERBAERBENREEE
FRE&EIRIZZEMER - BB IR
EhEE—AREZEEQHEF30E0H
REHE - —RME > AEEFERER
WREE R
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27 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value of 27 MBEBEEREMIRAZATHE

Financial Instruments (continued) (#8)
(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EERME (&)
Trade receivable (continued) FEWE ZARIE (#8)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade FREKRE ZREREEZ HIEBEE
and bills receivables during the year is as follows: BT -
2023 2022
—EC=H o et
$°000 $°000
FiT T
At 1 January ®w—BA—H 18,004 7,293
Acquisition of a subsidiary W —REE A 132 -
Impairment loss (note 5) REEIE (FiEE5) 5,556 11,302
Amount written off as uncollectible WEHR e El Z £ X8 (356) (296)
Exchange differences ERELE (106) (295)
At 31 December ®w+=ZB=+—H 23,230 18,004
(d) Equity price risk (d) BB
The Group is exposed to listed equity securities price risk FERRFEZERBLIFARURZESE
because investments held by the Group for non-trading AHENEMEI EAEMIEE » UtE
purpose are classified as financial investments (see note # EHRRAESERRRE (RMEE13) ©
13). The Group’s listed investments are listed on the Stock KEEZ FHRENREBHFA LT o
Exchange of Hong Kong. The Group’s unquoted investment FEBNBRRERENFIERIAKEKA gz
are held for long term strategic purposes. i o % §
2 O
The Group does not actively trade in equity investments and AERTRIBEERARKE ) BES ”ri
in the opinion of the Board of Directors, the equity price risk ERR - ARG EHCAEETRZ =
related to trading activities to which the Group is exposed BRI AREKX o FLL > SRER R 3.
to is not material. Accordingly, no quantitative market risk T RFREAZ2ETHIBEMSEE %
disclosures for equity price risk have been prepared. %
-
(2]
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27 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value of
Financial Instruments (continued)

(e) Liquidity risk

The Group’s objectives are to maintain sufficient cash and to
ensure the availability of funding through an adequate amount
of committed banking facilities. The Group aims to maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping committed banking facilities
available.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial
liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on current rates at the end of the reporting period)
and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay. For
bank borrowings subject to repayment on demand clauses,
the management does not expect the lender to exercise its
rights to demand repayment and therefore the below analysis
shows the cash outflows based on the contractual repayment
schedule and, separately, the impact to the timing of the cash
outflows if the lender was to invoke its unconditional right to
call the loans with immediate effect.

2023

27 MBAREEREMIARZAFE
(%)

(e)

HEN T E R
TEBZBRAEFRAEE > TEB
R ZEBAHRTHERFRIESE
T AEEEEEBRIFEAHZIRT
MEMRFES 2 TEN -

TRITHRBRSHRETERMBREZ
B TAMNEIMBRFE  RERBRES
e (BENEHRE > AT BRI
BREPRBITHERFEZANEBAR) &
BRAEEFASERERZRT BIIRH -
PR TR 2 REBIRREVIRTT BRI
» EEERAERARNGTHEREERK
BENESR > BALL » WA RERER
BHNRENEERBRNVRESRL > I
BB R AR S| R R ER)

ERIUEMEEERERE R H R B
%=,

-

il

202

it o kel
Total Morethan ~ More than Total Morethan ~ More than
contractual Within Tyearbut  2years but contractual Within fyearbut  2yearsbut
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or within within Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or within within
amount cashflow  ondemand 2years 5years amount cashflow  on demand 2years 5years
SHAME  -EMRg R BERE AARRR  -ENRd BR-F BEmE
BEE RERELD HER  EREMAM  BEEMA BEE RERELE #ER  EREMA  EEIENA
$000 $000 $1000 $1000 $1000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
7 I 7 i i i z fz 7 7
Bank borrowings HirfeR 126004 129287 65928 34598 28761 191578 198421 69521 65621 63219
Trade and other payables  FEtEREER A
FEffz0g 36974 3269714 326974 - - 208284 298284 29,284 - -
Lease liabilties figsk 39,058 4547 17868 13205 10474 38,021 42513 1413 10868 20232
492,036 497808 410770 47808 39235 527889 539278 319218 76489 83511
Adustmentto present cash  FHEERABRAHA
flows on bank borowings  FERIZHSfT1ERA
based onlender'sightto & frdiE%
demand payment (1004 62265  (345%)  (28761) (3018) 15882 (65621)  (63,279)
496714 473035 13205 10474 536,260 505,160 10868 20,232
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27 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value of 27 MBEBEEREMIRAZATHE

Financial Instruments (continued) (#8)

(f) Fair value estimation () 2FEZGE
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair TRAOMUGEELSREAFEAEZSE
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been MTHA - FRBXRAEUWT :

defined as follows:

— Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for - BB HEEEXaENERT
identical assets or liabilities. SR 7 R1E CRESHREE) o

— Level 2: Observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1 and - BIRE  AHEFENTHREREH

not using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable A BUERFHAEATTEHE

inputs are inputs for which market data are not available. BASIER - FRABRRAASEAL
mIISEIRZ AR o

— Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based — BIE BENERZHAREIL

on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs). FERIR TR 2 G 8 (BN el 8

REARIR) o

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities TREIWNR - E_=ZFEKR_T__
that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2023 and +ZB=+—HEAFEFEZLFER
2022: BERAE:
2023 2022
ZECzE ZECCE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
5-E FoE F=RB oh 5B F-RB F=RB &3t
$000 $000 $000 $1000 $000 $000 $000 $000
F F T F T T T b3 5z
o
Assets BE g g
gy
Financial investments: SHRE: s
- Structured bank deposits ~EEMETED - 311,025 - 31,025 - 203,580 - 203,580 g
- Unlisted equity securities —JELmRAES - - 46511 46,511 - - 45076 45,076 3
- Listed equity securities - FifkaES 8,916 - - 8916 12,598 - - 12,598 Q—U’)
o}
(0]
8916 311,025 46511 366,452 12,598 203,580 45076 261,254 §
73
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27 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value of
Financial Instruments (continued)

(f) Fair value estimation (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of listed equity instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of
the reporting period.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of structured bank deposits is determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows at prevailing
market interest rate as at the end of the reporting period.

Financial instruments in level 3

The fair values of unlisted investments that are not traded
in an active market are determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based on market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period.

The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022:

27 MBAREEREMIARZAFE

() 2aFEZEE )
() F—EBELHMIR

REBEMIZEEEZ EHRATAZ
AT ERBHRSHARPIERHENE

(i) B_ELMTA

BEEMRTERZATEDERR
BERRZRITHBAXMFTALR
RRFEEREBETE ©

(i) E=EL#HTA

WEIERTIER S ZIELHRE
ZATENBAEERMNERE - &
EREBESREARZTREARE
737k MRS ©

TRENEE_E_=ZFK_Z
_THE+"RA=1+—HILEFEFE=
EBITARZEH):

Unlisted equity securities

JE ETHRRASE S
2023 2022
—EC=H - bt
$°000 $7000
FiT Fi
At 1 January ®w—B—H 45,075 47,769
Payment for purchases TS EFTE(IRR 4,827 -

Change in fair value recognised R ERED 2 AT EES)

in reserve (3,003) -
Exchange differences ERELE (388) (2,694)
At 31 December W+—-B=+—H 46,511 45,075
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28 Material Related Party Transactions 28 EXFEALRS

(a) Transactions with related parties (a) EIREALZZS
In addition to the transactions disclosed elsewhere in these BRZERBERREAMBIBEZRS
financial statements, the Group had the following transactions b REBMPRAFEEHREATBEET
with related parties during the year: MmrxR5% -
2023 2022
ot ¥ 3 ot et
$'000 $°000
Fiz S
Sales of raw materials or finished tHEFREME S REmRT -
goods to:
A substantial shareholder —2FERE 4,647 2,712
Parties under control of a substantial TR ERRER 2@k
shareholder 20 106

Purchases of raw materials from: AU TALTEERME :

A substantial shareholder —%FERR - 173
The above transactions were carried out in the normal course Pz SR AER—REFBREP R
of business of the Group and on terms as agreed with the B—HE ZARFET ©
parties.

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties (b) BRAEALZ KBRS @
Save as disclosed in notes 12, 15 and 18, there were no BRRIEE12 ~ 15K 18FRIREESN » IR ZF ﬁ
outstanding balances with related parties as at 31 December “=EF+ZA=+—H > UEHEEEA %*
2023. THEBZERERER Bt
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28 Material Related Party Transactions 28 EXREALRS (&)

(continued)
(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the (c) FEEEEEIEA S
Group
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—&
$°000 $7000
FiT S
Short-term employment benefits SHAE B EH (R EIERYIETEAD)

(excluding discretionary bonus) 23,397 22,194
Discretionary bonus BYBETEAL - 7,750
Share-based payments B IR R 2,892 5,697
Post-employment benefits R ER 868 826

27,157 36,467

(d) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected (d) HRAEXSZEMZ ELHRUNERA

transactions %

The related party transaction in respect of note 28(a) above L tEE28(a)Fritt EARAEA LT ZR B

constitute connected transactions or continuing connected EERLEHRAE4AEFRAEZRE

transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. RBRFFEMER S © IRIE LHRAE

The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules YAEREEFREZEREHRAES

are provided in section “Continuing Connected Transactions” BREFEMER S —H -

of the Directors’ Report.
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29 Company Level Statement of Financial Position

29 AEIBEZMFHRAR

0%

=}

E:

2023 2022
—E== ot Jonnfent - 3
$°000 $000
F Fiz
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment W~ BRE KRB 1,712 2,312
Intangible asset B EE 120 171
Financial investments ERIRE 15,101 15,896
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZIRE 271,936 271,935
Deferred tax assets IRIERIEEE 12,061 11,949
300,930 302,263
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments, deposits and other FE(TFIE ~ s R EMEREIE
receivables 3,149 5,575
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURHI B AT FRIE 1,792,053 1,753,741
Structured bank deposits LERBEERITIERR 311,025 203,580
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFEEIRE 193,209 283,784
2}7299,436”7 2,246,680
Current liabilities mENEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FER B AR TIE 437,843 269,316
Other payable and accrued liabilities HithERIERESt & 11,422 8,539
7”449,265”7 277,855
Net current assets REEEFE 1,850,171 1,968,825
NET ASSETS BHERE 2,151,101 2,271,088
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B Bkt
Share capital f&7s 1,652,854 1,652,854
Reserves 5 498,247 618,234
TOTAL EQUITY 4arEs 2,151,101 2,271,088
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BEEEEN _SE_NE=F"+EHH
HEAE R IR TS ©

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25
March 2024.

Yum Chak Ming, Matthew Yum Christopher Carson

B 1Em{E
Director Director
- -
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30 Possible Impact of Amendments, New
Standards and Interpretations Issued but not
yet Effective for the Year ended 31 December
2023

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments and a new standard, which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be relevant to the
Group.

30 HBE_E-_=F+-A=+—HL
FECHEMREBNRERZIEST
ZR KRR Al &

BEZSUBRREMBE > FBIARQ
SEEHSRETR—EMER > &ZFE
FIRZERENRBE_SE_=4+_A8
=+ —HLEEERREMRILEEZTMH
R o A REBAAEEAERMZAESTINT ©

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
HTHIRMAZ &R
EEHARER

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements:

1 January 2024

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (“2020 amendments”)

ERGERIB1R(EFTX) - HEBREHZS) -
BED R RBRAIF T (—FE_FFEETE))

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements:
Non-current liabilities with covenants (“2020 amendments”)

—E-MFE—H—H

1 January 2024

EBGSHERF 1R (BRTA) » HBIRENZES) —Eg-_mE—A—H
WrE 22t FE B A E ([ —E ZEFEET7)

Amendments to HKAS 16, Leases: Lease liability in a sale and leaseback 1 January 2024

EBGHERF16R(ETR) - HE - EEHEHHESE —Eg-_mE—A—H

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows and HKFRS 7,

Financial Instruments: Disclosures: Supplier finance arrangements

1 January 2024

EBGSHERETR (BFIA) » HEREXRRE B HIREERIETH - —g-_mE—A—H
THITE HE . HEEHETH

Amendments to HKAS 21, The effect of changes in foreign exchange rates: 1 January 2025
Lack of exchangeability

BERGERE2158 (BFTA) » BXEERIZE | thZ A5 “E-Hf¥—H—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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